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1. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited was incorporated in Hong Kong
(hereinafter as the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries were incorporated in
Hong Kong or Shanghai (together with the Bank hereinafter as the
“Group”). The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance.

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking
and related financial services. The principal activities of the Bank’s
subsidiaries are shown in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the Bank”. The
address of the Bank's registered office is 151 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs
is a collective term which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certificated Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments)
at fair value through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value,
investment properties which are carried at fair value and premises
which are carried at fair value or revalued amount less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Repossessed assets
are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts or fair values less costs
to sell as further explained in Notes 2.23.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
the Management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
Amendments that are relevant to the Group and

initially adopted for the first time for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2021
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Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16, “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2”. The
amendments address issues that might affect financial reporting
when an entity replaces the old interest rate benchmark with an
alternative benchmark rate as a result of the IBOR Reform. The
amendments complement those issued in 2019 and relate to:

Changes to contractual cash flows — a company will not have
to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of financial
instruments for changes required by the reform, but will instead
update the effective interest rate to reflect the change to the
alternative benchmark rate;

Hedge accounting — a company will not have to discontinue its
hedge accounting solely because it makes changes required by
the reform, if the hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria;
furthermore, if an entity reasonably expects that an alternative
benchmark rate will be separately identifiable within a period
of 24 months, it can designate the alternative reference rate as
a non-contractually specified risk component even if it is not
separately identifiable at the designation date; and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Amendments that are relevant to the Group and
initially adopted for the first time for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2021 (Cont'd)

Disclosures — a company will be required to disclose information
about new risks arising from the reform and how it manages
the transition to alternative benchmark rates.

The amendments are to be applied retrospectively, except
regarding designation of hedging relationships. The
comparatives are not restated. Early application is permitted.
Additional information is disclosed in Note 4.2(D) and 21
“Interest rate benchmark reform”.

Amendments to HKFRS16,"Lease”. Amendment to HKFRS 16
issued in April 2021 extends the availability of the practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly, the
practical expedient applies to rent concessions for which any
reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due
on or before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions for
applying the practical expedient are met. The amendments are
to be applied retrospectively. The application of this amendment
does not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
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Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from 1 January 2023

a Single Transaction
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Amendments and interpretation issued that are
relevant to the Group but not yet mandatorily
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group in 2021 (Cont'd)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, “Reference to the Conceptual
Framework”. The amendments update a reference in HKFRS
3 to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued
in 2018. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception
to its requirement for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability,
that for some types of liabilities and contingent liabilities, an
entity applying HKFRS 3 should instead refer to HKAS 37. The
exception has been added to avoid an unintended consequence
of updating the reference to the Conceptual Framework. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. Earlier application
is permitted if at the same time or earlier an entity also applies
all the amendments made by Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, issued in June
2018. The application of the amendments will not have a
material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1, “Classification of Current or Non-
current liabilities”. The amendments aim to promote consistency
in applying the requirements by helping entities determine
whether, in the balance sheet, debt and other liabilities with
an uncertain settlement date should be classified as current
(due or potentially due to be settled within one year) or non-
current. The amendments include clarifying the classification
requirements for debt an entity might settle by converting it into
equity. The amendments are to be applied retrospectively. Early
adoption is permitted. The Group is considering the financial
impact of the amendments on the Group’s financial statements.

HK Int 5 (2020), “Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause”. This interpretation is revised
as a consequence of Amendments to HKAS 1, “Classification
of Current or Non-current liabilities” issued in August 2020, to
align the corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.
The amendments are to be applied retrospectively. Early
adoption is permitted. The Group is considering the financial
impact of the interpretation and the timing of its application.
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2.
2.1
(b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Amendments and interpretation issued that are
relevant to the Group but not yet mandatorily
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group in 2021 (Cont'd)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2,
"Disclosure of Accounting Policies”. The amendments replace
the requirement for entities to disclose their significant
accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their material
accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities
apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. Early adoption is permitted. The Group is
considering the impact of the amendments and the timing of its
application.

Amendments to HKAS 8, “Definition of Accounting Estimates”.
The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Also,
they clarify how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. Early adoption is permitted. The Group
is considering the financial impact of the amendments and the
timing of its application.

Amendments to HKAS 12, “Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction”. The amendments
narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception so that it
no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required
to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these transactions.
The amendments shall be applied to transactions related to
leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall
be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Early adoption is permitted. The
Group is considering the financial impact of the amendments
and the timing of its application.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(c) Improvements to HKFRSs

o “Improvements to HKFRSs” contains numerous amendments to
HKFRSs which the HKICPA considers not urgent but necessary.
It comprises amendments that result in accounting changes
for presentation, recognition or measurement purpose as well
as terminology or editorial amendments related to a variety of
individual HKFRSs. These improvements will not have a material
impact on the Group's financial statements.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Bank and all of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated; unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary, accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of dividends received and
receivable. Dividend income from subsidiaries is recognised in the
income statement when the right to receive payment is established.

2.3 Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the Management, which is the
chief operating decision maker of the Group, that allocates resources
and assesses the performance of operating segments. Income and
expenses directly associated with each segment are included in
determining operating segment performance.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.4  Foreign currency translation

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period for items that are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of foreign currency transactions using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions and monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies translated at the exchange
rate at the end of the reporting period are recognised directly in the
income statement, except when deferred in other comprehensive income
as qualifying cash flow hedge or qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value
through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as fair value through other comprehensive income
are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying
amount of the securities. Translation differences related to changes in
the amortised cost are recognised in the income statement, and other
changes in the carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are included in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a
functional currency different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into
Hong Kong dollars as follows:

° assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rates at the end
of the reporting period;

o income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates;
and
. all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the

translation reserve in equity through other comprehensive
income.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.4  Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of
the net investment in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments are taken to
other comprehensive income and are accumulated separately in the
translation reserve. When a foreign entity is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to in the income statement, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets,
including recent market transactions, and through the use of valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and option pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are treated as
separate derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are
not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract
is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their
fair value are recognised immediately in the income statement unless
they are designated as hedges and are effective hedging instruments,
then they are subject to measurement under the hedge accounting
requirements.

For derivative instruments being designated as hedging instrument in
an effective hedge, the method of recognising the resulting fair value
gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (Cont'd)

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group
also documents its assessment, both at the hedge inception and on an
ongoing basis, of the economic relationship, credit risk, the hedge ratio
and an evaluation of the effectiveness of the hedging instruments in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flow of hedged items. These
criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be accounted
for under hedge accounting. Hedge accounting may become ineffective
if the hedging instrument and the hedged item lose economic
relationship, or a significant change of the counterparties’ credit risks
that dominates the fair value change of the hedging instruments or the
hedged items.

(a)  Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualified as effective fair value hedges are recognised in the income
statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged
asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

For fair value hedge relationships where the hedged items are debt
instruments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income,
changes in fair value are recorded in the income statement whilst hedge
accounting is in place. When the hedge relationship no longer meets
the criteria for hedge accounting or is terminated for reasons other
than derecognition, the cumulative effective hedged portion of fair
value change recognised in the income statements are amortised by the
effective interest method back to the revaluation reserve. If the hedged
item is derecognised, the unamortised cumulative effective hedged
portion of fair value change recognised in the income statement are
reclassified to revaluation reserve immediately.

(b)  Netinvestment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity;
a gain or loss on the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
income statement. Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement
upon disposal of the foreign operation as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.6  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and
commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all financial assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (e.g.
prepayment options or incentives relating to residential mortgage loans)
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes
fees, premiums or discounts and basis points paid or received between
parties to the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and
costs which represent an integral part of the effective yield.

For all hedge transactions where interest rate is the hedged risk, interest
income or interest expense from hedged instruments such as fixed rate
debt securities are disclosed on a net basis together with net interest
income/expense arising from the hedging instrument such as interest
rate swap.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised on the written down value using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Subsequent unwinding of the discount allowance is
recognised as interest income.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and
commission income and expense (Cont'd)

Fee income from services are recognized over time at a fixed or
variable price on a systematic basis over the life of the agreement
when the contract requires services to be provided over time such as
account service and credit card fees, or recognized at a point in time
under transaction-based arrangements when service has been fully
provided to the customer such as broking services and loan syndication
arrangement.

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition and
subsequently measured financial assets as: (i) at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVPL"), (i) at amortised cost (“AC") or (iii) at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”). The classification depends
on the entity’s business model for managing its financial instruments
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instruments, or the
election of fair value option. All financial assets are recognised initially at
fair value. Except for financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss, all transaction costs of financial assets are included in their initial
carrying amounts.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has three sub-categories: financial assets held for trading,
those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception, and
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which there
is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking is
classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

A financial asset can be designated at fair value through profit or loss,
if it meets one of the criteria set out below, and is so designated by the
Management:

o eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an accounting
mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring the
financial assets or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases;
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(1)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Cont’d)

o applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both
that is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the group is
provided internally on that basis to the Management; or

3 relates to financial assets containing one or more embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash flow resulting
from those financial assets.

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction
costs taken directly to the income statement, and are subsequently re-
measured at fair value.

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets
are reported in net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

(2) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met: (i) the financial assets
are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and (ii) the contractual
terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowances
for impairment losses. Interest income which includes the amortisation
of premium or discount is calculated using the effective interest
method and is recognised in the income statement. Gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(3)  Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Debt instruments are classified as subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income if both of the following
conditions are met: (i) the financial assets are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling, and (ii) the contractual terms of the financial assets
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are
initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealised gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investments are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, until the financial
asset is derecognised or impaired at which time the accumulated gain or
loss previously recognised in equity should be transferred to the income
statement. However, interest income which includes the amortisation of
premium and discount is calculated using the effective interest method
and is recognised in the income statement.

For equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial
recognition to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains or losses
in other comprehensive income without subsequent reclassification of
fair value gains or losses to the income statement even upon disposal
(non-recycling). Dividends on equity instruments classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in other operating
income when the Group’s right to receive payment is established. Equity
instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment.

The treatment of translation differences on fair value through other
comprehensive income securities is dealt with in Note 2.4.

2.9 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following
categories: (i) trading liabilities, (ii) financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss, (iii) deposits, debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue, subordinated liabilities, and other liabilities. All
financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at
fair value, and in the case of financial liability not at fair value through
profit or loss, plus or minus transaction costs.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.9 Financial liabilities (Cont'd)

(1) Trading liabilities

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It is

measured at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair
value are recognised in the income statement.

(2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss

A financial liability can be designated at fair value through profit or loss
if it is so designated at inception. A financial liability is so designated if
it meets one of the following criteria:

° eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an accounting
mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring the
financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them
on different bases;

. applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both
that is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the Group is
provided internally on that basis to the Management; or

o relates to financial liabilities containing one or more embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash flow resulting
from those financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair
value are recognised in the income statement.

(3) Deposit, debt securities and certificates of deposit
in issue, subordinated liabilities, and other liabilities

Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue,
subordinated liabilities, and other liabilities, other than those classified
as trading liabilities or designated at fair value through profit or loss are
carried at amortised cost. Any difference (if available) between proceeds
net of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period using the effective interest method.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts and undrawn loan
commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a contract between the holder and the
debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial
liabilities and reported under “Other accounts and provisions” in the
financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) an ECL provision and (i)
the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated
amortisation recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-
line basis. Any changes in the liability relating to financial guarantee
contracts are taken to the income statement.

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the
duration of the commitment, the Group is required to provide a loan
with pre-specified terms to the customer. These commitments are in the
scope of the expected credit losses requirements as set out in Note 2.14.

The expected credit losses provision for financial gurantees and loan
commitments are reported under “other accounts and provisions” in
the financial statements.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11 Recognition, derecognition and modification of
financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets subsequently measured at
FVPL, at FVOCI and AC are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and advances
and other financial assets are recognised when cash is advanced to
the counterparty. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
When the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the Group either
continues to recognise the transferred financial asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement if control remains or derecognise it if there is no
retained control. If the contractual cashflow of FVOCI or AC financial
instruments are renegotiated or modified, the modified contractual
cashflow should be discounted using the original effective interest rate,
and compared with the original amortised cost before impairment.
If the difference is material, the original financial instrument should
be derecognised and then re-recognised with the present value
aforementioned. Otherwise, the difference is adjusted to the original
carrying value and accounted for in the profit or loss.

Trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at FVPL, debt securities
and certificates of deposit in issue and subordinated liabilities are
recognised on the trade date. Deposits that are not designated at
FVPL are recognised when money is received from customers, other
liabilities are recognised when such obligations arise. Financial liabilities
are derecognised from the balance sheet when and only when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to
repurchase at a pre-determined price on a specified future date under
a repurchase agreement are referred to as repos. Securities and bills
purchased from a counterparty with an obligation to re-sell to the
counterparty at a pre-determined price on a specified future date under
a resale agreement are referred to as reverse repos.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11 Recognition, derecognition and modification of
financial instruments (Cont'd)

Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as Deposits and
balances from banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate,
at the actual amount of cash received from the counterparty. Financial
assets given as collateral for repurchase agreements are not derecognised
and are recorded as investment in securities or financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Reverse repos or securities
borrowing are initially recorded in the balance sheet as Cash and
balances with banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate,
at the actual amount of cash paid to the counterparty. Financial assets
received as collateral under reverse repurchase agreements are not
recognised on the balance sheet. The difference between sale and
repurchase price is recognised as interest income or interest expense
over the life of the agreements using the effective interest method.

2.12 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious
metals and certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in its principal market or the most advantageous
market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses the price within the bid-offer spread that is most
representative of the fair value of financial instruments, where
appropriate, includes using on the residual of the net offsetting risk
position of portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities in cases
the Group manages such groups of financial assets and liabilities
according to their net market risk exposures. Despite the Group
measures the fair value of these groups of financial instruments on
a net basis, the underlying financial assets and financial liabilities are
separately presented in the financial statements unless the offsetting
criterias are fulfilled.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.12 Fair value measurement (Cont'd)

If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses
valuation techniques, including the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants,
that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2.13 Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals. Precious
metals are initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Mark-to-market gains or losses on precious metals are included
in net trading gain/loss.

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost;

- debt securities measured at FVOCI; and

- loan commitments and financial guarantees issued, which are
not measured at FVPL.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including equity securities
measured at FVPL, equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling)
and derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments and financial guarantees outstanding,
expected cash shortfalls are measured as the difference between (i) the
contractual cash flows that would be due to the Group if the holder of
the loan commitment draws down on the loan/the beneficiary of the
financial guarantee claims on the financial guarantee and (ii) the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn down/the
financial guarantee is claimed.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.14

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted where the effect of
discounting is material. The maximum period considered when

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; or

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from
all possible default events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

The Group will account for expected credit losses within the next
12 months as Stage 1 when those financial instruments are initially
recognised; and to recognise lifetime expected credit losses as Stage
2 when there has been significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition. Lifetime expected credit losses will be recognised for credit-
impaired financial instruments as Stage 3 if one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred and interest will then be accrued net of
the impairment amount of the respective Stage 3 financial assets.

The Group considers that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to act on such as realising security (if any is
held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument (including
a loan commitment and financial guarantee) has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. The Group takes
into account following information, including but not limited to:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the group.

For loan commitments and financial guarantees, the date of initial
recognition for the purpose of assessing ECLs is considered to be the
date that the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment.
In assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition of a loan commitment and financial guarantee,
the Group considers changes in the risk of default occurring on the loan
and guarantee to which the loan commitment and financial guarantee
relates.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the
financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in income
statement. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments in
debt securities that are measured at FVOCI, for which the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
fair value reserve.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.14

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note 2.7 is calculated
based on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset unless the

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

financial asset is credit-impaired (Stage 3), in which case interest income
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

When a financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the
related allowance for impairment losses. Such assets are written off
after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount
of the loss has been determined. The assets written off are still subject
to enforcement activity. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment
losses decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised
impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the
income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial difference
in the terms are no longer considered to be past due but are treated as
new loans.

2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and non-
financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Potential indications of impairment may include significant
adverse changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment in which the assets operate or whether there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged”
against the period in which the fair value has been below its original
cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and non-
financial assets (Cont'd)

In the Bank’s balance sheet, impairment testing of the investment in
a subsidiary is also required upon receiving dividend from that entity
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of that entity
concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of that entity in the Bank’s balance sheet exceeds the carrying
amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its consolidated
balance sheet.

2.16 Investment properties

Properties (including right-of use assets arising from leases over
leasehold land on which properties are situated) that are held for long-
term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not
occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as investment
properties. Properties leased out within Group companies are classified
as investment properties in individual companies’ financial statements
and as premises in consolidated financial statements.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The work in progress item is stated at fair value. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income
statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
as a revaluation of premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment”. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous revaluation
loss or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income statement
up to the amount previously debited.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties (including right-of use assets arising from leases over
leasehold land on which properties are situated) are mainly branches
and office premises. Premises are shown at fair value based on
periodic, at least annually, valuations by external independent valuers
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is
restated to the revalued amount of the asset. In the intervening periods,
the directors review the carrying amount of premises, by reference to
the open market value of similar properties, and adjustments are made
when there has been a material change.

All plant and equipment and right-of-use assets other than leasehold
land are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item
is stated at cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the
measurement basis of its respective assets class. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises
are credited to the premises revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income. Decreases that offset previous increases of the
same individual asset are charged against premises revaluation reserve
through other comprehensive income; all other decreases are expensed
in the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to
the income statement up to the amount previously debited, and then
to the premises revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the
relevant portion of the premises revaluation reserve realised in respect
of previous valuations is released and transferred from the premises
revaluation reserve to retained earnings.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down
the cost or revalued amount of such assets over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

o Properties
Over the life of government land leases
. Plant and equipment

2 to 15 years

Right-of-use assets
Shorter of useful lives and lease terms

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at
the end of each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources
of information are considered to determine whether there is any
indication that properties, plant and equipment, are impaired. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement except where the asset is carried at valuation
and the impairment loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for
that same asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation decrease.
The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the
premises revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are
recognised in the income statement on date of disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to
retained earnings and is not reclassified to the income statement.

2.18 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use over
the contract period.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.18 Leases (Cont'd)

(1) As alessee

On the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term,
after taking into account payments to be made in the optional period
if the extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the effective interest method.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of
the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses except for
the following types of right-of-use asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment
property are carried at fair value; and

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold land and buildings that
do not meet the definition of investment property where the
Group is the registered owner of the leasehold interest are
carried at revalued amount.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.18 Leases (Cont'd)
(1) As alessee (Cont'd)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
income statement if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition
of investment property in ‘Properties, plant and equipment’ and
presents lease liabilities separately in “Other accounts and provisions”.

(2) Asalessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception
whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is
classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

The rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with original maturity less than
three months from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances
with banks and other financial institutions, short-term bills and notes
classified as investment securities and certificates of deposit.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.21 Employee benefits
(1)  Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
under either recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are
available to the Group’s employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance with the MPF
rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme costs are charged
to the income statement as incurred and represent contributions
payable by the Group to the schemes. Contributions made by the
Group that are forfeited by those employees who leave the ORSO
scheme prior to the full vesting of their entitlement to the contributions
are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions or to
meet its expenses under the trust deed of the ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered funds
separate from those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for unused annual leave and the amount of sick leave expected
to be paid as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end
of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved
annual leaves are non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s
entitlement is not used in full. Except for unexpired annual leaves, they
do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused entitlement on
leaving the Group.

(3)  Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are expected to be settled
longer than twelve months will be discounted if the amounts are
significant.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.21 Employee benefits (Cont'd)
(4) Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit plan which is unfunded. The cost
of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using
the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from actuarial gains and losses of the defined
benefit plan, is recognised immediately in the consolidated balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to income statement in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in income statement at the earlier of:
3 the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
o the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability. The Group recognises the following changes
in the net defined benefit obligation under “interest expenses” and
“operating expenses” in the consolidated income statement by
function:

o service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs,
gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements

o net interest expense

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted
or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period in each
jurisdiction where the Bank and the subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income, is recognised as a current income tax expense in the
period in which profits arise.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes (Cont'd)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment
provisions, depreciation of premises and equipment, and revaluation
of certain assets including at fair value through other comprehensive
income securities and premises. However, the deferred income tax is
not recognised if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of any unused tax
credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement
except for deferred income tax relating to fair value re-measurement
of securities at fair value through other comprehensive income
and revaluation of premises which are charged or credited to other
comprehensive income, in which case the deferred income tax is also
credited or charged to other comprehensive income and is subsequently
recognised in the income statement together with the realisation of the
deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment
property is determined based on the presumption that the revaluation
amount of such investment property will be recovered through sale with
the relevant tax rate applied.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.23 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair
value less costs to sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding
loans on the date of repossession, and the related loans and advances
together with the related impairment allowances are derecognised from
the balance sheet. Subsequently, repossessed assets are measured at
the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are reported
as “non-current assets held for sale” included in “Other assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities,
that result in its holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts and other institutions. These assets and any gains or losses arising
thereon are excluded from these financial statements, as they are not
assets of the Group.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as an
asset.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered
to be related to the Group if that party (i) controls, jointly controls or
has significant influence over the Group; (ii) is @ member of the same
financial reporting group, such as parents, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries; (iii) is an associate or a joint venture of the Group or parent
reporting group; (iv) is a key management personnel of the Group or
parents; (v) is subject to common control with the Group; (vi) is an
entity in which a person identified in (iv) controls; and (vii) provides key
management personnel services to the Group or its parent. Related
parties may be individuals or entities.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Areas
susceptible to changes in essential estimates and judgements, which
affect the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, are set out below.
The effect of changes to either the key assumptions or other estimation
uncertainties will be presented below if it is practicable to determine. It
is possible that actual results may require material adjustments to the
estimates referred to below.

3.1 Impairment requirements on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across all
categories of financial assets (except for financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss) requires judgement, in particular, the estimation
of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values
when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of
factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Group’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a
number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable
inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that
are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

o The Group's internal credit grading model, which assigns PDs to
the individual grades.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.1 Impairment requirements on financial assets (Cont'd)

3 The Group’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets
should be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the qualitative
assessment.

. The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed
on a collective basis.

o Development of ECL models, including the determination of
macroeconomic scenarios and the effect on PDs, EADs and
LGDs.

3 Forward-looking macroeconomic factor forecasts maintain a

consistent Group’s view on future macroeconomic environment.

o Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and
their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs into
the ECL models.

It has been the Group’s policy to regularly review its models in the
context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.

3.2  Fair values of derivative financial instruments and
other financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments and other financial
instruments that are not quoted in active markets are determined
by using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include
discounted cash flows analysis and models with built-in functions
available in externally acquired financial analysis or risk management
systems widely used by the industry such as option pricing models.
To the extent practical, the models use observable data. In addition,
valuation adjustments may be adopted if factors such as credit risk
are not considered in the valuation models. Management judgement
and estimates are required for the selection of appropriate valuation
parameters, assumptions and modeling techniques. Further details will
be discussed in Note 5.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.3 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the estimation
of available tax credits and the possibility to recover such deferred tax
assets recognised.

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a
variety of business activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk,
market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity
risk. This note summarises the Group’s exposures to these risks, as well
as its objectives, risk management governance structure, policies and
processes for managing and the methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover
all business processes and ensure various risks are properly managed
and controlled in the course of conducting business. The Group has a
robust risk management organisational structure with a comprehensive
set of policies and procedures to identify, measure, evaluate, monitor,
report, and control various risks that may arise. These risk management
policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and updated to reflect
changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups of risk
takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the
highest decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate
responsibility for risk management. The Board, with the assistance of
its committees, has the primary responsibility for the formulation of
risk management strategies and risk appetite, establishing a sound risk
culture and risk management system to implement these strategies.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Financial risk management framework (Cont'd)

The Risk Management Committee, a standing committee established by
the Board of Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group’s various
types of risks, reviewing and approving high-level risk management
policies and monitoring their implementation, recommending senior risk
management organisational framework to the Board, including credit
approval authority for the Chief Executive and scope of credit approval
for the Credit Approval Committee. The Risk Management Committee
would refer any specific transaction to the Board if it is deemed so
significant that Board approval is desirable. The Risk Management
Committee, from the risk management viewpoint assesses whether
incentives created by the remuneration system are aligned with the
risk culture and risk appetite, and whether remuneration awards
appropriately reflect the level of risk-taking and consequences. It also
assists to fostering a strong risk culture within the Group. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing the
internal control system.

The Credit Approval Committee is responsible for reviewing or
approving credit business or credit management related matters within
the authorisation granted by the Board of Directors, monitoring the
credit activities of the Group and reporting to the Risk Management
Committee regularly. The Chief Executive is responsible for organising
and implementing the risk management strategies and objectives
established by the Board of Directors, managing various risks and
ensuring significant risk exposures are properly managed.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management
responsibilities. Business units act as the first line of defence while risk
management units, which are independent from the business units,
are responsible for the day-to-day management of different kinds
of risks. Risk management units have the primary responsibilities for
drafting, reviewing and updating various risk management policies and
procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems,
including establishment of an organisational structure that sets clear
lines of authority and responsibility for monitoring compliance with
policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide
sufficient independence of the control functions from the business
areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties throughout the
organisation which helps to promote an appropriate internal control
environment.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the
Group has a comprehensive product development and risk monitoring
system where roles and responsibilities of all related units are clearly
defined and proper due diligence processes on product development
are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the
Management, respective product management units are responsible
for formulating business and product development plans, and
proceeding to specific product development activities. The strategic
development unit shall ensure the plans are aligned with the Group’s
overall strategies. Units that are responsible for risk management, legal,
compliance and finance, etc. are accountable for risk assessment and
review.

Apart from product development, respective product management units
work closely with relevant risk evaluating units to identify and assess the
risks of new products. Risk evaluating units conduct independent review
on the risk assessment results and the corresponding risk management
measures. Products can only be launched upon completion of the
product due diligence process to the satisfaction of all risk evaluating
units.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products to our
customers. All new treasury products require approval from a specialised
committee before launching.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to
or unwilling to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the
trading book and banking book, as well as from on- and off-balance
sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally from lending, trade
finance and treasury businesses.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk
management policies and procedures, and appropriate credit risk
limits to manage and control credit risk that may arise. These policies,
procedures and credit risk limits are regularly reviewed and updated to
cope with changes in market conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisational structure establishes a clear set of authority
and responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures
and limits.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1  Credit risk (Cont'd)
Credit risk management framework (Cont'd)

The Credit and Loans Management Committee, a management
committee authorised by the Chief Executive, is responsible for the
implementation of the credit risk management strategies as well
as the approval of credit policies. It also monitors the Group’s loan
portfolio, quality of credit asset and risk concentration level. Different
units of the Group have their respective credit risk management
responsibilities. Business units act as the first line of defence. The risk
management units, which are independent from the business units,
are responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks and have
the primary responsibilities for providing an independent due diligence
through identifying, measuring, evaluating, monitoring, reporting and
controlling credit risk to ensure an effective checks and balances, as well
as drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk management policies
and procedures. They report directly to the Chief Risk Officer, Credit
and Loans Management Committee, Chief Executive, Credit Approval
Committee and Risk Management Committee.

Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited (“NCB (China)”) sets up
independent risk monitoring teams to monitor credit risk, and submits
management information and reports to the Bank on a regular basis.

The Board of Directors is the ultimate source of credit authority. The
Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the Credit
Approval Committee and the Chief Executive. Based on management
needs, the Chief Executive can further delegate to the credit-related
subordinates or committee within the limit authorised by the Board
of Directors. The Group sets the limits of credit approval authority
according to the credit business nature, rating, the level of transaction
risk, and the size of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been
continuously revising its credit strategies and conducting rigorous
reviews on the concerned portfolios.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

Credit risk measurement and control (Cont'd)

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according
to the level of risk associated with the customer, counterparty or
transaction. All credit applications are subject to thorough risk
assessment and proper approval. In general, most of the credit
applications will be reviewed and assessed by independent officer(s)
of risk management unit(s) before approval, with exceptions given to
designated advances which satisfy certain conditions. After funding
being drawn, these designated advances will be (randomly) reviewed by
designated unit(s) which is(are) independent from the front line business
units. Obligor ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility
ratings (in terms of loss given default) are assigned to credit applications
for non-retail exposures to support credit approval. Retail internal rating
systems are deployed in the risk assessment of retail credit transactions,
including small business retail exposures, residential mortgage loans,
personal loans, etc. Loan grades, obligor and facility ratings as well as
loss estimates (if applicable) are used to support credit approval.

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates
(if applicable) to support monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit
risk. For non-retail exposures, more frequent rating review and closer
monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For retail exposures,
monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are used for credit
monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is required
for obligors being identified under high-risk pools.

Regular or ad hoc credit risk management information reports are
provided to the Management, Credit Approval Committee, Risk
Management Committee and the Board of Directors to facilitate their
continuous monitoring of credit risk.

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry,
geography, customer and counterparty. The Group monitors changes
in counterparty credit risk, quality of the credit portfolio and credit risk
concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into
five categories with reference to the HKMA's guidelines, as below:
“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is in current meeting its
repayment obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is
not in doubt.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1  Credit risk (Cont'd)

Credit risk measurement and control (Cont'd)
Advances (Cont’d)

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing
difficulties which may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not
expected at this stage but could occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a
definable weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and
the Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking
into account the net realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all
collection options (such as the realisation of collateral or the institution
of legal proceedings) have been exhausted.

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities, the obligor ratings or external credit
ratings, assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting
on customer/security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk
associated with the investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer
limits to manage the credit risk involved and follows the same approval
and control processes as applied for advances. On-going monitoring
and stop-loss procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with
counterparties and also from derivatives transactions in any situation
where a payment in cash, securities or equities is made in the failure of
a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement
limits are established for each counterparty or customer to cover all
settlement risk arising from the Group’s market transactions on any
single day.

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented
in the credit risk management policies and procedures which cover
acceptance criteria, validity of collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut
ratio, valuation and insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a regular
basis, though the frequency and the method used varies with the type
of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the underlying
credit. The Group has established a mechanism to update the value of
its main type of collateral, real estate properties, with the use of public
indices on a portfolio basis. If necessary, collateral is insured with the
Group as the primary beneficiary.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements
(Cont’d)

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the
guarantor’s financial condition, credit history and ability to meet
obligations.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not hold any collateral that
it was permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the
borrower (2020: Nil).

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL") Methodology

For impairment assessment, an impairment model is introduced
in compliance with HKFRS 9, it requires the recognition of ECL for
financial instrument held at amortized cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income. Under HKFRS 9, ECL is assessed in three stages
and the financial assets and commitments are classified in one of the
three stages.

Stage 1: if the financial instrument is not credit-impaired upon
origination and the credit risk on the financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the loss allowance is
measured at an amount up to 12-month ECL;

Stage 2: if the financial instrument is not credit-impaired upon
origination but the credit risk on the financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL;

Stage 3: if the financial instrument is credit-impaired, with one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred, the loss allowance is also
measured at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL.

The Group leverages the parameters implemented under internal
models where feasible and available to assess ECL. For the portfolios
without models, all other reasonable and supportable information such
as historical information, relevant loss experience or proxies are utilized.
The measurement of ECL is the product of the financial instrument’s
probability of default (“PD"), loss given default (“LGD") and exposures
at default (“EAD") discounted at the effective interest rate to the
reporting date.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1  Credit risk (Cont'd)
Expected Credit Loss (“ECL"”) Methodology (Cont'd)

ECL is measured at an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
The Group adopts three economic scenarios in the ECL measurement
to meet the requirements of HKFRS 9. The “Base case” scenario
represents a most likely outcome and the other two scenarios, referred
to as “Upside” scenario and “Downside” scenario, represent less likely
outcomes which are more optimistic or more pessimistic compared to
Base case scenario.

The Base case scenario is made reference to macroeconomics forecast
provided by internal economic research unit. For the Upside scenario
and Downside scenarios, the Group makes reference to the historical
macroeconomics data.

The macroeconomic factors make for the major operating countries/
regions include: HK GDP growth rate, HK Inflation, HK unemployment
rate, HK Property price growth, China GDP growth rate and China
unemployment rate are applied in the economic scenarios. These
macroeconomic factors are considered to be important to the Group’s
ECL in statistical analysis and business opinion.

The probability assigned for each scenario reflects the Group’s view of
the economic environment, which implements the Group’s prudent
and consistent credit strategy of ensuring the adequacy of impairment
allowance. A higher probability is assigned to the Base case scenario to
reflect the most likely outcome and a lower probability is assigned to
the Upside and Downside scenarios to reflect the less likely outcomes.
The probabilities assigned are reviewed each quarter.

The ECL methodology has been validated by independent Model
Validation Unit and approved by the Risk Management Committee. The
Management is responsible to review model performance and changes
in ECL.
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4.1

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL"”) Methodology (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Credit risk (Cont'd)

: Summary of credit risk by stage distribution at 31 December 2021 is, as

follows:
2021
REAE
Gross carrying amount
FHRER
RATREM
SRBBNER
Balances and
placements ERR
with banks Hftnikg
and other Advances SRRE HitEE BEER ERAR
financial and other Financial Other Financial Loan g
institutions accounts  investments assets guarantees commitments Total
BYTR BETT BT BETR BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E—AE Stage 1 66,843,102 286,848,521 137,365,510 1,196,997 53,639,221 134,471,585 680,364,936
Eli=12 Stage 2 - 4,772,799 - - 41,162 283,292 5,097,253
FE[EER Stage 3 - 4,429,091 592,486 7,228 - - 5,028,805
pos] Total 66,843,102 296,050,411 137,957,996 1,204,225 53,680,383 134,754,877 690,490,994
2020
FREAE
Gross carrying amount
FRRER
RITREM
SRMEMLE
Balances and
placements R R
with banks HifRIA
and other Advances SRRE HiEE BIBER Bk
financial and other Financial Other Financial Loan Bs
institutions accounts investments assets guarantees  commitments Total
BB BT BETT BT BETT BB BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-RE& Stage 1 58,106,346 274,747,138 132,366,431 3,390,840 39,793,209 127,006,157 635,410,121
EREE Stage 2 = 2,973,052 536,138 4,637 5,868 563,061 4,082,756
F=RE Stage 3 75,380 2,494,903 - 3,830 - - 2,574,113
bk Total 58,181,726 280,215,093 132,902,569 3,399,307 39,799,077 127,569,218 642,066,990

7o)
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1  Credit risk (Cont'd)
The internal rating and PD estimation process

The Group leverages the internal rating models where possible, with
adjustments to incorporate forward looking information and the HKFRS
9 stage classification of the exposure to determine the PDs for HKFRS
9 ECL calculations. This is repeated for each economic scenario as
appropriate. The Group uses various internal rating models for its key
portfolios in which its wholesale customers or retail accounts are rated
or assigned to specific internal grades or risk pools. The internal rating
models incorporate both qualitative and quantitative information and,
in addition to information specific to the borrower, utilise supplemental
information such as borrower’s/account’s behaviour.

Wholesale lending

For wholesale lending, the repayment ability of borrowers are assessed
by designated divisions of the Group. The credit risk assessment is
based on a credit rating model that takes into account various financial
information and qualitative information (such as management quality,
industry risks, group connection, negative warning signals).

Retail lending

Retail lending comprises personal loans, overdrafts and retail mortgages.
These products along with and some of the less complex small business
lending are rated by automated scorecards or statistical PD models.

(A) Credit exposures

The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure
to the Group without taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements. For on-balance sheet assets, the maximum
exposure to credit risk equals their carrying amount. For letters of
guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum
amount that the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees are
called upon. For loan commitment and other credit related liabilities, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the committed
facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and
their financial effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial
assets are as follows.

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

Collateral is generally not sought on these exposures in consideration of
the counterparty nature. However, other mitigation will be taken.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(A) Credit exposures (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial
investments

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred
agreement for documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It
provides the contractual framework under which dealing activities of
over-the-counter (“OTC") derivative transactions are conducted, and
sets out close-out netting provisions upon termination following the
occurrence of an event of default or a termination event. In addition, if
deemed necessary, Credit Support Annex (“CSA") will be included to
form part of the Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA,
margin is passed from one counterparty to another, as appropriate, to
mitigate the exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on pages 105 to 106.
Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments
are collateralised to the extent considered appropriate by the Group
taking account of the risk assessment of individual exposures. The
collateral coverage of advances to customers is analysed on pages
244 to 245. The components and nature of contingent liabilities and
commitments are disclosed in Note 36. Regarding the commitments
that are unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group
would assess the necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the
credit quality of a borrower deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and
commitments, 9.41% (2020: 11.37%) was covered by collateral as at
31 December 2021.



RAFSER AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SEERERE®

41 FEERKE)

(B) HEFREMERE

IREUR EE B AT BB R R ARRIRE SRR
mE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are
summarised by product type as follows:

y

—~r

2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
EEER Advances to customers
BEA Personal
— &8 — Mortgages 33,254,925 29,167,672
— AR — Credit cards 120,205 57,024
— Hith — Others 29,872,625 28,633,974
N Corporate
— EEEXK — Commercial loans 223,264,723 214,086,093
— B5mE — Trade finance 9,050,383 7,777,808
295,562,861 279,722,571
e S Trade bills 487,550 390,401
RIT R E M BB R Advances to banks and other financial institutions - 102,121
296,050,411 280,215,093

BRBEIHAZER  FEASHFECBIRLR
B8 - APIFaMER - AEROHEEZER - &
Hep—RoMERC AR RIAER - RIPIEa R
E o AEHEEZ EREEMERAREERBA -
BRERARRETER  IERX-BEBHERAER
MZHEERRE - TFIERRE -

ERE-HEHAZREFEREORKRESREETH
NWEE  AEREHRAERRERE - ERBER
EHETE A5 =R - MRZ AR AEEIBIORINA L
B RERAFREBEREXNAEENGES - K
SERREER/REER -

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when
the principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances
repayable by regular instalments are classified as overdue when
an instalment payment is past due and remains unpaid. Advances
repayable on demand are classified as overdue either when a demand
for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has not
been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances
have continuously exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the
borrower.

Advances are credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows have occurred.
Credit-impaired advances are classified as Stage 3. The Group identifies
the advances as impaired if the exposure is past due for more than 90
days or the borrower is unlikely to pay in full for the credit obligations
to the Group
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4., SHREREE®

41 SERREE)

(B) AREMRAMEEE)

@)  FFIEABIERER

pacpe
S A

FEERRERBHETIRABEERBIAFAT

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

(@) Advances neither overdue nor credit-impaired

Advances that were neither overdue nor credit-impaired are analysed by
internal credit grade as follows:

2021
EEBE RS T
=i Special Substandard 5t
Pass mention or below Total
BT T BT T BT T BEET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
XEER Advances to customers
[EPN Personal
— %% — Mortgages 32,918,723 31,905 - 32,950,628
— A — Credit cards 118,817 - - 118,817
— Efth — Others 29,568,668 35,306 - 29,603,974
NG Corporate
— BEEX — Commercial loans 215,381,175 3,501,757 - 218,882,932
— BE5mE — Trade finance 8,871,389 153,927 - 9,025,316
286,858,772 3,722,895 - 290,581,667
B 52K Trade bills 487,550 - - 487,550
287,346,322 3,722,895 - 291,069,217
2020
EERPE R IAT
a1 Special Substandard “aEt
Pass mention or below Total
BT BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REEX Advances to customers
A Personal
— %18 — Mortgages 28,896,196 20,649 — 28,916,845
— 2R — Credit cards 54,923 = = 54,923
— Ef — Others 28,372,829 32,055 - 28,404,884
NG| Corporate
— BEERK — Commercial loans 209,852,398 935,832 = 210,788,230
— BImE — Trade finance 7,433,123 27,079 = 7,460,202
274,609,469 1,015,615 = 275,625,084
B 555 Trade bills 390,401 = = 390,401
274,999,870 1,015,615 = 276,015,485

e
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SRIERERE @)

(B)

FERBE (&)
HEHRAMBE (F)
BHIARANSFREE

BBMARERREERIFTNAT

4.
4.1
()
(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Credit risk (Cont'd)

Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

Advances overdue but not credit-impaired

The gross amount of advances overdue but not credit-impaired is
analysed as follows:

2021
31@A 618 A
BEFBB BEFREB
BH3EA 618 A 15
HLUT  Overdue for Overdue
Overdue six months for one gt
for three orless  year or less HBB1F
months but over but over Overdue for F 5
or less three months six months over one year Total
BT T BT T BEET T BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFER Advances to customers
BEA Personal
— %15 — Mortgages 224,379 - - - 224,379
— EHF — Credit cards 725 - - - 725
— Efth — Others 254,205 - - - 254,205
NG| Corporate
— EEER — Commercial loans 65,611 - - - 65,611
— Bo5mE — Trade Finance 7,183 - - - 7,183
552,103 - - - 552,103
2020
B R B A
31EH 6 1&H
B ERE BT EERE
#1538 A 618 A 14
AT Overdue for Overdue
Overdue six months for one I HA
for three or less year or less FHiB 1 F
months but over but over Overdue for st
orless  three months six months  over one year Total
BT T ST T BEET T BEET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
XFEEM Advances to customers
EA Personal
— %18 — Mortgages 182,320 = = = 182,320
— ERF — Credit cards 1,271 = = = 1,271
— Efth — Others 204,932 = = = 204,932
NG| Corporate
— AEEWN — Commercial loans 1,316,182 = = - 1,316,182
1,704,705 - - - 1,704,705
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4., SHREREE®

41 SERREE)
(B) HEFNREMEEE)

©  BEEHN

EERIBRREE FIZERBRIATAT

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(B)
(©) Impaired advances

Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by product

type as follows:

2020
BHmATE IR E
HWER Market BER Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
XFEEX Advances to customers
BEA Personal
— %15 - Mortgages 79,918 210,821 68,507 191,615
— EAR — Credit cards 663 - 830 =
— Hith — Others 14,446 35,079 24,158 44 955
NG Corporate
— BEER — Commercial loans 4,316,180 3,979,170 1,981,681 554,497
— BH5mE — Trade finance 17,884 - 317,606 2,024
4,429,091 4,225,070 2,392,782 793,091
SRITRE M pEER Advances to banks and
other financial institutions - - 102,121 -
4,429,091 4,225,070 2,494,903 793,091
FE=[EER 2 REEE Impairment allowances —
Stage 3 2,532,041 1,804,583
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$°000
MM EERRESN Current market value of collateral held
BEFERZERMTE against the covered portion of
such advances to customers 4,225,070 793,091
FHEEFEREEZEZRFER  Covered portion of such advances to customers 1,314,864 552,798
PR EEEREEZ 2BFER  Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 3,114,227 1,839,984
R EEIAREZ ZiR7T/  Uncovered portion of such advances to banks and
E i mEE R other financial institutions - 102,121
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4. TREREE® 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

41 EERRE) 4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) HEFRAEMEKEE) (B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

(©) JAEE (; f"%) © Impaired advances (Cont’d)

BEEEEZER DM ER 2 ERREE - The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the

value of collateral in respect of such advances.

2021612 A31H  BAEREBEZE SHRIE(2020%F : As at 31 December 2021, there were no impaired trade bills (2020: Nil).
') -
RESDRIREZEPERSTHT Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REDHIREZ Gross classified or impaired
EEENRREE advances to customers 4,429,091 2,392,782
HEABIRBELEPER Gross classified or impaired advances to
RMEBHE P ERAERELE customers as a percentage of gross
advances to customers 1.50% 0.86%
F=PEBR ZRBELEE Impairment allowances — Stage 3 2,532,041 1,702,462
RESHENBBECEPERZEEASEEREES Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which
BRDRE] - [RBIKTEE] - HE=FEEROER are either classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the

Group’s classification of loan quality, or classified as Stage 3.
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4., SHREREE® 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

41 SERREE)

(B) HEFRAMEEE) (B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

(@)  BHEB3IEAZ

BB EAZERER

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

B (d) Advances overdue for more than three months
DR

analysed as follows:

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is

2021 2020
HEFER HEFER
WEHHL HWEEH S
% of gross % of gross
€%  advances to Gk advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT T BT T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
EFEEREEE Gross advances to customers
B which have been overdue for:
— A3 EAE — six months or less but
THEB 6 1E A over three months 22,362 0.01% 31,102 0.01%
— HBiBe AR — one year or less but
TiEB@A 14 over six months 1,361,263 0.46% 94,566 0.03%
— BiB1F — over one year 690,243 0.23% 259,019 0.09%
mAEEBB3IEA 2 E R Advances overdue for over
three months 2,073,868 0.70% 384,687 0.14%
F=PEERZBEZEE Impairment allowances — Stage 3 1,288,558 258,891
2021 2020
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REMBERRESN Current market value of collateral held
EFERZERMmME against the covered portion of such
advances to customers 1,054,616 250,172
Ll EEEREEZ 2 EFER  Covered portion of such advances to customers 234,607 103,029
FiUSEEIRREE 2P EF  Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 1,839,261 281,658

BRERIREEFNERREEBREARREFA
THREAEENREREEET  EAAREFETH

EEHIBWE -

Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally
represented by charges over business assets such as commercial and

residential premises for corporate loans and mortgages over residential

properties for personal loans.

_ M2021F12A318 R ERHBERAIEACESRE As at 31 December 2021, there were no trade bills overdue for more
1% (20204 : £&) than three months (2020: Nil).
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4. SHREREE@ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 FEERKE) 4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEFRAEMEKEE) (B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)
(e) B E (e) Rescheduled advances
2021 2020
HEFEXN MEFER
HWEHS FEECE AN d
% of gross % of gross
€%  advances to k| advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
CEARFERFE Rescheduled advances to
(BEFRBER customers net of amounts
[HAE3EA 2 included in “Advances overdue
ik #5) for more than three months” 861,137 0.29% 90,110 0.03%
LERERTIIERF R AP R sk H B Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured
Mo MEIRITHEEFE RS ENERETEIZE or renegotiated between the bank and borrowers because of
o M EREEFTHERGR (BEFN S SEREH deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or of the inability

MR) BRI - BT EFNGT BB 2K EAE RN of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule, and the
wAEA3MEA - AeER [aHER3EA 2ER] revised repayment terms, either of interest or the repayment period, are
A ° “non-commercial” to the Group. Rescheduled advances, which have
been overdue for more than three months under the revised repayment
terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than three months”.
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4. ZRIRAREE@®
41 FERRE)

(B) HEFRAMAEEE)
O BEFEHESE
BRI S REEReE

THEREPERZMBERIFEAMERBERZHF
P - YEBMEREBEAR - EXFPERZER
AFESERFHEWTR - AIRERSEREEZRA

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

) Concentration of advances to customers

Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers

The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based
on the locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the
transfer of risk. For an advance to customer guaranteed by a party

ZPTTEH © situated in a country different from the customer, the risk will be
transferred to the country of the guarantor.

EEEHNAESE Gross advances to customers
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 186,752,209 177,130,215
R A Mainland of China 96,907,944 87,480,107
HAth Others 11,902,708 15,112,249
295,562,861 279,722,571

BEFBAARRRIEE —TE B R BEER

Impairment allowances — stage 1 and 2 in respect of the gross advances

to customers

2021 2020
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 687,609 653,261
PR A, Mainland of China 736,748 550,306
Hh Others 56,618 121,771
1,480,975 1,325,338

ERIE Overdue advances
2021 2020
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 635,665 1,940,582
rh B (A i Mainland of China 1,074,114 1,786,220
Hth Others 1,064,339 9,084
2,774,118 3,735,886
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4. ZRIBEREE@®
41 FERRE)

(B) HEHRAMEE#)
O EPEHESE (&)

ZwERED B EPEREE(B)

BBEIE S EE =B 2 ol (B 2E 1

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (Cont'd)

Impairment allowances — Stage 3 in respect of the overdue advances

2021 2020
BT T BETIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BB Hong Kong 216,517 287,554
R R A Mainland of China 681,012 1,060,965
Hi Others 516,360 =
1,413,889 1,348,519

BB EE —TE B2 B EE R

Impairment allowances — Stage 1 and 2 in respect of the overdue

advances

2021 2020
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 1,875 33,057
R B A3 Mainland of China 7,478 7,252
Hith Others 42 15
9,395 40,324

KFE DA R E B A Classified or impaired advances
2021 2020
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 1,443,185 539,116
R s Mainland of China 1,951,421 1,850,893
Hth Others 1,034,485 2,773
4,429,091 2,392,782
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4. ZRIRAREE@®

41 FERRE)

(B) HEHRAMEE &)

O EPEHESE (&)
BRI S REEREE ()

BIFE D IR BB B EE =R 2 BB E

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1  Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (Cont'd)

Impairment allowances — Stage 3 in respect of the classified or impaired
advances

2021 2020
BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 799,072 297,395
R A, Mainland of China 1,216,609 1,405,067
Hi Others 516,360 =
2,532,041 1,702,462

CQ WEEE (C)  Repossessed assets

RERN » AEBERBHIEM RTERDEERMEUS
W12 431 AANEE - ERBKEEESLN

During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security. The nature and carrying value of these assets

I held as at 31 December are summarised as follows:
2021 2020
BET T T IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEXUES Commercial properties - 1,372
FEWHE Residential properties - 1,683
Efth Others 1,317 =
1,317 3,055

AEER2021F 12 A3 BFANKEEEZ GES
78 #5 13,720,000 7T (2020 £ = ## 26,151,000 7T ) °
EEEASERBYHKIFNGEEKIEFIENY
(@pE R s EE AR EAEERNRE)
¥ A RARERETT 2RI DR -

BUREEENRRENRIFER  AEE/RIBEN

PATRZIT7 Bz
- HENEER
= EREHEE—HHEER

-

73

ZHHEBER

The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the Group
as at 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$13,720,000 (2020:
HK$26,151,000). The repossessed assets comprise properties in respect
of which the Group has acquired access or control (e.g. through court
proceedings or voluntary actions by the proprietors concerned) for
release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.

When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash, the
Group may consider the following alternatives:

- adjusting the selling prices

- selling the loans together with the assets

- arranging loan restructuring
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4., SHREREE®

41 SERRE)

(D) HERITREAMEHEBIZERFH

TRAERTREMEREENIFARRERREZ

REERRIFFRIN 12 A 31 BIRAT RS 2 SHR AT -

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions

The following tables present an analysis of balances and placements

with banks and other financial institutions that are neither overdue nor
credit-impaired as at 31 December by rating agency designation.

2021
A3 LT

Aaa £ A3 Lower AR F )

Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BT T BT T BT T BET T

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

AR ERTT Central banks 21,546,067 - - 21,546,067
RIT R EA S m S Banks and other

financial institutions 29,637,118 8,586,788 7,073,129 45,297,035

51,183,185 8,586,788 7,073,129 66,843,102

2020
A3LATN

Aaa ZE A3 Lower 34 ast

Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BT BT T BETIT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AR ERTT Central banks 17,678,912 = = 17,678,912
IRIT R H At & phik s Banks and other

financial institutions 27,777,302 4,300,552 8,349,580 40,427,434

45,456,214 4,300,552 8,349,580 58,106,346
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4., SHREREE® 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 [FERRE) 4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(D) FHEHRITREMEHEENLZGRIZS () (D) Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions (Cont'd)

TRAERITREME REENBASERRE & The following tables present an analysis of overdue or credit-impaired
BRIRAFHIN 12 A 31 BIRETARMRE 2 ST R DT © balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions as
at 31 December by rating agency designation.

2021
A3 LT
AaaEA3 Lower E s F )
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIT R EM D RS Banks and other
financial institutions - - - -
2020
A3LAT
Aaa E A3 Lower TR 45T
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT T BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIT R EAM S mik s Banks and other
financial institutions - - 75,380 75,380
- - 75,380 75,380
2021 2020
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BAEIRIT R EAth S BB Impairment allowances — Stage 1 and 2
EERRIFRIEE —AN in respect of the balances and placements
FRER ZREER with banks and other financial institutions 561 1,977
FAEIRTT R E A & RUEIEEY Impairment allowances — Stage 3
ERRTFRIEE=[BER 2 in respect of the balances and placements
B with banks and other financial institutions - 75,380

e
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4., SHREREE®
41 SERRE)
(E) [EXREZEREFE

TRBAEITHR

DT 2 B RES R I kB AR E (A
EEZITHROBERT - AISRETANFERS -

The following tables present an analysis of the carrying values of debt
securities and certificates of deposit by issue rating. In the absence of

such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

2021

Aa1ZE Aa3 AMZA3 A3UT F S @t
Aaa Aa1to Aa3 A1to A3  Lower than A3 Unrated Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RAEE A At fair value through other
i 2ElE comprehensive income 2,709,026 35,140,804 79,140,470 14,515,620 5,859,590 137,365,510
B AR & At amortised cost - - - - - _
IARESLETAER  Atfair value through profit or loss - 7,252,326 - - 759,598 8,011,924
&t Total 2,709,026 42,393,130 79,140,470 14,515,620 6,619,188 145,377,434

2020

Aal EAa3 ATEA3 A3BAT LIS @t
Aaa Aal to Aa3 Al1to A3 Lower than A3 Unrated Total
BT BB BETT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ARREREEA At fair value through other
Ht2Eks comprehensive income 6,693,660 32,812,662 73,128,592 11,978,982 5,442 141 130,056,037
DB AR At amortised cost = = 1,884,988 = = 1,884,988
INARES{LATAEE  Atfair value through profit or loss - 6,497,759 - = - 6,497,759
st Total 6,693,660 39,310,421 75,013,580 11,978,982 5,442,141 138,438,784
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4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit
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4. SEERERERE® 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 SERREE) 4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(E) EEEBFREFEZE) (E)  Debt securities and certificates of deposit (Cont'd)

TRAIEBESEAREZ BEBESRFRER 124 The following tables present an analysis of debt securities and

31 BIRBATARZ AT - EEEATRNELT » 8l certificates of deposit neither overdue nor credit-impaired as at 31

SREIT ANRRS - December by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the
ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

2021
Aa1 Z Aa3 MEA3 AL BB @t
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1to A3 Lower than A3 Unrated Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IAARER LA At fair value through other
2 E comprehensive income 2709026 35140804 79140470 14515620 5859500 137,365,510
AR AR 2 At amortised cost - - - - - -
IARESLATAESE  Atfairvalue through profit or loss - 7,252,326 - - 728,326 7,980,652

2,709,026 42,393,130 79,140,470 14,515,620 6,587,916 145,346,162

2020
Aal ZAa3 AZA3 AL EIR @t
Aaa Aaf to Aa3 Al1to A3 Lowerthan A3 Unrated Total
BETT Vit e BETT BB BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AARER LA At fair value through other
AthZEYER comprehensive income 6,693,660 32,812,662 73,128,592 11,978,982 5442141 130,056,037
DERRAEE At amortised cost - - 1,884,988 - - 1,884,988
INALES{LATABE  Atfair value through profit or loss - 6,497,759 - - - 6,497,759

6,693,660 39,310,421 75,013,580 11,978,982 5442141 138,438,784
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4. SEERERE®

41 FEERKE)

() [EBEFRFZHNEE)
TRAEAREXANERBEL 2 BTIRIN - &
EEATIRNERT - BIGIRBITARTRBRE -

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (Cont'd)

The following tables present an analysis of credit-impaired or overdue
debt securities by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the
ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

2021
REE
Carrying values
He:
RiHHEER
Of which
ABUT accumulated
Aal E Aa3 AMZA3 Lower BTR @  impairment
Aaa  AaftoAa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total  allowances
BT BT BT BT BT BT BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IAARER(EIABE  Atfair value through profit or loss - - - - 31,212 31,212 -
WRABEEEA Debt securities at fair value through
A2 ERRZ other comprehensive income
fEHES - - - - - - 182,098
Hep: 2EHAEERE Of which accumulated imparment
allowances - - - - 182,098 182,098
2020
REE
Carrying values
A
2 HEER
Of which
A3 AR accumulated
Aal & Aa3 AMEA3 Lower &R 5 impairment
Aaa Aal to Aa3 Alt0 A3 than A3 Unrated Total allowances
BRI BETT BETT BETT BETT BRI BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WRAEE(E AR Debt securities at fair value through
2EMEZERES  other comprehensive income - - - - - - 181,024
i 2R EERE Of which accumulated impairment
allowances - - - - 181,024 181,024

©2021 12 A318 ' A RESKBH 2 FRE
(2020 4F : 4&) o

As at 31 December 2021, there were no impaired or overdue certificates
of deposit (2020: Nil).
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4. ZRIRAREE@®

41 FERRE)

(F) 2019 BHREEREEEREBEIZE
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(F) The impact of COVID-19 on credit risk

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic which spread across the world,
the Group actively facilitated the relief measures rolled out by the
Central People’s Government and the Government of the HKSAR during
the pandemic and assisted customers affected by the pandemic. Please
refer to Business Review of Additional Information for brief explanations
of the Group’s relief measures.

The Group continues to manage its business operations during the
pandemic, and closely monitor and reduce the impact of the pandemic
on customers. For loans and advances, the Group comprehensively
strengthens and enhances pre-approval and post-lending risk
management practice, adopts appropriate measures in response to the
latest economic conditions, strengthens portfolio and customer level
monitoring and communications with borrowers in order to have better
understanding on changes in creditworthiness of borrowers in a more
timely manner. For industries that are more vulnerable to the pandemic,
the Group will strengthen portfolio review, pay special attention to the
impact of the pandemic on the operation and financial status of these
borrowers, perform risk assessment in a timely manner, and take instant
risk mitigation measures to safeguard the Bank’s interest. In view of
the quick spread of the Omicron variant around the world, which is
expected to deal a severe blow to the economic recovery, the Group
has conducted an ad-hoc COVID-19 pandemic stress test to assess the
potential impact of the Omicron variant on credit risk, risk-weighted
assets, impairment allowances and capital adequacy ratio.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value
of foreign exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions
held by the Group due to the volatility of financial market price (foreign
exchange rate, interest rate, equity price, commodity price). The Group
adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance between
risk and return.

The Group's objective in managing market risk is to secure healthy
growth of the treasury business, by effective management of potential
market risk in the Group’s business, according to the Group’s overall
risk appetite and strategy of treasury business on the basis of a well-
established risk management regime and related management
measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles
in respect of risk management, the Board and Risk Management
Committee, Senior Management and functional units perform their
duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s market risk. The risk
management units are responsible for assisting Senior Management to
perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market
risk profile and compliance of management policies and limits of the
Group, to ensure that the aggregate and individual market risk profiles
are within acceptable levels. Independent units are assigned to monitor
the risk exposure against risk limits on a daily basis, together with
profit and loss reports submitted to Senior Management on a regular
basis, while limit excess will be reported to Senior Management at
once when it occurs. NCB (China) sets up independent risk monitoring
teams to monitor daily market risk and limit compliance, and submit
management information and reports to the Bank on a regular basis.

The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include
but not limited to VAR (Value-at-Risk), Stop Loss, Open Position,
Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis (Basis Point Value). To meet
management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified
into four levels, and are approved by the Risk Management Committee,
Asset and Liability Management Committee or Senior Management
respectively. Treasury business units are required to conduct their
business within approved market risk indicators and limits. The Group
also implements regular model validation to ascertain market risk
models appropriateness and market risk to be adequately measured and
captured.
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4. TEEREE® 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

42 TGRER (&) 4.2  Market risk (Cont'd)

(A) mEE (A) VAR

AEBEHARRESE —RmisERE - 3 5E 8mE R The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks
EREZEENEEEEASRE - AEERKAR—O to the Risk Management Committee and Senior Management on a
REiEERE - ERARELEREE  UBER2FESE periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR calculation model,
TMEHEALE  5TE 9% EFKFE TR 1XFEH using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical
AARE B EH RARITHRRRE - WEREAREBAA market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group and the Bank over one-
AT R EREE © day holding period with a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR

limit of the Group and the Bank.

TRFLASEE—RMZRAREENRERE - The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk
exposure' of the Group.

25 25 E=x:3
M12A31H REHE Ea¥E F9-(E
Fp At Minimum  Maximum for ~ Average for
Year 31 December for the year the year the year
BETT BT ok BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2HmnERERE VAR for all market risk 2021 2,233 1,661 4,863 3,837
2020 4,264 1,451 5,127 3,921
PE =3 f 2 R B B VAR for foreign exchange risk 2021 1,463 760 4,466 3,464
2020 4,126 163 4,829 3,693
MEERz BRE VAR for interest rate risk 2021 1,277 775 2,677 1,614
2020 1,056 611 2,506 1,472
HmER 7 EkE VAR for commodity risk 2021 - - 1,521 509
2020 - - 1,589 615
o Note:
& TEEAEIER O ERE ! Structural positions have been excluded.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(A) VAR (Cont’d)

Although VAR is a valuable guide to risk, it should always be viewed in
the context of its limitations. For example:

— the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future
events may not encompass all potential events, particularly
those which are extreme in nature;

— the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions
can be liquidated or hedged in one day. This may not fully
reflect the market risk arising at times of severe illiquidity, when
a one-day holding period may be insufficient to liquidate or
hedge all positions fully;

— the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not
take into account losses that might occur beyond this level of
confidence; and

— VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the
close of business and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-
day exposures.

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test
indicators and limits to assess and manage the market risk not covered
by VAR. The market risk stress testing includes sensitivity testing on
changes in risk factors with various degrees of severity, as well as
scenario analysis on historical events.

(B)  Currency risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies,
particularly the HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the
currency risk exposure of the Group is managed at an acceptable level,
risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit) are used to serve as a monitoring
tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap between assets
and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g.
FX swaps) are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities.
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4., SHREREE® 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 THERR(E) 4.2  Market risk (Cont'd)
(B) SMEREEE(E) (B)  Currency risk (Cont'd)

TRIMAEERBER S  JFREXFREBIER
BMEL T BINERRER - Y2REBRAINERS
Rz ERBROBIIETMAREL °

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency
exposures arising from trading, non-trading and structural positions and
is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of foreign currency position.

2021
BETTEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
Hithspi SN EE
ETT AEK¥ Other foreign Total foreign
US Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
REEE Spot assets 110,931,361 166,479,906 22,093,131 299,504,398
HEAE Spot liabilities (100,229,498) (170,145,753)  (12,901,769) (283,277,020)
REIE A Forward purchases 21,456,500 13,790,839 5,111,037 40,358,376
REAE W Forward sales (32,805,271) (7,278,628)  (14,170,532)  (54,254,431)
(52)/ KRB Net (short)/long position (646,908) 2,846,364 131,867 2,331,323
HEEER BT Net structural position 9,439,231 15,615,698 - 25,054,929
2020
BETTEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
H AN SN 4B =
Other Total
ETT AREE foreign foreign
US Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
HEEE Spot assets 104,828,483 152,426,161 23,541,049 280,795,693
REAaE Spot liabilities (102,885,199) (147,965,798)  (15,038,893) (265,889,890)
REAEA Forward purchases 34,429,022 16,698,101 5,155,560 56,282,683
REIE N Forward sales (34,703,679)  (19,421,336)  (13,400,132)  (67,525,147)
RARFEE Net long position 1,668,627 1,737,128 257,584 3,663,339
HEEER BT Net structural position 9,436,650 14,613,792 = 24,050,442
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(C) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk in Banking Book (“IRRBB"”) means the risks to a bank’s
earnings and economic value arising from movements in interest
rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liability positions.
The Group’s interest rate risk exposures in Banking Book are mainly
structural. The major types of interest rate risk in Banking Book from
structural positions are:

— IRR Gapping risk: arising from the changes in the interest rates
on assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items of different
maturities and different repricing tenors. The extent of gapping
risk depends on whether changes to the term structure of
interest rates occur consistently across the yield curve (parallel
risk) or differentially by period (non-parallel risk);

— Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions
resulting that the yield on assets and cost of liabilities may
change by different amounts within the same repricing period;

— Option risk: arising from interest rate option derivatives or from
optional elements embedded in an Al's assets, liabilities and off-
balance sheet items, where the Al or its customer can alter the
level and timing of their cash flows. Option risk can be further
characterised into automatic option risk and behavioural option
risk.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(C) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate
risk management in banking book. The Asset and Liability Management
Committee exercises its oversight of interest rate risk in accordance with
the “Banking Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy” approved by
Risk Management Committee. Asset and Liability Management Division
is responsible for banking book interest rate risk management. With
the cooperation of the Financial Market Department, Asset and Liability
Management Division assists the Asset and Liability Management
Committee to perform day-to-day banking book interest rate risk
management. Its roles include, but are not limited to, the formulation
of management policies, selection of methodologies, setting of risk
indicators and limits, assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring
of the compliance with policies and limits, and submission of banking
book interest rate risk management reports to the Management and
Risk Management Committee.

The Group’s Internal Audit Department acts as the independent audit
on interest rate risk in banking book, supervises the related departments
to execute the interest rate risk function according to the policy in order
to effectively control the risk. The Group’s Model Validation Division
preforms independent model validation regularly for interest rate risk in
banking book.

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual
IR-1 “Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book” issued by the HKMA in
2018, the Group sets interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify,
measure, monitor and control interest rate risk. The Group’s key risk
indicators, the Net Interest Income impact and the Economic Value
of Equity impact, reflect the impact of interest rate movement on the
Group's net interest income and capital base respectively. The former
assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net interest income
as a percentage to the projected net interest income for the year. The
latter assesses the impact of interest rate movement on economic values
as a percentage to the latest capital base. The risk appetites and limits
of these two indicators are set by the Board and Risk Management
Committee respectively to monitor and control the Group’s banking
book interest rate risk. In addition, the Group monitors the interest rate
risk in banking book through indicators and limits including, but are
not limited to, interest rate sensitivity gap limits, basis risk, duration and
price value of a basis point (“PVBP").
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(C) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

The Group’s indicators and limits are classified into three levels, which
are approved by the Risk Management Committee, Asset and Liability
Management Committee and Chief Financial Officer respectively. Risk-
taking business units are required to conduct their business within
the banking book interest rate risk limits. In addition, risk mitigation
measures including, but not limited to, the use of interest rate
derivatives, adjustment of portfolio duration, etc. as approved by ALCO,
are effectively used to mitigate the IRRBB. Before launching a new
product or business in the banking book, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the
assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the
adequacy of current risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact
on banking book interest rate risk noted during the risk assessment
process will be submitted to Risk Management Committee for approval.

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking
book interest rate risk that the Group would face under adverse
circumstances. Scenario analyses and stress tests are also used to assess
the impact on net interest income arising from the optionality of savings
deposits.

The Group is principally exposed to HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi
in terms of interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2021, according to
the new standard IRRBB framework of HKMA, the Group assesses
the impact of changes in the Group’s net interest income (“ANII")
and economic value (“AEVE") respectively under 6 interest rate shock
scenarios, in which optionality and behavioural assumptions of certain
products will also be estimated in the exposure measurement. The 6
interest rate shock scenarios include: (1) Parallel up; (2) Parallel down; (3)
Steepener; (4) Flattener; (5) Short rates up; and (6) Short rates down.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Market risk (Cont'd)

Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

When calculating AEVE, commercial margins and other spread
components are included in the cash flows and discounted by the risk-

free rates. The key behavioural assumptions include:

(M

Part of the current account and savings account deposits
("CASA") in HKD and USD are classified into core stable deposit
based on historical data which would be assigned a longer
interest rate sensitive tenor while the interest rate sensitive tenor
of other non-maturity deposits is considered as “Next day”. As
at 31 December 2021, the average interest rate sensitive tenors
of HKD and USD CASA is 1.60 months and 1.18 months, and
the longest interest rate sensitive tenor is 3 months.

For retail term deposits and retail fixed rate loans subject to
early redemption without significant penalty, early redemption
rates are calculated under different portfolios.

Methods of aggregation across currencies strictly follow the IRRBB
Standardised Framework. The aggregate EVE losses across all applicable
currencies are calculated as the maximum loss across the six interest

rate shock scenarios.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(C) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

2021

REEESE FAEWRAZE

AEVE ANII

PEEETIT PRI IT

HK$'000 HK$'000

T E Parallel up 5,328,957 (198,138)
TR T Parallel down 27,075 198,898
SUBRY Steepener 1,006,962 @A (N/A)
&R Flattener 392,399 TEF (N/A))
SEuay Short rate up 2,071,304 TEF (N/A)
PSRN Short rate down 52,236 TEA (N/A)
B& Maximum 5,328,957 198,898

2020

CEEBEFE FHERAZH

AEVE ANII

BT T BT T

HK$’'000 HK$'000

F47m E Parallel up 3,739,133 (633,076)

SESIEEN Parallel down 40,229 633,461
BIER Steepener 865,250 TEF (N/A)
BiE (M Flattener 421,928 TEAN/A)
FSESabay Short rate up 1,244,498 NEA N/A)
JSESIN S Short rate down 52,683 TEA (N/A))

BS Maximum 3,739,133 633,461

i HERRETE

RK2021F 12 A31H @ EFRMBLEFITE IERT -
B EERFER B RARTE
B 6.33187T) - MEBEMNZABEZEE AR
KR RTFITR BB - R
{8 70 (2020 4 . /5 %6 37.3918 Jr) - E220204F 12 A 31
Bt - AEEFER S WA
KEBENTARHETE

BREELSES

ASEE1.99 (87T (2020 4

BENFZERBE53.29

BAOEE 434 B TR
BB 15.98T X8R

Remarks:
scenarios.

Positive values indicate losses under the alternative

As at 31 December 2021, the net interest income impact for all
currencies is HK$199 million (2020: HK$633 million) under the interest
rate parallel down scenario. The maximum negative impact on AEVE
is HK$5,329 million (2020: HK$3,739 million) under the interest rate
parallel up scenario. Compared with 31 December 2020, the Group’s
net interest income impact for all currencies is dropped by HK$434
million and maximum negative impact on AEVE is increased by

HK$ 1,590 million with investment in fixed rate bond
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4., SHREREE® 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 THERR(E) 4.2  Market risk (Cont'd)
Q) FIEEEE) (C) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

TR T AEER12 A31 B2 EEABERANT
KREAYE - RAUKREENREEREE LKA
WEFTESEAHRIIE R (ARFERE)HHE

The tables below summarise the Group's on-balance sheet exposure
to interest rate risk as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the
assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of

&

contractual repricing date and maturity date.

2021
=3 S
—fBAR =fiR TZf@A -ZHE RENE FEE
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over  Non- interest &zt
1 month months months years 5years bearing Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BRESRERRTR  Cashand balances with banks and
HthBIENAS  other financial institutions 56,694,146 - - - - 8,009,166 64,703,312
FERITREMEREE  Placements with banks and other
—Z+-HARZE  finandial institutions maturing
ZTEHER between one and twelve months - 2,348,982 335,159 - - - 2,684,141
DREZ(EEABE 2 Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 1171,711 3,204,022 20,356,538 717,908 - 1,572,391 27,022,570
PTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 834,964 834,964
B REMERE Advances and other accounts 207,311,188 34988959  27,2853%6 17,456,525 4,995,297 - 292,037,365
SRRE Finandial investments
-DRREREA - Atfair value through other
Hip 2 Ak comprehensive income 13,573,438 27,121,587 22,652,260 69,484,299 3,933,926 49,933 137,415,443
- DVBBRAMERTE - Atamortised cost 592,486 - - - - - 502,486
REME Investment properties - - - - - 327,610 327,610
W% - B RERE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 8,759,766 8,759,766
HthAE Other assets
(BREELHBEE) (including deferred tax assets) - - - - - 1,953,343 1,953,343
BENAH Total assets 279,342,969 68,263,550 70,629,353 87,658,732 8,929,223 21,507,173 536,331,000
8% Liabilities
FAREMERERE  Deposits and balances from banks and
LER R other financial institutions 10,306,919 3,567,781 5,175,149 - - 2,604123 21,653,972
AAERABRZ  Finandial liabilities at fair value through
LREE profit or loss 2,275,979 1,880,607 2,258,726 - - - 6,415,312
fESBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 814,670 814,670
RPER Deposits from customers 187,501,013 87,730,545 85,248,950 7431,476 61,257 15,808,145 383,781,386
BETERESRENE Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue 2,308,085 5,906,494 5,372,701 18,167,947 - - 31,755,227
EMRIBEREE (B Other accounts and provisions
FIHIE RERERIR (including current and deferred
a%) tax liabilities) 3,053,325 2,368,146 8,700,490 1,205,923 189,723 4,607,616 20,125,223
#EER Subordinated liabilities - - - - 5,451,286 - 5,451,286
BEAT Total liabilities 205445321 101453573 106,756,016 26,805,346 570,266 23,834,554 469,997,076
FIRGRE RO Interest sensitivity gap 73,897,648  (33,190,023)  (36,126,663) 60,853,386 3,226,957 (2,327,381) 66,333,924
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4., TREREE®) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
42 THiEREK(E) 4.2  Market risk (Cont'd)
Q) FIEREEEE) (C) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)
2020
-3 =z
—fEAR =fiA +=f@A —£T14 AENE 2
Upto 1103 3t012 1105 Over  Non- interest @t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BEERERGERMRTR  Cashand balances with banks and
HipSREENES  other finandial institutions 52,778,399 - - - - 5394911 58,173,310
ERTRE 2R Placements with banks and other
BE-ZTZfAR  financial institutions maturing
3|82 REER between one and twelve months - 337,676 218,303 - = = 555,979
AREZ(GIABE  Finandal assets at fair value through
ZEMER profit or loss 1498520 3874604 17,540,189 - . - 22913313
fESRMTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,031,063 1,031,063
ERREMER Advances and other accounts 193,234,131 35,384,885 31,891,916 14,600,174 1,974,027 - 277,085,133
PRRE Finandial investments
-DAREREA - Atfair value through other
Eth2mME comprehensive income 15,383,276 28,527,507 28,514,033 55,862,458 1,768,763 54,109 130,110,146
- DABEBARCATERTE - Atamortised cost - - 2779095 - - - 2,779,095
RENE Investment properties - - - - - 341,080 341,080
ERE Y INET Properties, plant and equipment - - - - = 8,220,738 8,220,738
HtERE(BIEEEHE  Other assets (including deferred
BE) tax assets) - - = = = 4,488,304 4,488,304
BEAE Total assets 262,894,326 68,124,672 80,943,536 70,462,632 3,742,790 19,530,205 505,698,161
=4 Liabilities
FAREMEREEZ  Deposits and balances from banks
T kEs and other financial institutions 14,010,156 12,007,788 4,568,817 - - 2477555 33,064,316
ARES(ETABRZ  Finandial liabilities at fair value
eRERE through profit or loss 2,159,973 2,576,898 1,914,116 - - - 6650987
ITESRTA Derivative financial instruments = = = = = 1,882,953 1,882,953
REEA Deposits from customers 181,768,498 67,449,733 76,009,321 11,339,764 95,348 14,967,264 351,629,928
BHETERESRENE Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue - 9,664,888 4,682,608 9,666,939 - - 24,014,435
HABRERER (BIEE  Other accounts and provisions
NHBLEEHAERE)  (including current and deferred
tax liabilities) 3,157,297 3,719,697 5,855,254 1,418,081 22,155 5,838,947 20,011,431
kEAR Subordinated liabilities = = = = 5,416,390 - 5,416,390
BfeRE Total liabilities 201,095,924 95,419,004 93,030,116 22,424,784 5,533,893 25,166,719 442,670,440
FigEE O Interest sensitvty gap 61798400 (2729433  (12,086580) 48037848  (1791103)  (5636514) 63,027,721
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42 THHERRE)
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(D) Interest rate benchmark reform

In July 2017, the UK regulator, the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA")
announced the discontinuation of a widely-used benchmark rate, the
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR"), by end of 2021, leading
to a transition of LIBOR to Risk-Free Rates (“RFRs”) or Alternative
Reference Rates (“ARRs”). In March 2021, the FCA further announced
that publication of 26 LIBOR settings would permanently be ceased,
including British Pound (GBP), Swiss Franc (CHF), Euro (EUR), Japanese
Yen (JPY) LIBOR settings and the 1-week and 2-month US Dollar (USD)
LIBOR settings after 31 December 2021, while the remaining USD LIBOR
settings would be ceased immediately after 30 June 2023.

The Group established its IBOR Transition Programme in 2020 and
formed an IBOR Steering Committee, which is chaired by the Chief
Risk Officer, to lead the Transition Programme. The Steering Committee
comprises senior representatives across Front Office, Middle Office and
Back Office. The management oversight of the Transition Programme is
performed by the Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCO")
and the Board.

IBOR transition exposes the Group to various risks, which the Transition
Programme is managing and monitoring closely. These risks include but
are not limited to the following:

o Conduct risk arising from discussions with clients and market
counterparties due to the amendments to existing contracts
required under IBOR transition

o Basis risk arising from asymmetric adoption of benchmark rates
across assets and liabilities

o Financial risk to the Group and its clients as markets are
disrupted due to IBOR transition

o Pricing risk from potential lack of market information if liquidity
in IBORs reduces and RFRs are illiquid and unobservable

3 Operational risk arising from changes to the Group’s IT systems
and processes; and the risk of payments being disrupted if an
IBOR ceases to be available

° Accounting risk if the Group’s hedging relationships terminated
and the Group experienced volatility in income statement
caused by profit and loss arising from existing reference rate of
financial instruments transiting to RFRs
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4., SHREREE® 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)

42 THHRRGE)

(D) EEFENE(E)

TREDM T AEEEZE 2021 6 12 A 31 B ABEE
FmERF RS ENEEFRNT R REEN S E
WEAREERNERAKRIKO - NEBES B T 82023
F6 A30 8 2B BHAETTHBIBITRIZR B EEF
ZEENERIE B2 2EANETHRE
RTAEFEEENERFENSHTE  RRELS

(D) Interest rate benchmark reform (Cont'd)

BT A EARR R RN R RSGRIRAT R -

The table below provides an overview of the Group’s exposures to
significant IBORs subject to reform that have yet transited to RFRs
or ARRs as at 31 December 2021. The Group has excluded financial
instruments referenced to USD LIBOR maturing before 30 June 2023,
except those referenced to 1-week and 2-month USD LIBOR, as those
exposures will expire before a transition is required.

BT imZ ETmHE
RITRIZE RITA%E HEMBUERTT
FrE A= FEMNE  RZEFERNE 45t
EUR LIBOR USD LIBOR GBP LIBOR Total
BT BT T BT T BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTESREE Non-derivative financial assets
AREBEZT AEMEME  Financial assets at fair value through
W emEE other comprehensive income = 4,243,434 - 4,243,434
AR AR ST E R B Loans and advances at amortised cost 190,405 20,554,817 720,344 21,465,566
190,405 24,798,251 720,344 25,709,000
ELMBUERTT
EESRERIIES 5T
USD LIBOR Total
BT BEFIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERBEENESE Derivative notional contract amount
HHNINEDT & i OTC foreign exchange derivatives 779,690 779,690
BANFIRHTE @ OTC interest rate derivatives 4,840,752 4,840,752
5,620,442 5,620,442
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4. SHREREE@

42 THERK(E)

(D) EEFFEYE (&)

HZE 202112 A31 B ELEEUL - 185 - A
T WAERR A K 1 28R 2 B AETmEBERITRIE
FEFEELENBRESREREEENEBERR 8
BRI HBENBEE AR -

BN ARR T HOSE T IR BUERTT R S 47 B A R A (B R
BREER  ABMOMOCBESEENRETR  MH
HOEBEERNEN  TERZFEXRNREZREM
&% - TREHER 2023 4 6 AEAITEA © FERTTRZE
HEFNEBEDRRE  AEEREERESRITHE -
IAZFHMANES -

2021 FHIRE - ERER - BANBREZRSRCHE
ZFERETER - NROEHERMREERAE
BRI 2023 F 6 AKAIEK - MEEMTE @ &5
MOTET AMFRi= @R REBRE IR ZE
TEMERBERRIBTERLZH - 1 2023 F 6 A
JERTTERK °

REEZR THESRREEN T ERR - WBBRT
R - BRINEMA RN - REFRI T
BREENXEENERME - B TIRIIMNHRITA
EFREIBENEREESREMERTDER - A&
EMERREEREAIE - URERIEEZBIRITRE RS
B EFEE o

AR ARAEENE RN XEERBAERETR
FERTTRIER SFE - REB DR HEERA R 2023
F 6 ARIEHNETHBRTAZEFENEZNREER
B - RSB S AR B R IRTT R AR B A R A BIE
BA - PARERRISREY R BURTT R B A R E AR D)
EERERRERERNEK -

e

o

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(D) Interest rate benchmark reform (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2021, all legacy contracts referencing EUR, GBP,
JPY, CHF, and 1-week and 2-month USD LIBOR settings have been
remediated by including appropriate fallback in the contract, with no
‘tough legacy’ contracts remaining.

For legacy contracts referencing the remaining USD LIBOR settings,
a majority of the exposures have already incorporated appropriate
fallback, while the contract remediation of the remaining legacy
contracts, mainly loans and advances to customers and bond, is
expected to be completed by June 2023. The Group will continue the
client outreach to support our clients during the IBOR transition.

During 2021, for loans product, migration has been started for revolving
loans during annual reviews. Remaining migration on term loans and
syndicated loans will be handled by June 2023. For treasury products,
the migration on bonds and derivatives such as interest rate swaps will
also be completed by June 2023 following the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association (ISDA) protocol or clearing house arrangement.

The Group has identified major risks arising from the IBOR Transition
and mitigated most of the risks by performing banking system upgrade,
client outreach and contract remediation, process and model changes,
development of new ARR products, staff training and frequent
management oversight of the Transition Programme. The Group also
engages actively with regulators to ensure a smooth transition from
LIBOR.

However, since the Group’s main interest rate benchmark exposure is
USD LIBOR, the Group will still expose to risk due to USD LIBOR legacy
contracts which are expected to demise from June 2023. The Group
will continue monitoring IBOR transition to ensure the remaining LIBOR
settings be successfully transited to ARRs.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to
grow assets or pay due obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable
loss. The Group maintains sound liquidity risk appetite to provide stable,
reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs under
normal circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net
positive cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting
the HKMA to act as the lender of last resort.

The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage
the liquidity of on- and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost
based on the liquidity risk appetite to achieve sound operation and
sustainable profitability. Deposits from customers are the Group’s
primary source of funds. To ensure stable and sufficient source of funds
are in place, the Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core
deposit and obtains supplementary funding from the interbank market.
According to different term maturities and the results of funding
needs estimated from stressed scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset
structure (including loans, bonds investment, interbank placement, etc.)
to maintain sufficient liquid assets which provides adequate funds in
support of normal business needs and ensure its ability to raise funds
at a reasonable cost to serve external claims in case of emergency.
The Group is committed to diversify the source of funds and the use
of funds to avoid excessive concentration of assets and liabilities and
prevent triggering liquidity risk due to the break of funding strand when
problem occurred in one concentrated funding source. The Group has
established intra-group liquidity risk management guideline to manage
the liquidity funding among different entities within the Group, and
to restrict their reliance of funding on each other. The Group also pays
attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-balance sheet activities,
such as loan commitments and derivatives. The Group has an overall
liquidity risk management strategy to cover the liquidity management
of foreign currency assets and liabilities, collateral, intra-day liquidity,
intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks, etc., and
has formulated corresponding contingency plan.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Risk Management Committee (“RMC") is the decision-making authority
of liquidity risk management, and assumes the ultimate responsibility
of liquidity risk management. As authorised by RMC, the Asset and
Liability Management Committee (“ALCQO") exercises its oversight
of liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group are in
accordance with risk appetite and policies as set by RMC. Asset and
Liability Management Division is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
liquidity risk. It cooperates with Financial Market Department to assist
the ALCO to perform liquidity management functions according to their
specific responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to
identify, measure, monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These
indicators and limits include, but are not limited to liquidity coverage
ratio (“LCR"), net stable funding ratio (“NSFR"), loan-to-deposit ratio,
Maximum Cumulative Cash Outflow (“MCQO"), liquidity buffer asset
portfolio and depositor concentration limit. The Group applies cash
flow analysis to assess the Group’s liquidity condition under normal
conditions and also performs a liquidity stress test (including institution
specific, general market crisis and combined crisis) at least on monthly
basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand various severe
liquidity crises. Also, the Assets and Liabilities Management System is
developed to provide data and the preparation for regular management
reports to facilitate liquidity risk management duties.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2
“Sound Systems and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by
the HKMA in 2016, the Group has implemented behaviour model and
assumptions of cash flow analysis and stress test to enhance the Group’s
cash flow analysis under both normal and stressed conditions. In cash
flow analysis under normal circumstances, assumptions have been made
relating to on-balance sheet items (such as deposits from customers)
and off-balance sheet items (such as loan commitments). According
to various characteristics of the assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on contractual
maturity date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and balance
sheet changes. The Group establishes MCO indicator which predicts
the future 30-day maximum cumulative net cash outflow in normal
situations based on the above assumptions, to assess if the Group
has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow gap in order
to achieve the objective of continuing operation. As at 31 December
2021, before taking the cash inflow through the sale of outstanding
marketable securities into consideration, the Bank’s 30-day cumulative
cash flow was a net cash inflow amounting to HK17,026,621,000 (2020:
HK$5,893,712,000) and was in compliance with the internal limit
requirements.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and
combined crisis scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario
is a combination of institution specific and general market crisis to
assess the Group’s capability to withstand a more severe liquidity crisis,
with a more stringent set of assumptions being adopted. Stress test
assumptions include the run-off rate of retail, wholesale and interbank
deposits; drawdown rate of loan commitments and trade-related
contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and rollover rate of customer
loans; and haircut of interbank placement and marketable securities.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group was able to maintain a positive
cash flow under the three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group
has the ability to meet financing needs under stressed conditions. In
addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain a liquidity cushion
which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable securities
issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities
or multilateral development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or
marketable securities issued or guaranteed by non-financial corporate
with a corresponding external credit rating of A- or above to ensure
funding needs even under stressed scenarios. As at 31 December 2021,
the Bank’s liquidity cushion (before haircut) was HK$44,050,883,000
(2020: HK$41,405,089,000). A contingency plan is being established
which details the conditions to trigger the plan based on stress test
results and early warning indicators, the action plans and relevant
procedures and responsibility of various departments. The Group
tests and updates the Plan annually to ensure its effectiveness and
operational feasibility.

The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules
effective from 1 January 2015 and the NSFR is effective from 1 January
2018. The Group, being classified as category 1 authorised institution
by the HKMA, is required to calculate LCR and NSFR on consolidated
basis. The Group is required to maintain LCR and NSFR not less than
100%.

By maintaining a ratio in excess of minimum regulatory requirements,
the LCR seeks to ensure that the Group holds adequate liquidity assets
to mitigate a short-term liquidity stress and the NSFR ensures the Group
maintaining sufficient stable funding sources to cover their long-term
assets.

In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have right to request
from the Group additional collateral if they have concerns about the
Group's creditworthiness.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or

business developments. Before launching a new product or business,
the relevant departments are required to go through a risk assessment
process, which includes the assessment of underlying liquidity risk
and consideration of the adequacy of the current risk management
mechanism. Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk
assessment process will be reported to Risk Management Committee
for approval.

The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk management
policies. On the basis of the Group’s uniform policy, the principal
banking subsidiary develops its own liquidity management policies
according to its own characteristics, and assumes its own liquidity
risk management responsibility, executes its daily risk management
processes independently, and reports to the Group’s Management on a
regular basis.

The information of liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio
disclosures are available under “Unaudited Supplementary Financial
Information — 1. Liquidity Coverage Ratio and Net Stable Funding
Ratio” and section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at
www.ncb.com.hk.

#1798 7% 4 45 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2021 ANNUAL REPORT 438 » www.ncb.com hk

145



RAFSER AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4., SHREREE®

43 REBESERRE)
(A) FRAZH

TRAREEN12ANBZEEREEBNIHRES
i BNEERE - BERBGEEALOE

EHREIR DM -

|57 B Y

4.
4.3
(A)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Maturity analysis

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31
December into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining

period at balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

2021
-k -%=@F ZEt=fAR
i Upto 1t03 3t0 12 -Zif RENE  FEEAH @t
On demand 1 month months months ~ 1to5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
AETT BETn BT A8TT AT BRI iR AETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
ERREREHHTR Cash and balances with banks and
Efpomsensn other finandial intitutions 30350521 34352791 - - - - - 6AT03312
ERTRALEREE—Z  Pacements with banks and other
TEARZIHZFHEMR  finandial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months - - 2,348,982 335,159 - - - 2,684,141
MERE AR Financial assets at fair value
SREE through profitor loss
-R5k - Trading
- BlE% - Debt securities - 725,985 2,548,381 3,977,960 - - - 1,252,326
- AR REREA - Mandatorly measured at fair
s R value through profit or
loss, non trading
- Bl - Debt securities - 10,418 - - 717,908 - 31.2m2 759,598
-Hft - Others - 404,036 655,641 16,378,578 - - - 17,438,255
- BRirE% ~ Equity securities - - - - - - 1,572,391 1,572,391
fTEERIE Derivative finandial instruments 263,240 128,075 64,345 104,413 272,179 2,12 - 834,964
R RAMER Advances and other accounts
-EFEH ~ Advances to customers 30,173,136 8,102,517 17,691,913 51,391,375 120,475,479 63,191,634 523,791 291,549,845
-25%5 ~Trade bill 6 363,785 123729 - - - - 487520
SBRA Financial investments
- NARBEEA - At fair value through other
A2 Eks comprehensive income
- EfES - Debt securiies - 4374 13117658 25091880 87316854 3,954,302 - 134,353,868
- - Certificates of deposit - 689 310,252 1,646,884 1,053,817 - - 3,011,642
- BB A E - At amortised cost
- £t - Others - - - - - - 592,486 592,486
-RiE% - Equity securities - - - - - - 49,933 49,933
-V Investment properties - - - - - - 327,610 321,610
ERE B Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 8,759,766 8,759,766
HMARE (BIEREREEE) Other assets (ndluding deferred
tax assets) 1,133,090 396,585 20,573 (11,849) 383,427 - 31,517 1,953,343
EEAE Total assets 61,919,993 48,758,055 37,481,474 98,914,400 210,219,664 67,148,648 11,888,766 536,331,000
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2021
-fAR  -E=f@R =Zt+=f8A
1l Upto 1to03 3t0 12 -Z5f RENE FEEAS &t
On demand 1 month months months ~ 1to5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
AETT BETn BT A8TT BRI BT AETR AETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& Liabilties
ROREMSREEL Deposits and balances from
ERRkER banks and other financial
institutions 3,595,374 9,315,668 3,567,781 5,175,149 - - - 21,653,972
MER A ERZ Financial liabilties at fair value
EREE through profit or loss - 2,215,979 1,880,607 2,258,726 - - - 6,415,312
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments 93,532 62,803 142,239 103,853 412,43 - - 814,670
RFER Deposits from customers 143,759,694 58,527,212 87,730,380 86,224,547 7,478,29% 61,257 - 383,781,386
BEOREEEARGENE  Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue 895 2,307,190 5,906,494 5,372,701 18,167,947 - - 31,755,227
HMREREE(BE Other accounts and provisions
ENHBRERHEEE)  (nduding curent and deferred
tax liabilities) 471213 1,729,993 2,430,703 8,943,987 2,093,446 189,723 25,248 20,125,223
e Subordinated libilies - - - - - 5451286 - 5451286
B4R Total liabilities 152,161,618 74218845 101658204 108078963 28,151,932 5,702,266 25248 469,997,076
TEEEHD Net liquidity gap (90,241,625 (25460,790)  (64,176,730) (9,164,563) 182,067,732 61,446,382 11,863,518 66,333,924
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

43 RBELRR(E) 4.3  Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
(A) FRHZZH (&) (A)  Maturity analysis (Cont'd)
2020
—fBAK —2=fif =Zt=fiA
il Upto 1103 3012 —20fF nENE MEERE &t
On demand 1 month months months Tto5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
BETT BETT BT BT BRI AT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BE Assets
EERS REHETR Cash and balances with banks and
HineRERENES other financial institutions 27,565,169 30,608,141 - - - - - 58173310
EROREMLSRER—  Placements with banks and other
Er-ERRZEZ financial infitutions maturing
R between one and twelve months - - 337,676 218,303 - - - 555,979
MERIE AR Financial assets at far value through
EREE profit or oss
-R5 - Trading
- EhES - Delt securities - - 2739339 3,758,420 - - - 6,497,759
-BHEMAREREA - Mandatorly measured at fair
s A value through profit or
loss, non trading
- £t ~Others - 1,498,520 1135265 13781769 - - - 1641555
fTEeRTA Derivative finandial instruments 266,944 98,118 154,500 385,639 125,862 - - 1,031,063
B RAMERR Advances and other accounts
-KFEH — Advances to customers 27,085,817 5,088,998 24,194,159 47,302,076 115,168,007 56,624,608 631,106 276,694,771
-B5%k& ~ Trade bills 6 112,788 262,373 15,195 - - - 390,362
SHRE Financial investments
- NARBEEA - At fair value through other
Bt 2ERE comprehensive income
- EhE% - Delt securities - 509899 10971693 26019602 76552439 1,792,106 - 120434809
-3 - Certificates of deposit = 1,150,375 4,243,333 3,319,765 907,755 - - 9,621,228
- g A2 - At amortised cost
- s - Debt securiies - - - 1,768,208 - - - 1,768,208
- ~ Certificates of deposit - 1,006 - 115,774 - = = 116,780
-Efh - Others - - - 894,107 - - - 894,107
- R - Equity securities = = - - = = 54,109 54,109
REME Investment properties - - - - - - 341,080 341,080
ERENET Properties, plant and equipment = = - - = = 820,738 8,220,738
HAE(BIEEEHEEE) Other assets (including deferred
tax assets) 2,694,513 1,261,574 30,083 105,781 365,301 - 31,052 4,488,304
EEAE Total assets 57,612,449 45,518,489 44,068,421 97,684,639 193,119,364 58,416,714 9,278,085 505,698,161
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4. SHERERE @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
43 HRBESERE) 4.3  Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
(A) FRHZZH (&) (A)  Maturity analysis (Cont'd)
2020
—fBAK —2=fif =Zt=fiA
il Upto 1103 3012 —2RE nENE  MEERE &t
On demand 1 month months months Tto5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
BETT BETT BT BT AR AT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
g Liabilities
ROREMSREEL Deposits and balances from banks
Bk and other financial institutions 3,136,326 13,351,254 12,007,919 4568817 - - - 33,064,316
MER TR Financial liabilties at fair value
RERE through profit or loss - 2,159,973 2,576,898 1,914,116 - = - 6,650,987
THEERIA Derivative financial instruments 87,292 374,686 334,686 597,326 487,056 1,907 - 1,882,953
LS Deposits from customers 135,638,027 61,105,318 67,449,562 76,002,051 11,339,622 95,348 - 351,629,928
BEOEEEFARENE  Debt securities and cerificates
of deposit in issue 139,761 119,247 2,065,633 8,022,045 13,667,749 = = 24,014,435
HRERER (B Other accounts and provisions
ERTBRELHERR)  (nduding current and deferred
tax liabilties) 5,541,771 1,879,592 3,956,498 6,263,966 2,191,071 155,092 23,441 20,011,431
fERE Subordinated liabilies - - - - - 541639 - 541639
BfE4E Total liabilities 144,543177 78,990,070 88,391,19% 97,368,321 27,685,498 5,668,737 B441 442,670,440
i Net liquidity gap (86930,728)  (33471581)  (44322,779) 316318 165433866 52747977 9254644 63,027,721
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43 RBELRR(E) 4.3  Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
(A) FHHDH (&) (A)  Maturity analysis (Cont'd)

AEEKBHTHBEVEAZEE  AINERRER The Group has reported assets such as advances and debt securities
BEYA TR BE - HRNRTIRARER D HEE which have been overdue for not more than one month as “On

ZEE  REZEERERGE 2 WARERE o demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different
HAb RE Bz A DEERBEFRGBAR S - BRE payments or instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually
HZEEZBEFARE - BIBZEREINR [T overdue is reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is
FEHE] - Et) 7Rz & E B 0 ER (A A8 B8 2 4 (10 reported according to the residual maturity unless the repayment of the
B)- asset is in doubt in which case the amount is reported as “Indefinite”.

The above assets are stated after deduction of provisions, if any.

RHEREIE A HEBBHF 2 DM IRRLEFZHF B The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity does not
BZEEIEA o imply that the securities will be held to maturity.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

(B)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities

(@) Non-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31

December for non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual

maturity.
2021
-BAR -ZE=@R =Et=f@A -ZRE RENE
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over FTHREAH b
1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
BT BT BETR BETT BETR BETR BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
SRBE Financial liabilities
FAREMEREEIEL  Deposits and balances from banks
TR and other financial institutions 12,913,316 3,574,153 5,191,304 - - - 2678773
MBS ABSEZ  Finandal liabilities at fair value
SHERE through profit or loss 2,276,000 1,881,000 2,261,000 - - - 6,418,000
EFER Deposits from customers 202,445411 88,171,263 87,412,901 8,340,985 61,257 - 386431817
BE(TEFEARESE Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue 2,324,771 6,143,832 5,554,850 19,921,090 - - 33944583
#EEE Subordinated fiabilities - - 207,398 829,590 6,049,858 - 7,086,846
EtheraE Other financial liabilities 5,625,939 2,385,060 8,721,090 1,207,725 189,723 18,898 18,148,435
LREELE Total financial liabilities 225585437 102,155,308 109,348,543 30,299,390 6,300,838 18,898 473,708,414
2020
—fARA  —Z=fF =Et=fEA —21fF REE
Upto 1103 3012 1105 Over  TEEAH &t
1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SHEE Financial liabilities
FAREMEREEZ  Deposits and balances from banks
Tk and other financial institutions 16,498,604 12,024,268 4,577,299 = = - 33,100,171
PRESIABRSZ  Finandal liabilities at fair value
PRAE through profit or loss 2,160,000 2,577,000 1,914,500 = = - 6,651,500
BFER Deposits from customers 196,887,366 67,954,496 77,757,984 12,341,969 95,705 - 355,037,520
BETESESRERE Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue 274,734 2,105,599 8,593,438 14,730,677 - - 25,704,448
kEaE Subordinated liabilities = = 206,191 824,765 6,217,672 = 7,248,628
Etemas Other financial liabilites 6,721,793 3,723,043 5,863,079 1,287,821 155,092 2345 17773173
SRERLE Total financial liabilities 222542497 88384406 98912491 29,185,232 6,468,469 22345 445515440

#1798 7% 4 45 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2021 ANNUAL REPORT 438 » www.ncb.com hk

151



RAFSER AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4., SHREREE®
43 FREBELEME (&)
(B) BRI BH H W2 KT BB L7 (&)

(b) PTHETARZHZ T

TR T AREER 12 B31 BARIBELZH R 5
RZBRER  PERFEEELEZTESRHAE -
LT RBEEEAGE 2 TESRTIA(TwERBE
HBEEXBRE) BRBOITETEUARETIRIN -
TREEBNEMSEIARCHRANEREESR

AEERFREEGEE AR T AT RZEENE
IR R SNER S HIRE (TR » MIRABEEEEE
ITEEMT AT 2REREMN GRS -

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

(B)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities (Cont'd)

(b) Derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities
that will be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial
instruments that will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether
the contract is in an asset or liability position. The amounts disclosed
in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, except for
certain derivatives which are disclosed at fair value.

The Group's derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net
basis mainly include interest rate swaps and foreign exchange options
(non-deliverable) whereas derivative financial instruments that will be
settled on a gross basis mainly include currency forwards and currency
swaps.



RAFSER AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

y

—~r

4. SHREREE@ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
43 RBELRR(E) 4.3  Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEEAHBHHSWHZAITEEL T (&) (B)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities (Cont'd)
(b) AT Az (& (b) Derivative cash flows (Cont’d)
2021
—fEAR -2=f8A =Z+=f8R —-Z5f bik:3) W
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over &t
1 month months months years 5years Total
BRI BETT BETT BETT BETT BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REFEEELE Derivative financial liabilities
fTEemaR settled on a net basis (95,982) (2.443) (57,342) (240,097) - (395,864)
RIBEERLE Y Derivative financial instruments
fTESRIA settled on a gross hasis
ERA Total inflow 22,662,915 17,957,415 9,262,226 1,101,284 1,086,109 52,069,949
Fyihun Total outflow (22,588,902) (18,017,086) (9,256,109) (1,101,284) (1,086,109) (52,049,490)
2020
—fAAR —2=f8R =2+-f@R —Z1F BFMNE
Upto 1103 3t012 1105 Over &t
1 month months months years 5 years Total
BT BETT BETT BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BFBRLELE Y Derivative financial liabilities settled
iTEeRaR on a net basis (93,648) (9,546) (53,811) (122,757) (290) (280,052)
RERRELE Y Derivative financial instruments
{TEemIA settled on a gross basis
/RN Total inflow 20,162,296 16,529,023 19,825,166 - - 56,516,485
i Total outflow (20,446,247) (16,748,791) (20,071,073) - - (57,266,111)
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

(B)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities (Cont'd)

(©) Off-balance sheet items

Loan commitments

The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial
instruments as at 31 December 2021 that the Group commits to extend
credit to customers and other facilities totalled HK$134,755,362,000
(2020: HK$127,569,218,000). Those loan commitments can be drawn
within one year.

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group
as at 31 December 2021 totalled HK$52,037,217,000(2020:
HK$33,002,671,000) are maturing no later than one year.

4.4 Capital management

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise
total shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position
in relation to the Group’s overall risk profile. The ALCO periodically
reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts the capital mix where
appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk, return and
capital adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework
of policies and controls on capital management to support the
development of the Group’s business and to meet the statutory capital
adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the Group’s capital adequacy. The
Group has complied with all the statutory capital requirements of the
HKMA for the reported periods in respect of banking operation as
further elaborated below.
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ARERARECEGHERREAHEAREEMAE
HERRHR HHFERBERKRITECGRHIRIERAR)
AHEARTERFRBREAER - WRBKIRITR(BER)
RADE 31 7CIHREDE RIEL/ER T E AR IEINER
OELNTISRABEREKR -

AREER 2021 FRARFEATRAEREFANE
CEREERRTM EERERF | ANER - &
SERHFE _ENIES ABEATRHEEFE
ERNAFEEE -—XETRARERRZDRENEKX
R AF RSN E R - fEMREA S BRI E B E
—RERLE  ZFE-RERLERZELEERL
Ko [ - AERBTFRATRNE AL RRE T EFR
Bl UXBEBERFBTERCEERNBIER - K
SERSARBEATRHERFE—(ARFENERE
i8Iz - YERES FNERRRIORNEHERK
REERABEENERE -

o AREESFREFREARL - AEEREE
BERESERRE2ZESGHE - EXRINEBR
B BOREHR - ARRL - ERAR  BEEERES
HEMEHEERTRIENTE - MBRRKERT
KEEBEARR - RIES B RIFVEAT M
REXAAEERE RAXBER  FRERAK - DA
BARFE R IR REFE -

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)

The Group adopts standardised (credit risk) (“STC") approach and
standardised (market risk) (“STM") approach to calculate the credit risk
capital charge and the market risk capital charge respectively.

The Group adopts the standardised credit valuation adjustment
("CVA") method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA risk of the
counterparty and the standardised (operational risk) (“STO") approach
to calculate the operational risk capital charge and, with the approval
from the HKMA, excluded its structural FX positions pursuant to section
317C of the Banking (Capital) Rules in the calculation of the market risk
capital charge.

The Group adopts an internal capital adequacy assessment process
("ICAAP") to comply with the HKMA's requirements in the Supervisory
Policy Manual “Supervisory Review Process” in 2021. Based on the
HKMA's guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP has been initiated to assess the
extra capital needed to cover the material risks not captured or not
adequately captured under Pillar I, and therefore minimum Common
Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum
Total capital ratio are determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges for
the aforementioned capital ratios have also been established which
enable the flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital
utilisation. The Group considers this ICAAP as an on-going process for
capital management and periodically reviews and adjusts its capital
structure where appropriate in relation to the overall risk profile.

In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then
submitted to the Board for approval after endorsement of the ALCO.
The plan is built up by assessing the implications of various factors
upon capital adequacy such as the business strategies, return on equity,
risk appetite, credit rating, as well as regulatory requirements. Hence,
the future capital requirement is determined and capital sources are
identified also. The plan is to ensure the Group maintains adequate
capital and appropriate capital structure which align with its business
development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk,
return and capital adequacy.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation

EEEHREMNSE EMTRERGERITHE (AAR) HADBHAR The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions
RITREF D SERIEEZMBRREK - EEFHE of the Bank and certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in

BHE  ARBEBSHMBEREEAGERBAR - & accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. For accounting purposes,
HEHN [k —RR172 BB AA - subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with HKFRSs and the list of

subsidiaries is set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the Bank".

BREEEHRNGEHE MR EEERERE The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting

HEANMMNER R BN

scope of consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of
consolidation are as follows:

2021 2020

EEARE BB BEMATE BNERR

Total assets  Total equity Total assets Total equity

BT T BT T BT T BT T

2 Name HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FFRERITETEAR Nanyang Commercial Bank Trustee

N Limited 16,807 16,698 16,746 16,637
EFEEEEEERAT Kwong Li Nam Investment

Agency Limited 4,724 4,585 4,914 4,561
R ERIT(REBA) Nanyang Commercial Bank

BIRAT] (Nominees) Limited 1,430 1,430 1,441 1,441
MR EEEERAR AT * NCB Wealth Management

Advisor Limited* 5,117 4,981 1,777 1,610

* ZFRAE 2021 FRUWREE - LLEREUR AKE AT 2R & @ This subsidiary was newly acquired in 2021, the comparative figures are based

i

4F

on the pre-acquisition data

LA EME AR E EEBEHN [ Mg — RRIT 2B The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in “Appendix

AR -

M2021F12 A318 » W EEMFBA
EERTERARE  MTEEEDE

(2020 : £&) ©

— Subsidiaries of the Bank".

AR BEE There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory
Al & & scope of consolidation but not included within the accounting scope of

consolidation as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

YN

2021512 A31 8 - TR EAE A E A 7 [ R 85 Neither were there any subsidiaries which are included within both

SIHERINEER TGS

(20204 : £E) ©

156 .

#HEMEATRLRE 7% the accounting scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of

consolidation where the methods of consolidation differ as at 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).



RAFSER AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4., SHREREE®
44 EXREE(E)

=~ 4

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)

(B) EAXHE (B) Capital ratio
2021 2020
TmE - RE AR X CET1 capital ratio 12.54% 12.89%
—ARE AR Tier 1 capital ratio 15.02% 15.61%
FE=P NS Total capital ratio 18.46% 19.26%
FRRETE A EE AR X 2 MBE KRG B ARERED T The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the calculation of
W the above capital ratios is analysed as follows:
2021 2020
BT T PEETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
LRI — AN - 2R CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
HEBITHE BB T ERE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital instruments
—MEREE 3,144,517 3,144,517
1REB %R A Retained earnings 43,323,642 40,738,381
BB Disclosed reserves 10,542,440 9,821,320
ELE IR A A AR A CET1 capital before regulatory deductions
—RER 57,010,599 53,704,218
LERE— R ER EEEHR  CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
HEFAE Valuation adjustments (91) (118)
BHIBRIEERIE B E Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities
EETIREE (352,791) (430,257)
RAFEEBENAER Gains and losses due to changes in
REREARBREETEE own credit risk on fair valued liabilities
pfiskn (940) (2,133)
B 13 M2 ) (B B IR E Cumulative fair value gains arising from
PR ) #ETTEEE L EE R the revaluation of land and buildings
2REAFEERKES (own-use and investment properties) (6,862,754) (6,781,431)
—RRERITEL R EEHE Regulatory reserve for general banking risks (2,636,044) (2,453,479)
SR E—RER Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital
B BB HI R AR AR (9.852,620) (9,667,418)
LTERE—RER CET1 capital 47,157,979 44,036,800
FIN—ME R Additional Tier 1 capital 9,314,890 9,314,890
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4., SHREREE®
44 EXREE(E)
(B) EAXHLZEGE)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)

(B) Capital ratio (Cont'd)

2021 2020
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
—RET Tier 1 capital 56,472,869 53,351,690
ZRHRER . BERERES Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
BB ZREARREIEM Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus any
MR RE related share premium 5,427,666 5,392,907
BERFTAZREARNEE Collective impairment allowances and regulatory
ERE R —RIRTTER reserve for general banking risks eligible
EEHE for inclusion in Tier 2 capital 4,413,868 4,020,931
BB R 2 BB — AR B Tier 2 capital before requlatory deductions 9,841,534 9,413,838
AREZR ESEHA Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
nE& &R AZRERD Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising from
A ¥ 11 [ ) the revaluation of land and buildings (own-use and
(BRRKERSZ)#ET investment properties) eligible for inclusion
BEEAEMEENZRTE in Tier 2 capital
NHEEWRE 3,088,239 3,051,644
HZRMERNEEEHR 28 Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital 3,088,239 3,051,644
ZHRENR Tier 2 capital 12,929,773 12,465,482
BE AR Total capital 69,402,642 65,817,172
W@ EE AL ESITAT The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:
R20214 #2020 F
12A31H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
B E AL = Capital conservation buffer ratio 2.5% 2.5%
PEMEEE AL X Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.60% 0.61%
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44 EBEFXREEE)

(B) EXHEFE#E)

RARCIRITEE (B AN) 458D » S| AEEFEEA([CCB
tbE]) - B RRRIBITEZ BN - B R N
BEZ25%2EXR - WEABEEHEER([CCyBLLE])
AR REEEREE  AUNEEEERBERS
RERLHEBL - BESHERERAMDEBHEEA
R EREEE AR 202043 A 16 B RN 2021 4F
10 A28 H#ERF AR INEEE 2 1.00% °

FREABRENFAAENTRARITHEE

www.ncb.com.hk  [EBSE K EE | —FBIE o

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)

(B) Capital ratio (Cont'd)

In accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the Capital Conservation
Buffer (“CCB") is designed to ensure banks build up capital outside
periods of stress of 2.5% of risk-weighted assets (“RWAs"”). The
Countercyclical Capital Buffer (“CCyB") which is set on an individual
country basis and is built up during periods of excess credit growth to
protect against future losses. The HKMA announced that the CCyB for
Hong Kong is 1.00% of RWAs from 16 March 2020 and announced it
remains unchanged on 28 October 2021 respectively.

The additional information of capital disclosures is available
under section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’'s website at
www.ncb.com.hk.

) FEBEREE (C) Leverage ratio
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
—RER Tier 1 capital 56,472,869 53,351,690
TER B R @ B A Leverage ratio exposure 582,164,898 533,313,515
TEARLL 2 Leverage ratio 9.70% 10.00%

ERERELERENHBTERNAIRARITEA

www.nch.com.hk A [ES B FE | —E0 3% -

The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available
under section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at
www.ncb.com.hk.
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5. BEENEENQIAE
FIBRAREFERENBRERARBENEERE
B ORBFEMBHRELENFE 3% [AAEFE] DN
EE RARERERADE - Z2F0 B2 REE
TEFRANRARZ AIBREREARN - WEARHE
BAREMEEEATEZREERARRETE

- F—BE : HREEXBBELERETIST R
BORKEHR) - LERABRB LHROEZS -
HMAOBFHEITHER LA - ETHARZHINT
ERHREDE -

— FBE  DENEERMARAN&ERER
AE(ARFHEBAABFEAEATE)
AR E RN AR EE - KERBERLOS
SN ZHIDTERH) - RfAERFGHEEHERE
BEEBE SR ERE - RS TeRE ]8R
WS EZET T FTERBBNESBRY
=,

- F=RBE  DENEERMATRAOKERER
RER(FAEFHEBREFEFEATE)
BARHER - WERBREEATAERRR
EHRERE BB TA  BRBEREEE -
RIS TN EES AT BRN T ERTETT T EXH
EHE -

HRUBEREERRBNUBRRNEEREE K
SEeRE -MBERERMNEEREHNTHED
BRERGEBRANEFEFEAFEZREERE
) WHEEESEANEER 2 MELER -

o

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”. The categorisation
are determined with reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in the valuation methods and based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

— Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities. This category includes listed
equity shares, debt instruments issued by certain governments,
certain exchange-traded derivative contracts and precious
metals.

— Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes
majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt securities and
certificates of deposit with quote from pricing services vendors.
It also includes precious metals and properties with insignificant
adjustments made to observable market inputs.

— Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable. This category includes equity investment, debt
instruments, rediscounted bills and forfeiting with significant
unobservable components. It also includes properties with
significant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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51 UAREFENSETIAR

AREBRY TENAREEQREHRRE - AE
BIERB LR AR E S B EERZE - BEHE
NARBVZENREBZAEERMERAER
& H S EENEFERRENEENGEESH -
BEANHEFESRAEEEER

BEANAHATIZERRER - AREEB—LAE
R ER,/ XomABRBEESMIANAR
B -

URASEMFENeRIA - HAERMNERNE
R2YBRESFER  MEX - EX - ESRKEE
% RE s RPBFEEMNEREM  TRR/AKR
FAMSERLERN2H -

RUABEATERITAAAENGETENAT

EXTA FiE- BYME FEEZ

HRTAMNAARERRSH - X5ERINEBLAE
RIS HERREROTISRERERRRBESRER S
TRTE - BRR S MELE — BN BB AR S
o A {ER BRI 5 BRI ) T AR EES
BEZMBAERY—RUARRAEERKRFESE
% AR2ERXAEVKAKEOBAE - FLBH
RS LRI M BRI T BRN TSGR

=

g o

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)
5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls
framework to ensure that fair values are either determined or validated
by control units independent of the front offices. Control units
have overall responsibility for independent verification of valuation
results from front line businesses and all other significant fair value
measurements. Specific controls include verification of observable
pricing inputs. Significant valuation issues are reported to the
Management.

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to
determine the fair value of financial instruments when unable to obtain
the open market quotation in active markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial
instruments held by the Group include bond prices, interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices, volatilities, counterparty
credit spreads and others, which are mostly observable and obtainable
from open market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial
instruments is as below:

Debt instruments, certificates of deposit, rediscounted
bills and forfeiting

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted
market prices from exchange, dealer or independent pricing service
vendors or using discounted cash flow technique. Discounted cash
flow model is a valuation technique that measures present value using
estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments and then
discounts these flows using a discount margin that reflects the credit
spreads required by the market for instruments with similar risk or
a discount rate which is referred to the transaction interest rate of
instruments with similar risk as at the end of the month and inter-bank
bid rate as the final discount rate. These inputs are observable or can be
corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.
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5. BENMEBBHNARE®E

51 HUAAREBENENESMIAE)

T A

BINZ GEINTETEEGXBIEINE « MRS mAE
B - IR EIES L) c STHE TEA AN EREEEMEL
RIS REE R AT EESMERINERE - FifE
AR AR BRS T BEmGEE - Al8RN2
HEEFE  EX - HRERKEE - THERNZ
HnR B R A AR B S BETERPIER 508
ZHHERED W EEHNITETARASDN AR
EBIRER /R HFZRERBER -

REBHISINZSGMTETAEL TEERERER
BEBEERE - ARSI HIRRETISZERREE - X5
HFEEREBEHEESENHE - FHRARIE
RRG-RXSHTF - UARKERHA - BOFRKE

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts
on foreign exchange, interest rate or commodity. The fair values of
these contracts are mainly measured using valuation techniques such as
discounted cash flow models and option pricing models. The inputs can
be observable or unobservable market data. Observable inputs include
interest rate, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and volatilities.
Unobservable inputs such as volatility surface may be used for less
commonly traded option products which are embedded in structured
deposits. For certain complex derivative contracts, the fair values are
determined based on broker/dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA") and debit valuation adjustments
("DVA") are applied to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments
reflect market factors movement, expectations of counterparty
creditworthiness and the Group’s own credit spread respectively. They
are mainly determined for each counterparty and are dependent on
expected future values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery
rates.



RAFSER AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

=~ 4

5. BENAEENARE®W) 5.  FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)
51 LHUAAREENESBRIACE) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)
(A) AREER (A)  Fair value hierarchy
2021
F—EBR EZER E=ER et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BET T BET T BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
@Eﬂﬁg Financial assets
AEZETAEE Financial assets at fair value
Zﬁ@ﬂé@%(ﬁﬁ%‘fzo) through profit or loss (Note 20)
- X514 — Trading
— BERHEFH — Debt securities - 7,252,326 - 7,252,326
— A AR EE — Mandatorily measured at fair
FTAELE - ERFH value through profit or loss,
non trading
— B EH — Debt securities - 730,024 29,574 759,598
— At — Others - - 17,438,255 17,438,255
Bt 78 25 — Equity securities 101,430 - 1,470,961 1,572,391
PTESmT A (FRE21) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 21) 265,547 569,417 - 834,964
AR EZET AR Financial investments at fair value
ZEKEN SRR E through other comprehensive
(FfF5E23) income (Note 23)
— BBFESFREFRE — Debt securities and certificates
of deposit 1,559,297 135,806,213 - 137,365,510
— kh#EH — Equity securities - - 49,933 49,933
= =R Financial liabilities
AABEZ T ABEZ Financial liabilities at fair value
R E (MaE27) through profit or loss (Note 27)
- X5k ~ Trading - 6,415,312 - 6,415,312
PTHESBMIT A (MEE21) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 21) 96,576 718,094 - 814,670
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5. BENAEENARE®W) 5.  FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)
51 MUQAEFENSEMIAE) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)
(A) AAREBERGE) (A)  Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)
2020
FE—ER F_EBA FBH “ast
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BB T T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TREE Financial assets
NAEZ T AERZ Financial assets at fair value
SEEE (MizE20) through profit or loss (Note 20)
] — Trading
— BEBES - Debt securities - 6,497,759 - 6,497,759
— AR R EE — Mandatorily measured at fair
FrAEE - value through profit or loss,
RS non trading
— Hfth - Others - - 16,415,554 16,415,554
PrEer T A (KsE21) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 21) 267,649 763,414 - 1,031,063
IARASER R AEAM Financial investments at fair value
ZHWENS/HIZE through other comprehensive
(Pfts£23) income (Note 23)
— E%E 5 R EE — Debt securities and certificates
of deposit 1,162,689 128,893,348 - 130,056,037
— RO FEH — Equity securities = = 54,109 54,109
TRIEE Financial liabilities
AAEEZ L AERZ Financial liabilities at fair value
eRaE(MEE27) through profit or loss (Note 27)
- 5% — Trading - 6,650,987 - 6,650,987
PTEemIA (FzE21) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 21) 88,464 1,794,489 - 1,882,953

AEBZEMEERABNERNYREE—BRNE
B ERERE (20204 : £) °

164 .

There were no financial asset and liability transfers between level 1 and
level 2 for the Group during the year (2020: Nil).
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5. EENMBEBMARE®) 5.
51 UUAAREFENSETA(E) 5.1
(B) ZE=[ERHIBEEEE (B)

=~ 4

FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

Reconciliation of level 3 items

2021
SRIEE
Financial assets
A RERTA
Hith 2 mE iz
HERBRE
B ARE Financial
BT ABE investments
Mandatorily measured at at fair value

fair value through profit or loss through other

ERZMH comprehensive
Non trading income
v B3 7% 3%
BEES Hith Equity Equity
Debt securities Others securities securities
BET T BET T BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R2021F1A1H At 1 January 2021 - 16,415,554 - 54,109
gz Gains
— Wmx — Income statement - 608,715 - -
— Hth 2 AR — Other comprehensive
income
— LAARBERTAEA — Change in fair value of
ZEWEH R financial assets at
BEZAAERE fair value through
other comprehensive
income - - - (4,176)
— ERER — Exchange difference - 293,291 - -
e Additions 29,574 134,845,260 1,470,961 -
RE - EE R Disposals, redemptions
and maturity - (134,724,565) - -
7M2021%F12 A31H At 31 December 2021 29,574 17,438,255 1,470,961 49,933
7K2021F12 A31H Total unrealised gain for the
BFAENCREE period included in income
REARFE AW TR A statement for financial assets
AREBR WA held as at 31 December 2021 - 27,990 - -

#1798 7% 4 45 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2021 ANNUAL REPORT 438 » www.ncb.com hk

165



e

RAFSER AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

5. EENAGHNAARE® 5.  FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)
51 MUQAEFENSEMIAE) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)
(B) FE=FERWEEZE (&) (B)  Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont'd)
2020

Financial assets
BHIEAR A LARTSERTA
B Et A Hth2mEkas

Mandatorily K2R E
measured at Financial
fair value investments
through profit at fair value
or loss through other
JERX S comprehensive
Non trading income
HAth &0 7 %
Others  Equity securities
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RK2020F1 A1 H At 1 January 2020 7,908,715 31,163
W gs Gains
— WEmxk — Income statement 450,003 -
— Hfb 2 EWE — Other comprehensive income
— AAREET AEA — Change in fair value of financial assets
2HEWER©F at fair value through other comprehensive
BEZRAAEZ income - 22,946
— [EHZERH — Exchange difference 545,912 =
HE Additions 100,853,300 -
BRE - ME[ & EH Disposal, redemptions and maturity (93,342,376) =
72020412 A31 8 At 31 December 2020 16,415,554 54,109
2020512 A31 BIFEH Total unrealised gain for the period included in income
EEENANGT AREE statement for financial assets held as
MARER WAL at 31 December 2020 21,583 =

M2021F12A31H &2020F 128318 2 & As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, financial instruments

FoESANSRTAZZEAUAREREFABRZ categorised as level 3 are mainly comprised of financial assets at fair
BREENIE LR - value through profit or loss and unlisted equity shares.

o
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5. BENMEBBHNARE®E

51 HUAREBERENSEIRGE

(B) FE=[ERAEEEE (&)

N R M EAMIAR R EZ LT ABRENIAR
REFARMEENSEZ SREE - NEBRX ZH
FRAE  EARENFEFERA THHEELSE
AFENTABRR2E ARAKERELERTA
ENEF=ER - AEEE R AENBEHIZFE
ZEEHEESRITANKA -

FEMBRENAETSERHEEN LM ARIZF
BWE/ BARE  ERAERENHLBENAR
AREEEFEETE - ARBERLETARREEFE
BESFHHARMGARENRMDERABETET
RANEATAER2HT

fhER % EXTABRZE

Valuation method

Significant unobservable inputs

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont'd)

For certain illiquid others financial assets classified as fair value through
profit or loss and fair value through other comprehensive income, the
Group obtains valuation guotations from counterparties which may be
based on unobservable inputs with significant impact on the valuation.
Therefore, these instruments have been classified by the Group as level
3. The Group has established internal control procedures to control the
Group's exposure to such financial instruments.

The fair values of unlisted equity shares are determined with reference
to multiples of comparable listed companies, such as average of the
price/earning ratios of comparables, or net asset value, if appropriate
comparables are not available. The significant unobservable inputs
applied in the fair values measurement of the Group’s unlisted fair value
through other comprehensive income equity shares are as follows:

HE TAERSHE
D RENERF
Relationship of
unobservable inputs

Range to fair value

~

miE,/ BAEE

Price/earning ratios

TS EOA
Market comparison approach

m{E,/ BREFEEE

Price/Book ratios

EEE/HENE

e 8 3 A
EV/EBITDA

RENMERL K
Liquidity discount

AR S0k TiERA
Recent transaction approach N/A
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e/ BHEHDS
RAETD

The higher the price/earning ratios,

9.6-323
(2020: 7.0 -52.7)

the higher the fair value.

24-89 mE/REFEas
(2020: N/A) AAERS
The higher the Price/Book
ratios, the higher the fair value.
4.0-20.7 TEEER TENER

EHpAERR - AAERS
The higher the EV/EBITDA ratios,
the higher the fair value.

(2020: 0.08 — 34.29)

30% TENERKAS - RAMERE
(2020: 30%) The higher the liquidity discount,
the lower the fair value.

ER NEM
N/A N/A
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5. BENMEBBHNARE®E

51 HUAAREFENESBRIACE)

(B) ZE=[EREEZE (&)
ARERBEGRAZAILERME,/ BFEEHLE ™
&/ BEEFEGHLRMOEEE FHEFE Rk
RIFE - FEEMBR - BEANGERIT EHEXR
TR ERZEUE N, WD 5% @ BIANEBEE 2w
A I SR S TR S 3E 00, Rl S HE 2,497,000 7T(2020
12 A318 : 2,705,000 7T ) M # 73,548,000
JL(20204F 12 A31H : &) - E3ELMRERMNHA
REEZIZR—ENTIER2HTER - ATl
FERBAERNTRZ2BEENREFSZTF 2 &
{t °

52 FUQAAEFENEEMIA
RAABEBRAE—FERBHIZBETHERN L TR
TRZERKE - LT 2 ERBRERERBR
ARFHERERTIAZARE-

M HRBITREAMEBEM S RES
2

AEn 2 @ REENBBEHNE
HEREEREQERE -

i

B&—FR2H

FEFEH
REA 2 EFPERZFBNE - M5
B HREEREARERS

& 5 R

e A e BRyEH T A
AR ANMERTEMN B TEZ A EEE EM T
51 NARREENEBTARRAZIERR -

EFEH
RED 2 BEPFFENERE BR—FAZIE - HRE
BERAERES °

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont’d)
(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont'd)

The fair value is positively correlated to the price/earning ratios, price/
booking ratios and EV/EBITDA of appropriate comparables. Had the
significant unobservable inputs applied on the valuation techniques
increased/decreased by 5% (31 December 2020: 5%), the Group’s
other comprehensive income and profit or loss would have increased/
decreased by HK$2,497,000 (31 December 2020: HK$2,705,000) and
HK$73,548,000 (31 December 2020: Nil) respectively. When the fair
value of the unlisted shares are affected by more than one unobservable
input, the aforesaid impact reflects the most favourable or the most
unfavourable change from varying inputs individually.

5.2  Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on
relevant market information and information about various financial
instruments. The following methods and assumptions have been used
to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument as far as
practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions
and trade bills

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one
year from the balance sheet date and their carrying value approximates
fair value.

Advances to customers

Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms,
bear interest at prevailing market interest rates and their carrying value
approximates fair value.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

The fair value of debt instruments at amortisation cost is determined by
using the same approach as those debt instruments measured at fair
value as described in Note 5.1.

Deposits from customers

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year
from the balance sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair
value.



RAFSER AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

5. EENMBEBMARE®)
52 FLAABEHEMNESBIASE)

ERTEBESRFHE
HETRZ AREEFEEMES 1AL AREFTER
BT ERFRERA 2 IEER -

REEE
WRTAZAAEEERNES1RARREFER
BT ERFHRERAZIAER e

B LERAEEAAERENERTAIN TR
FEARAEFEN SR T AZREBEMILE -

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

5.2  Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

The fair value of these instruments is determined by using the same
approach as those debt instruments and certificates of deposit
measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

Subordinated liabilities

The fair value of the instrument is determined by using the same
approach as those debt instruments and certificates of deposit
measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the
financial instruments not measured at fair value, except for the above
with their carrying values being approximation of fair values.

~

2021 2020

BRMEE ARE BRTEE AV

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

BET T BET T BT BT

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000

SRIEE Financial assets

ABEERI ARG 2 1Y Debt instruments at

BEFTA amortised cost 592,486 592,486 2,779,095 2,859,873
SRIEE Financial liabilities

BB TEE B S RIFRE Debt securities and certificates

of deposit in issue
‘EEE Subordinated liabilities

31,755,227 31,912,287 24,014,435 24,178,199
5,451,286 5,604,743 5,416,390 5,622,606
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5. EENAGHNAARE® 5.  FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

52 FUAAEBEENESETIA(E) 5.2  Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

TRINTEBBEQAAENERTEZ ARBEZR The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial

instruments with fair values disclosed.

2021
F—BR EBR FE=EBR st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BEET T BEET T BEET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EMEE Financial assets
LABESRR A VES T B BETS T A Debt instruments at amortised cost - - 592,486 592,486
tEas Financial liabilities
BB TES B H RIF R Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue - 31,912,287 - 31,912,287
®EEaE Subordinated liabilities - 5,604,743 - 5,604,743
2020
F—ER E_EBR E=EBR “ast
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EHMEE Financial assets
LABESARK AN {EZT 2 B91&E7% T B Debt instruments at amortised cost = 1,898,476 961,397 2,859,873
= =R Financial liabilities
BB TEKE S RIFRE Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue - 24,178,199 - 24,178,199

BEAE Subordinated liabilities = 5,622,606 = 5,622,606
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5. BENMEBBHNARE®E

53 LUAREENFEMIA
AEERB - LEERMSEET S REREE IS
BMTAMARE -

REWFEREE

REBZMEA D RRENEREE - MAAKEZ
REMERFEECETER - MEMRBSIFIEE
HOTRIGHENTTBER A RI#ETT - AR BEERE
BEAREXGENEXEEERZAR  YHEME
MEMmRLRRER LEEER - BEAENSEER
RERETH - AREEEESRAEMIRAGEES
% HERKREEER - RETEZRFRREXR

() FE_ERAAEFTER ARG ETEREE

WABRFE_BRZMENRRE - HRETLRY)
FOOHHERRE (MSLEE) H2EmEHAE R
BEREE(BABRE) - BHATLEYMEREHEY)
¥ZRNERELEEIE - WERBRA B ERE
AEAUTEBREATE -

AEBZMEBUNBERALZ BT - AR
ERRNMERANYMETS AILEMEZHEE T
BHEREMER—RGAIEHLENS EREEKE
BRERRFE -

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)
5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group uses valuation technigues or quoted market prices in active
market to determine the fair value of non-financial instruments.

Investment properties and premises

The Group's properties can be divided into investment properties and
premises. All of the Group's investment properties and premises were
revalued. The valuations were carried out by an independent firm of
chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited, who have among their
staff Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the locations and categories of properties being
valued. The Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors
on the valuation methods, valuation assumptions and valuation results
when the valuation is performed at each interim and annual reporting
date. There has been no change in valuation methods during the year.

0] Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using
either the market comparison approach by reference to recent sales
price of comparable properties or the income capitalisation approach
by reference to market rent and capitalisation rate, with appropriate
adjustments to reflect the differences between the comparable
properties and the subject properties. These adjustments are considered
as insignificant to the entire measurement.

The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the
PRC where the property markets are considered active and transparent.
Sales price, market rent and capitalisation rate of comparable properties
are generally observable either directly or indirectly in these markets.
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5. EENMBEBMARE®)
53 LUAARBEHBHNISEBIAH)

REYWEREE (&)
(i)  BHFE=BRALETEHEH

BAOBRF=ZBANAEENE 2 AAEHRATES
HEORHMABARL - BRAKEMEAH N AT LR
YEZHEFIMEERBREE -

AT REARBEFEFHRIBAFE=BR2AKE
MEFARANBEITNERERTATBREERE

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

Investment properties and premises (Cont'd)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is
determined using either the market comparison approach or the income
capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific
to the features of the Group’s properties compared to the comparable
properties.

The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the
fair value measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3
are as follows:

TABRERER
¥ ARENER
HER* EATTEERE Weighted Relationship of unobservable
Valuation method Significant unobservable inputs average inputs to fair value
Hix MG RASMABARE MERG AL EMEELE F 5.7% NEMS - DAEBE o
Other properties Market comparison approach or (2020: 4.3%) The higher the discount,

income capitalisation approach

MERE T BMEEIRLE F 2 B2 ZEA LR
MEETRARENER - PIINAKRIE Z Ti5 %
B - EE B MR B EE fREM
BEE -

172 .

Discount on features of the property
compared to comparable properties

the lower the fair value.

Discount on features of a property is determined after taken into
account various factors, such as time for market movement, location,
accessibility, building age/condition, floor level, size, layout, with
reference to the differences in features with comparable properties.
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5. BENMEBBHNARE®E

53 LAREBEENFEMIAGE

ARNEREERMSEREXEE THEND

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

(Cont'd)
Precious metals

The fair values of precious metals are determined by obtaining
quoted market prices in active market or market quote with certain

adjustments.

(A)  Fair value hierarchy

2021
E—BR EEBR E=BHR et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FEeMEE Non-financial assets
WA (MiFE24) Investment properties (Note 24) - 13,400 314,210 327,610
WEE - 230 R AE (97 25)  Properties, plant and equipment
(Note 25) - 382,604 6,893,850 7,276,454
— FE — Premises
& E (FiaE26) Other assets (Note 26)
BB — Precious metals 133,172 241,091 - 374,263
2020
E—ER F_E BB HET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
PR T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERMEE Non-financial assets
wEYZE (155 24) Investment properties (Note 24) = 13,400 327,680 341,080
M - 22 K& (FIFE25)  Properties, plant and equipment
(Note 25)
—BE — Premises - 1,621,200 5,598,890 7,220,090
Hin&E (FisE26) Other assets (Note 26)
— B8 — Precious metals 157,558 247,160 - 404,718

REBZICHEENFANREE—BRARE_BL
2 EHEERS (2020 4F « 48) o

There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1 and level 2
for the Group during the year (2020: Nil).
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5. EENAGHNAARE® 5.  FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)
53 UQAAEFENEESRTIAGE) 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)
(B) HE=[ERHHEEZE (B)  Reconciliation of level 3 items
2021
FEMEE
Non-financial assets
M - BMR
=B
Properties,
plant and
REWH equipment
Investment EE
properties Premises
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
R2021F1 A1 H At 1 January 2021 327,680 5,598,890
Was Gains
— Wz — Income statement
— EEEEFRE — Net gain from revaluation of premises - 2,056
— Hih 2 EWE — Other comprehensive income
- FEEMR — Revaluation of premises - 61,401
®E Additions - 100,786
e Depreciation - (140,129)
B HH Reclassification (13,470) 13,470
A Transfer in - 1,236,153
PE =R Exchange difference - 21,223
R20214 124318 At 31 December 2021 314,210 6,893,850
R2021F12 A31 HEER Total unrealised gain for the year included
FEMEERFAFTA in income statement for non-financial assets
WamRHARER =B held as at 31 December 2021
— B EEF R — Net gain from revaluation of premises - 2,056
- 2,056

e

o
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5. EENAGHNAARE® 5.  FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)
53 HAREFENFERMIAME) 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)
(B) FE=[ERHHEEZE (&) (B)  Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont'd)
2020
FemEE
Non-financial assets
Y - /MR
B
Properties,
plant and
HEWZE equipment
Investment BE
properties Premises
PR TIT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
K2020F1 A1 H At 1 January 2020 348,420 7,154,208
& Gains
— R — Income statement
— BREMERAERE — Net loss from fair value adjustments
ZEEE on investment properties (2,950) =
— EHFEEZFEE — Net loss from revaluation of premises = (6,686)
— Hib2EWE — Other comprehensive income
— FEEM — Revaluation of premises = (101,107)
®E Additions - 6,341
e Depreciation = (103,833)
EHOLE Reclassification (17,790) 17,790
=i Transfer out = (1,415,143)
bE H ZERR Exchange difference = 47,320
7M2020%12 A31H At 31 December 2020 327,680 5,598,890
R 2020 12 A31 HIFAEH Total unrealised losses for the year included
FERMEERFRNGTA in income statement for non-financial assets
W R ARER B85 held as at 31 December 2020
— REWMEAREREZ — Net loss from fair value adjustments
FEE on investment properties (2,950) =
— EAEEZFERE — Net loss from revaluation of premises = (6,686)
(2,950) (6,686)
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5. EENMBEBMARE®)
53 LUAARBEHBHNISEBIAH)

(B) FE=[ERAIEEEE (&)
BARBHE = BRNMERDEZEREEYERY
HALhBYEENE F 288/ (T8 REAHRE
1EFaIER - WE E2E(E, (FTE) HBEURRKREEY
FETHRRZALBMEELE LNER - ANE
FREAHATISRIZ IR ED G TNEAR -
MEYEET LR EELE 2 RE (I E) 848
ESFEMEL  KMHABENMEERMETL
WBZEBRETEHE2Z(L - SIRYERBARE R
E=ER -

6. FFREWA

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont'd)

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due to change in
the premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and
comparable properties during the year. Premium/(discount) on features
is determined with reference to differences in features between the
subject properties and the comparable properties recently transacted
in the market. As comparable properties that come from recent market
transactions may be different in each year, the premium/(discount) on
features applied between the subject and comparable properties would
change from year to year accordingly. As a result, the significance of
adjustments made to observable market inputs may vary and lead to
the transfer of properties into and out of level 3.

6. NET INTEREST INCOME

2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FIE WA Interest income
TR 3 & E Ath & gk s Due from banks and other financial institutions
BIFRIE 486,744 546,025
EFEEX Advances to customers 8,655,833 9,067,041
SEIEE Financial investments 2,564,111 2,864,290
HAth Others 14,245 21,883
11,720,933 12,499,239
FEXZH Interest expense
B3 N H A& R IB 7 A FIE  Due to banks and other financial institutions (480,324) (332,917)
Y SNES N Deposits from customers (3.360,672) (4,788,758)
BB TES B H M FRE Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue (1,052,916) (615,134)
‘REAE Subordinated liabilities (209,955) (209,386)
HEBE Lease liabilities (27,728) (18,838)
HAh Others (263,922) (165,719)
(5,395,517) (6,130,752)
R E WA Net interest income 6,325,416 6,368,487

FEURARBER A BR cREEHATRAERE
AERH EA KA B H 5 Bl A48 11,720,933,000
(20204 : B% 12,499,239,000 ) M B
5,395,517,0007L (20204 : 7% 6,130,752,0007T) ©

e

7+ 3

Included within interest income and interest expense are
HK$11,720,933,000 (2020: HK$12,499,239,000) and
HK$5,395,517,000 (2020: HK$6,130,752,000) for financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair value through profit or
loss respectively.
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7. ERBERASBA 7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
2021 2020
BEET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIS ERAEWA Fee and commission income
BExAe Loan commissions 650,203 611,581
BHLEL Securities brokerage 312,536 304,096
fRBz Insurance 228,536 200,961
EERE Bills commissions 186,088 158,908
HE D Funds distribution 157,515 130,461
B IRTS Payment services 48,422 44,788
RE Safe deposit box 42,635 40,570
1 RAEE IR Trust and custody services 3,336 24,535
ERRER Credit card business 4,558 6,120
BEE Currency exchange 436 391
HAth Others 174,518 184,855
1,808,783 1,707,266
BREERMAEXH Fee and commission expense
BHLER Securities brokerage (43,814) (41,205)
ERRER Credit card business (2,487) (3,284)
RIS Payment services (9) (1)
HAth Others (46,929) (43,320)
(93,239) (87,810)
BFREERASWA Net fee and commission income 1,715,544 1,619,456
HRR Of which arise from
— JEAR R EE LR ABZE — financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value
ZeREESERBE through profit or loss
— R ERASEA — Fee and commission income 818,543 615,823
— R E MBS H — Fee and commission expense (5,906) (4,699)
812,637 611,124
— EREREAMZFEEE) — trust and other fiduciary activities
— R E KA KA — Fee and commission income 3,336 24,535
— RBEEASSH — Fee and commission expense (1,372) (1,351)
1,964 23,184
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8. FXRGZMW= 8. NET TRADING GAIN
2021 2020
BEET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B (BB RE Net gain/(loss) from
— INER 5 RINEZ FE — foreign exchange and foreign exchange products 427,174 130,523
— METERASEL — interest rate instruments and items under
mIEH fair value hedge (109,839) (47,150)
— &M — commodities (6,446) (2,506)
310,889 80,867
9. HttEemEEZFWE 9. NET GAIN ON OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
2021 2020
BET T BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
AAREE T AEMZ2EYRZE  Net gain on financial investments measured at fair value
B & B E 2 R E through other comprehensive income 165,857 261,805
HAth Others (12,565) (12,036)
153,292 249,769
10. HbKE WA 10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BAHRERBUA Dividend income from investment in securities
— ELETHEERE — Unlisted investments 1,905 2,165
B A BRA Gross rental income from investment properties 10,185 10,071
B BEAREYE 2N Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties (728) (980)
Hh Others 11,153 7,332
22,515 18,588

[BRAREMEZSH | BREFAREEEEMECE
&S 1B 132,000 JT(20204F ¥ 146,000
JT) °

FREERATCEEEREYEZHASBUA
(20204 : ) o

178 .

Included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment properties” is
HK$132,000 (2020: HK$146,000) of direct operating expenses related
to investment properties that were not let during the year.

There was no contingent rent included in the “Gross rental income
from investment properties” during the year (2020: Nil).
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11. BEEEZRE

11. NET CHARGE OF IMPAIRMENT

=~ 4

ALLOWANCES
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEHERTT R E {2 miid Balances with banks and other
EOFCT 3 financial institutions 1,622 (1,116)
ER N EMERTE Advances and other accounts (1,413,149) (1,269,721)
SRIRE Financial investments 29,533 (24,855)
Hih &z Other assets 3,911 (1,001)
B EIR Financial guarantees (128,263) (38,510)
B RRiE Loan commitments 7,077 (23,944)
BB ZEE R B Net charge of impairment allowances (1,499,269) (1,359,147)
12. REXH 12. OPERATING EXPENSES
2021 2020
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ASEBR(BREESHE) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
— F R EMER — Salaries and other costs 1,503,886 1,640,892
— RIRPAS — Pension cost 279,385 184,355
— IR AREF — Supplementary retirement benefits 5,930 4,910
1,789,201 1,830,157
EENRESE CNEEE)  Premises and equipment expenses (excluding depreciation)
— RHRREEEERE — leases of short-term or low-value assets 67,506 3,801
— BB — Information technology 91,647 63,071
— Hfh — Others 78,547 62,929
237,700 129,801
e Depreciation 534,411 519,134
ZEET & Auditor's remuneration
— EE RIS — Audit services 10,773 10,349
— FEEAFTIRTS — Non-audit services 806 3,276
HgeE i Other operating expenses
— EBHINEE — Outsourcing activities fee 353,043 350,418
— Hfth — Others 414,331 341,476
3,340,265 3,184,611
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13. REVEQAABERABZREE 13. NET LOSS FROM FAIR VALUE
ADJUSTMENTS ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES
2021 2020
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000

WEMERNNEFRZFEE  Net loss from fair value adjustments on
investment properties - (2,950)

14. HE EEYE  BHRREZ 14. NET LOSS FROM DISPOSAL/REVALUATION

FEE OF PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEXRE  BERmEERZ  Netloss from disposal of equipment, fixtures
SFEE and fittings (9,887) (1,213)
EHEREZFKE (BE) Net gain/(loss) from revaluation of premises 2,056 (6,686)
(7,831) (7,899)
15. B\ 15. TAXATION
gk A2 BEIEAEAKEAT Taxation in the income statement represents:
2021 2020
BT PEEE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
NEATIE Current tax
BBNISH Hong Kong profits tax
— FRFARIE — Current year taxation 388,288 449,802
— (TR — Qver-provision in prior years (11,685) (19,497)
376,603 430,305
YNGR Overseas taxation
— FREFARIE — Current year taxation 125,924 221,747
— AF (B8 T RBE — (Over) /under-provision in prior years (3,230) 4,043
499,297 656,095
IRIETIE Deferred tax
TR EE R Origination and reversal of temporary differences
MAFRFRERS and unused tax credits 11,666 (252,959)
510,963 403,136
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15. BIE@®E)

15. TAXATION (Cont'd)

BB NGB TR BB G 2 4 5 I ER Bt i K B = Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020:
16.5% (2020 4F : 16.5%) Fe # o B INEF) 2 B FIE 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
BRZAR G fh ST B AR B AR AR SR B 4 8 S TS FTEE I K during the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on

ZIRITRMEFTE ©

the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

AEBBRBADENEENERRIE - BBREBEESFE The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the

BMEFHENRBEBZZNAT ¢ theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong
Kong is as follows:
2021 2020
BT T PETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B %4 Bl v A Profit before taxation 3,742,050 4,218,406
1R 16.5% (2020 4F : Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%

16.5% ) st E Y HIE (2020: 16.5%) 617,438 696,037
HBRHEERE=ENTE Effect of different taxation rates in other countries 48,474 (21,723)
R R WA Income not subject to taxation (187,346) (190,507)
B LRI R 2 s Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 123,734 10,215
RIERB B T5E TR Tax losses not recognised 2 2
FRFFAREROTRISEE Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (24) 9)
ARG Over-provision in prior years (14,915) (15,454)
TEINEIREL Foreign withholding tax 612 1,323
XNFEIEARTARBFHE Adjustment in respect of distribution payment

for additional equity instruments (77,012) (76,748)
AT ARIIE Taxation charge 510,963 403,136
BRI Effective tax rate 13.65% 9.56%
16. KE 16. DIVIDENDS
2021 2020
K i ST 4azE
il BET T ot BT T
Per share Total Per share Total
HK$ HK$°000 HK$ HK$'000
B Dividends - - — =
2021 FWES KRS (20204 : ) o No dividend has been declared for the year ended 31 December 2021

(2020: Nil).
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17. BRBEREAR

(@) HEMHMKEE

AEBHTASEE IHATETHATEEZE RBECGE
S IEH)E R 2 B RN E R RRHLE Z%E
SEME - BEBERKTE - EEARBERKTE
2EARRAEEAF S 5%  MEXZ2EAHEK
AREERNAFH Z25%E15% 15 (TR E ZR%
FH) - EEFRENENK - BAEKSKEADBRIER
RIS FE M 10 F kA EZ BN TUEL 100% < B E 4t
e RIBMIFEIEMNET  REMBER MR LE
FAEA (3 BIBS FR B RR AN ) + ATUREN 30% 2= 90% Z B E
H3K - BEEWIMMEEHI  AZCGRFIEATES T
S BIERIR -

BEE(RIE S IEHI )R 2000F 12 A1 BB » NEE
N2 RIREE S oRTES T8 - &t B2 FEAB
IR ER R BERBEEERAR  REEEABTR
SRR EEESEARAT o

HZE2021 512 A318 - EHKR KA 2,138,000 7T
(20204 : #)78#560,000 7T) Z 38 WAL FTE - BREER
Rt 2 R 4EEEH) A 78 ¥ 53,785,000 7T (20204
#)75 46,822,000 7T ) - MAK B FRRE S E] 2 #
TR 4ERE Bl #4) 5 78 #5 22,154,000 70 (2020 F « 4978 #
13,199,000 7T) ©

(b) RERZEFTE

AEERE T —BFFEESNAEMNEENE T
FIEERIKET - &=t T - BTESZRKER
BRREZEE  BEEMREMERKEN

At BTSN R AR KRN E T 2 1Rt 4 aniR Hio &
R

REMERMARREZ S —MBEMER 2021
F12A31 BATRRRA B EABEGETEE -

182 .

17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

(a) Defined contribution schemes

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO
schemes exempted under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-
Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme. Under the ORSO schemes,
employees make monthly contributions to the ORSO schemes equal
to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes monthly
contributions equal to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic
salaries, depending on years of service. The employees are entitled to
receive 100% of the employer’s contributions upon retirement, early
retirement or termination of employment after completing 10 years of
service. Employees with 3 to 9 years of service are entitled to receive
the employer’s contributions at a scale ranging from 30% to 90% upon
termination of employment for other reasons other than summary
dismissal. All employer’s contributions received by employee are subject
to MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1
December 2000, the Group also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy
Choice MPF Scheme, of which the trustee is BOCI-Prudential Trustee
and the investment manager is BOCI-Prudential Manager.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for
the year ended 31 December 2021 amounting to approximately
HK$ 53,785,000 (2020: approximately HK$46,822,000), after a
deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately HK$2,138,000
(2020: approximately HK$560,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributed approximately HK$22,154,000 (2020: approximately
HK$13,199,000) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

(b) Defined benefit schemes

The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its retired
employees. Under the plan, the employees are entitled to retirement
benefits which included fully redeemed medical care, housing allowance
and other retirement benefits.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk and the risk of changes in the
life expectancy for pensioners.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined
benefit obligations were carried out at 31 December 2021 by using the
projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.
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17. BIKRBRIKA @) 17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)

(b) RERZFTE(E)

(b) Defined benefit schemes (Cont'd)

ERRERARMER EZEBERRAT ¢ The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

2021 2020

Y38 & (%) Discount rate (%) 1.6 1.3

T8 BB R B ST 1 R 3R (%) Expected rate of medical insurance cost increases (%) 6.0 6.0

TE BB RH S B S B I R 3R (%) Expected rate of social entertainment cost increases (%) 0.0 0.0

TEHRRIRAC S MBI IR K (%)  Expected rate of retirement souvenir cost increases (%) 0.0 0.0

TEHE SR E (%) Expected rate of rental increases (%) 3.0 3.0

TE AR R (%) Expected rate of withdrawal (%) 3.0-18.0 3.0-18.0

TEARSE T X Expected death rate EBAOQERR BBALDLD

Hong Kong Hong Kong

Life Tables 2020  Life Tables 2019

EARBERARE FERERR 2GRSO ¢ A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the
end of the reporting period is shown below:
2021

REFZEA RERNZEA

A2 AEZ

#m,/ () #mn,/ Ghid)

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

L3I m in defined a9 12 in defined

Increase benefit Decrease benefit

in rate obligations in rate obligations

% BT T % BT T

HK$’'000 HK$’000

EUEERS Discount rate 0.1 (3.230) 0.1 3,320

TBERB BRI g R &K Expected rate of medical insurance cost 0.5 16,670 0.5 (14,490)
2020

FE Mz FE =& A

EEZ AIEZ

#h0,/ (i) #m,/ Cid)

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

[BxS:i| in defined e 3R in defined

Increase benefit Decrease benefit

in rate obligations in rate obligations

% BT T % FEEET T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHE Discount rate 0.1 (3,130) 0.1 3,450

TEHREREF G R X Expected rate of medical insurance cost 0.5 15,790 0.5 (13,720)
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17. BAERBRIFEA 9)

(b) SRERZFTE(E)

ElSRESTEREBEAREIEBRCAEEHER

HAEMSBAMAE 2 FE

iR W R AERART BRSO ¢

17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)

(b) Defined benefit schemes (Cont'd)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method
that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligations as a result
of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated income statement in
respect of the plan is as follows:

2021 2020
BT T BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEF=ETE Defined benefit schemes
— & HARRAS R AR — Current service cost 3,950 3,020
— BEIRIEAA — Past service cost
— FrElsgE — plan amendment - (440)
— FFEER — Net interest cost 1,980 2,330
w3 Total expenses 5,930 4,910

EiRa 2 BERARERAGBINER T

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in respect of the plan is as follows:

2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
AENzmetE Defined benefit schemes

— RREPEENFERLR — Actuarial gains arising from changes in Assumptions (8,650) =
— KBRAREEIEEERE — Actuarial losses arising from experience adjustments 4,720 21,720

REmBEERERNFZERA  Components of defined benefit costs recognised
AN E in comprehensive income (3,930) 21,720

e

o
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17. RAKRBRBA @) 17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)
(b) HREMZFEE) (b) Defined benefit schemes (Cont'd)
ARETEIRREZFHIT ¢ The movement in respect of the plan is as follows:
2021 2020
BT T T IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BAEE Benefit liability
®n1A1H At 1 January 154,160 131,330
& HARTE A A Current service cost 3,950 3,020
1B R RRIFRC AR Past service cost
— FrEIE — plan amendment - (440)
FEFEERH Net interest cost 1,980 2,330
EHTERE (BR) BB Actuarial (gain)/losses on remeasurement (3,930) 21,720
R Benefit paid (3,500) (3,800)
W12 A31H At 31 December 152,660 154,160
AR ENmBHETEITEAR R 2 FEARZ AT Expected payment to the defined benefit plan in future years are as
follows:
2021 2020
BT T PEMETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR 1218 B LAA Within the next 12 months 3,210 3,210
2FEE5F Between 2 and 5 years 14,670 14,380
6FE104F Between 6 and 10 years 20,580 19,920
10F LA E Over 10 years 281,050 271,740
TEHRME R Total expected payments 319,510 309,250
AENZBIFEERSHARZ THARR22F - The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end of

the reporting period is 22 years.
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18. EE  SEEBAEBRFEAE
[ [

() E=M<

REEREBRANRITESARNRITREENE AR

et 2 % m AT RE YR 2 e S BT -

18. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
AND KEY PERSONNEL'S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the
Bank in respect of their services rendered for the Bank and managing

the subsidiaries within the Group during the year are as follows:

2021 2020

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

e Fees 2,924 2,912
H i< Other emoluments 19,665 11,754
22,589 14,666

(b) CGS5TEREBAERTEASNHH (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key

Personnel under CG-5
EEEREN 2 CGH5 (BENEFMFIEIES) - AF
EAEBZEHREBRAERETEAENHFHFBL

Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System issued
by the HKMA, details of the remuneration for Senior Management and

S 3 Key Personnel of the Group during the year are as follows:
(i) REAETHIFH (i)  Remuneration awarded during the year
2021
BREEAR TEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel
FEL i3 &zt FRE i1 @t
Non-deferred Deferred Total  Non-deferred Deferred Total
BETR BETT BETT BETT BT BETR
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(& Fixed remuneration
Re Cash 30,473 - 30,473 24,480 - 24,480
Eftfs Other forms 4222 - 422 1,837 - 1,837
FEE M Variable remuneration
Be Cash 7,093 9,447 16,540 7,651 5,627 13,278
41,788 9,447 51,235 33,968 5,627 39,595

e
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18. EE SEEEBABRIETEAE 18. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S AND
[ A€ ) KEY PERSONNEL'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)
(b) CG5TERBEEAERTEABNGMHM (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key
(#&) Personnel under CG-5 (Cont'd)
(i) REABRTFHFH &) (i)  Remuneration awarded during the year (Cont'd)
2020
BRERAE ELIN:!
Senior Management Key Personnel
R BT Bt FEIT BT it
Non-deferred Deferred Total Non-deferred Deferred Total
BT BT BT YT BRI BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B EHH Fixed remuneration
Re Cash 27,101 = 27,101 30,649 - 30,649
At Other forms 3,963 = 3,963 2,835 - 2,835
FEHM Variable remuneration
Be Cash 10,483 5,972 16,455 13,714 3,996 17,710
41,547 5,972 47519 47,198 3,996 51,194

A FHMERE114 (20205 : 1MB) SRERAER
154 (2020F : 178)EEAE ° %20214F 12 A 31

AR S & BIEgET -

members is as of 31 December 2021.

The remuneration above includes 11 (2020: 11) members of Senior
Management and 15 (2020: 17) members of Key Personnel. The list of

(i) BEFHH (i)  Deferred remuneration
2021 2020
ERERAS BREEAS
Senior FEAE Senior FEAE
Management Key Personnel Management  Key Personnel
BT T BT T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIS Deferred remuneration
BB Vested 8,300 4,217 8,172 3,691
5B Unvested 18,490 9,496 17,343 8,086
26,790 13,713 25,515 11,777
®1A18 At 1 January 17,343 8,086 19,543 7,781
BT Awarded 9,447 5,627 5,972 3,996
EE Paid out (4,720) (1,498) (6,217) (3,194)
BEEBER(TAFEE Paid out for members not in this
FEEBZIERIAE) category at the end of this year (3,580) (2,719) (1,955) (497)
R12H31H At 31 December 18,490 9,496 17,343 8,086
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18. EX - - g
[, A€

(b) CGSTEREEAERTEASHEMH
(&)

REBERS AP ERNSRERABREEAR

TRIESE BCBRNEMHIEHESDES -

EEAEBRETFEAER

— SREBAE EEGEREENGREEA

CBEMARR XEEXY BEAR #
TEE  Bles R HMOEEEKE &
EEWE RIEREAKIE -

mn I

\

N

- TBAR  HAXRFEE S MERBEBRALE -
LEKR FEAFE HEABRSHEARE
BEE BEAFE HE FEETZENA

8 BEREBENRERANELTE T8

MBARE—EEA  XHTE - UREEAR
EEFERTENBREELE-BEA -

RZEAHPEREMERBY  FHTEE &
PEBAEBNETEABEHZE2021F12A31HILEE
MBS AEE - AEEEEERE  RRHMER
LR ENEEISHASENRE M EHRE
EAXEATE-
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18.

(b)

DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S AND
KEY PERSONNEL'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

Remuneration for Senior Management and Key
Personnel under CG-5 (Cont'd)

For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel
mentioned in this section are defined according to the HKMA's
Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System.

Senior Management: The senior executives directly managed by
the Board who are responsible for oversight of the firm-wide
strategy or material business lines, including Chief Executive,
Executive Directors, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Officers,
other members of Management, Board Secretary and General
Manager of Audit Department.

Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business
activities involve the assumption of material risk which may
have significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual
responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the profit,
including heads of material business lines, heads of major
subsidiaries, head of trading, as well as heads of risk control
functions.

As of the date of these issuance of consolidated financial statements,
the above compensation packages including performance based bonus

for executive directors, senior management and key personnel for the
year ended 31 December 2021 has not been finalised. Management of
the Group believes that the difference between the final emoluments
and that disclosed above will not have significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.



RAFS IR AR MY EE

Notes to the Financial Statements

" 4

19. BEERE  ERREMBRITRHE 19. CASH, BALANCES AND PLACEMENTS
ft & BB V&S R WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS
2021 2020
BEET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EFRE RFHERTT R H AL Cash and balances with banks and other
RIS R financial institutions
— EFR® — Cash 544,912 624,920
— Fp REIRITR AR — Balances with central banks 21,546,067 17,678,912
— BERERTT R A M€ B — Balances with banks and other financial institutions
KIS ER 8,259,558 9,261,377
— FEIRTT R EM S RS — Placements with banks and other financial institutions
—1E& A ARE 2 E BATF IR maturing within one month 34,353,172 30,685,326
64,703,709 58,250,535
B ZERE Impairment allowances (397) (77,225)
64,703,312 58,173,310
ERTREMERIEIE—S Placements with banks and other financial institutions
+ = 1@ A MEIH 2 FE BITF maturing between one and twelve months 2,684,305 556,111
B ZERE Impairment allowances (164) (132)
2,684,141 555,979
67,387,453 58,729,289
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19. EEHE  EHRREREBETRE
fth& BB ISR ()

HEREEREZEEITIT

e

7.3

19. CASH, BALANCES AND PLACEMENTS

WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL

INSTITUTIONS (Cont'd)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances s,

as follows:
PR FREER = st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BET T BET T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2021F1 A1 H At 1 January 2021 (1,977) - (75,380) (77,357)
Lyl Addition (511) - - (511)
RIFERNER Derecognised or repaid
(TEIEMEE) (excluding written off) 1,752 - - 1,752
B2 SR Changes to inputs used
for impairment calculations 381 - - 381
g8 Amounts written off - - 77,504 77,504
P H =58 Exchange difference (206) - (2,124) (2,330)
72021412 A31 H At 31 December 2021 (561) - - (561)
FE—FEER FEPEER E=[EE HeEt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2020F1 HA1H At 1 January 2020 (824) - (70,768) (71,592)
&0 Addition (1,916) - - (1,916)
RIEERSER Derecognised or repaid
(T EAEHES) (excluding written off) 803 = = 803
RBREL B &) Changes to model used
for impairment calculations (1,618) - - (1,618)
MESHAEE Changes to inputs used
for impairment calculations 1,615 - - 1,615
PEH =% Exchange difference (37) = (4,612) (4,649)
7202012 A31 H At 31 December 2020 (1,977) - (75,380) (77,357)
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20. AREELFAEBZZEHEE 20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
BHEAD S
BRIt ARR
Mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss
25 FRaM @t
Trading Non trading Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
BETT BT BRI BB BT BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BANESIR At fair value
E% Treasury bills 7,252,326 6,497,759 - = 7,252,326 6,497,759
&S Other debt securities - - 759,598 = 759,598 -
7,252,326 6,497,759 759,598 = 8,011,924 6,497,759
Rt Fquity securities - - 1,572,391 = 1,572,391 -
At Others - = 17,438,255 16,415,554 17,438,255 16,415,554
7,252,326 6,497,759 19,770,244 16,415,554 27,022,570 22913313

R2021F 12 A31 8 ' REREBAAARBEEZLETA
Bms oREE (2020 : &) -

AREREHABRBZEBMEER LTt 5B

fair value through profit or loss (2020: Nil).

As at 31 December 2021, there were no financial assets designated at

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are analysed by place

T e of listing as follows:
BREIMELLA R
Bt ABE
Mandatorily measured at
fair value through
profit or loss
RHM% FRHZ M
Trading Non trading
2021 2020 2021 2020
BT T BETT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE5E A Debt securities
— LM — Unlisted 7,252,326 6,497,759 759,598 -
f&in 2 Equity securities
— REBAIN LT — Listed outside Hong Kong - = 101,430 =
— JEEM™ — Unlisted - - 1,470,961 -
HAt Others
— Lt — Unlisted - - 17.438,255 16,415,554
7,252,326 6,497,759 19,770,244 16,415,554
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20. AAERMLITAERZERMEE
(&)
ARERCH ARG EREERBEITHRIBEZ BN
N

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are analysed by type
of issuer as follows:

HREIME AR 7
ERLTABE
Mandatorily measured at
fair value through
profit or loss

RHM EXSMH

Trading Non trading
2021 2020 2021 2020
BT T BT BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BLHER Sovereigns 7,252,326 6,497,759 - =
SRIT R E A& RS Banks and other financial institutions - = 17,438,255 16,415,554
NEIRE Corporate entities - - 2,331,989 -
7,252,326 6,497,759 19,770,244 16,415,554

21. $TESRTAERY PSR

£ THIES - FERALERNITESBTA
AWEEERAREE LA

EREMRENRRE — B HEREINERAGE -

% NMERECBEHEEXBRARE SRR ER
HAGE < IR HIMAREZM AR EE - M (mEE
MEREZFHN X)X ESE (WNESFEH) A LA
BHA (MRXXNEBHNREH) - (RRLERRHEH
O RERGEHBIMAE

SNERERIEIENE T (HET) RE (AR
HERRE 4 E B HIZRR —ERFHARNENE
REE(REHR) AEB L (RGHE) —EHENS
B T A eviER (T IFAGE) B — T2t - ZBEISMER
o HENELTRBE LR —ENHEE - AEH
MRS R EE F T EHIMGB R ©
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The Group enters into the following exchange rate, interest rate and
commodity related derivative financial instrument contracts for trading
and risk management purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign
currency on a future date.

Currency, interest rate and precious metal swaps are commitments
to exchange one set of cash flows or commodity for another. Swaps
result in an exchange of currencies, interest rates (for example, fixed
rate for floating rate), or precious metals (for example, gold swaps) or
a combination of all these (for example, cross-currency interest rate
swaps). Except for certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of
principal takes place.

Foreign currency options are contractual agreements under which
the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not
the obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at
or by a set date or during a set period, a specific amount of the
financial instrument at a predetermined price. In consideration for the
assumption of foreign exchange risk, the seller receives a premium from
the purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-counter between the
Group and its counterparty.
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21. PTAESmIBER¥YYE:Tw

AEBZITESBRT AR ERBELEAAER
FIRT R - RPASHMTANEGH EEHEEET
REEABRARTHZRZE  METEMIAZ
AR/ BEBEARET —EREERBRAMER
MAREEEXBENHLER - B2 - EXTRER
S REARRMB SR E RN ARE - AfE e
RMRASKEMHEGHNE SRR AT IHER o BEZE T
EERTASHNGTHEENER TS ERESE
EBRERNKE  ITESBTANGENEEELER
(BE)STHM(BE)NPE  SLPEARETRBR
BBBRAHKE

(a) PTEEWMIA
REBETHIMTEERRZNIEBNRFARER
1% - KREREPRRAEMSZRENITEERRHY
FREENASEZEARREERRRAE

PTEEMMERRERRTRON AR - RAER
HWEZERBE LHANITEERI TETRS ° B
PTEE MR HE L A B AR 2 5 SRR R =S
Y HIFTRZOREMR - BRITEEMR B WAL
RIBERNERS ETHEE  m58IE  mERE
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial
instruments held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The
contract/notional amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding at the balance sheet dates and certain of them
provide a basis for comparison with fair value instruments recognised
on the balance sheet. However, they do not necessarily indicate the
amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair values of
the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure
to credit or market risks. The derivative financial instruments become
favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in foreign exchange rates, market interest rates or metal prices
relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial
instruments can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

(a) Derivative financial instruments

The Group trades OTC derivative products mainly for customer business.
The Group strictly follows risk management policies and requirement
in providing derivative products to our customers and in trading of
derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking
book. A derivative instrument must be included in the approved product
list before any transactions for that instrument can be made. There are
limits to control the notional amount of exposure arising from derivative
transactions, and the maximum tenor of the deal is set. Every derivative
transaction must be input into the relevant system for settlement, mark-
to-market revaluation, reporting and control.
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21. fTEERMIARYHEFT @ 21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)
(a) PTEEMIAE (a) Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)
TEREASENTESBRTERNI2 AN BZELN & The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts and fair
EEEMALE : value of each class of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:
2021
a8/ ARE
EREE Fair values
Contract/
notional BgE =l
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT T BET T BEET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[EREX Exchange rate contracts
BIHA K 3= B Spot and forwards 5,982,586 281,426 (108,275)
2 5 Swaps 47,764,446 237,686 (244,682)
SN 2R 5 B Foreign currency options
— B AH#E — Options purchased 981,200 75,561 (20,204)
— B HE — Options written 981,200 19,974 (49,604)
55,709,432 614,647 (422,765)
FIEEH) Interest rate contracts
= H Swaps 93,256,035 211,510 (384,668)
Ema & Commaodity contracts 820,999 8,807 (7,237)
149,786,466 834,964 (814,670)
2020
a#,/ NIE
HEEFE Fair values
Contract/
notional BE =AE
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT T ST IT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&4 Exchange rate contracts
BVEA K2 3= A Spot and forwards 10,760,031 350,164 (225,290)
= HA Swaps 56,549,856 404,544 (1,002,025)
HINERZ 5 HiRE Foreign currency options
— B AHI#E — Options purchased 2,499,871 104,597 (17,786)
— B A — Options written 2,499,871 192 (87,146)
72,309,629 859,497 (1,332,247)
FIEEL Interest rate contracts
1! Swaps 91,811,423 170,885 (546,975)
A ma A Commodity contracts 219,806 681 (3,731)
164,340,858 1,031,063 (1,882,953)

&

7.
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21. PTAESmIBER¥YYE:Tw

(b) EHEF

RAEHE

AEBEF AN RIE RS O E TSN RS SR
BEAREE -

TRBE T 2021512 A31 BUAFISBALHEIE B 5
RZERTEMEHBEREHE -
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(b) Hedge accounting

Fair value hedges
The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge against change in fair

value of financial assets arising from movements in market interest
rates.

The table below summarises the contract/notional amounts of the
hedging instruments as at 31 December 2021 by remaining contractual
maturity.

2021
—fBARK -E=f§f ZEt=fiA ik ki3
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over &t
1 month months months years 5years Total
BETT BRI BT BETT BT BETT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
el Interest rate swaps - - 1,019,718 5,600,425 100,000 6,720,143
2020
—fAAR —2=ff ZEt=fA —ZRfF AEMNE
Upto 1103 3t012 1105 Over ECE
1 month months months years 5 years Total
BETTL BETT BETTL AETT BETTL BETTL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
sl Interest rate swaps = = 863,794 6,018,333 178,286 7,060,413
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21. PTESRMIAR¥HEE @ 21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)
(b) ¥HEF(E) (b) Hedge accounting (Cont'd)
RIEEF () Fair value hedges (Cont'd)
AERLHRTAZBESEMT The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments are as
follows:
2021
FA DA RE R
i3 iy god
DRE DAERE
Fair values Change in
e/ fair value
HAERHE used for
Contract/ recognising
notional BE =1 hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities ineffectiveness
BET T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TESBIA Derivative financial instruments
S B Interest rate swaps 6,720,143 12,262 148,141 -
2020
FA AT R
BHEHD 2
ARE NAEE
Fair values Change in
a8/ fair value
REHE used for
Contract/ recognising
notional BE af& hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities  ineffectiveness
BT AT ot BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEemIA Derivative financial instruments
)52 B Interest rate swaps 7,060,413 = 362,268 =

196 .
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21. fTESmTIAREHPEFF @ 21.

(b) EHEF(E)

RAEHM (&)

BEHTER LIS ET ¢

HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)
(b) Hedge accounting (Cont'd)

Fair value hedges (Cont'd)

The amounts relating to hedged items are as follows:

2021

sTABREER

AFEEH
FAEETEE AR
Accumulated R I
amount of fair ZEEZE
value hedge Change in
adjustment  value used for
BREE included in the recognising
Carrying carrying hedge
amounts amounts ineffectiveness
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

SRR E Financial investments
B HHRTFRE Debt securities and certificates of deposit 7,006,977 175,395 -
2020

T ABREER

NEEEF
ARG FA DATERR S
Accumulated SRR 7
amount of fair 2 EEZE
value hedge Change in
adjustment value used for
BREE  included in the recognising
Carrying carrying hedge
amounts amounts ineffectiveness
BT T PRI IT EET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

SRS E Financial investments

BB ERFRE Debt securities and certificates of deposit 7,497,077 307,522 =
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21. fTEemI AR YEsT @)
(b) HhEst (s
AREEHH (5)

FERER BB A

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)
(b) Hedge accounting (Cont'd)

Fair value hedges (Cont'd)

Hedge ineffectiveness recognised is as follows:

2021 2020
BET T BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000

R 5= Net trading gain

() EHER=RKE

20214612 A31 8 @ ¥t BEFR s TR X7
ETEAMEH/ZESTBIE48.41187T (20204 : 78
1 66.20 BT) KERANEBEERY BT EEF R E
2B E B EEN R RS B E AR R R
- THBESRITAEE RN 2021 F3 AEMAHS
ELMBERTTRIZEF BEEF LK EH2021F12 8
31 B#EEME2023F6 A30B 2% © NEFEKRH
R AIET B T 2023496 A30H 2RI EIHAAE
TRBERTTRIZEF B EEF R EENFIERTETA -
BRLA1 2HF02 A M ETTRBERTT R EFEEEF
EEENMETETLRE  BRELEFETETAERR
FRRAEER R ZSORFERTRIE] o
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(d) Interest rate benchmark reform

At 31 December 2021, HK$4,841,000,000 (2020: HK$6,620,000,000)
of the contract/notional amounts of interest rate derivatives designated
in hedge accounting relationships represent the extent of the risk
exposure managed by the Group that is directly affected by interest rate
benchmark reform and in scope of Phase 1 amendments. The exposure
at current year end excluded interest rate derivatives referenced to
USD LIBOR maturing before 30 June 2023, except those referenced
to 1-week and 2-month USD LIBOR, after the announcement by the
Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA"), the UK regulator, in March 2021
that the publication date of most USD LIBOR tenors are extended from
31 December 2021 to 30 June 2023. Therefore, these exposures will
expire before a transition is required.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22. EXRRHMIRE

=

22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2021 2020

BEET T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BAER Personal loans and advances 63,247,755 57,858,670
ARIERK Corporate loans and advances 232,315,106 221,863,901
BPEXK Advances to customers 295,562,861 279,722,571
B ZERE Impairment allowances (4,013,016) (3,027,800)
291,549,845 276,694,771

e S Trade bills 487,550 390,401
A Impairment allowances (30) (39)
487,520 390,362

SRIT R E M2 BB RN Advances to banks and other financial institutions - 102,121
BEZEE Impairment allowances - (102,121)
292,037,365 277,085,133

R2021F 128310 REFEXRBEETFEBE
543,479,000 7T (2020 £ : 7% 792,508,000 7T ) °

As at 31 December 2021, advances to customers included accrued
interest of HK$543,479,000 (2020: HK$792,508,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22. ERRHEMERIE(®)
R EUREE AT 2 0 B 2R E A BRI R PO RR 2 B SRR

22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Cont'd)

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are

e

o

NMEESIOT -

analysed by internal credit grade and stage classification as follows:

2021
B FRE E=REE st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFER Advances to customers
B Pass 285,485,161 1,704,489 - 287,189,650
T2 Special mention 875,810 3,068,310 25,572 3,969,692
IRERKIAT Substandard or below - - 4,403,519 4,403,519
286,360,971 4,772,799 4,429,091 295,562,861
BEZEE Trade bills
&1 Pass 487,550 - - 487,550
BITREMESRBEER Advances to banks
and other financial
institutions
IRBBAT Substandard or below - - - -
et Total 286,848,521 4,772,799 4,429,091 296,050,411
2020
E—PERER F B F=FEE HaT
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT BT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFER Advances to customers
1% Pass 273,673,886 1,244,428 = 274,918,314
FE@E Special mention 682,851 1,728,624 195 2,411,670
IRBBAT Substandard or below - - 2,392,587 2,392,587
274,356,737 2,973,052 2,392,782 279,722,571
BLERE Trade bills
E1% Pass 390,401 = = 390,401
BORHMESHEEER Advances to
banks and other
financial institutions
RBEAT Substandard or below - = 102,121 102,121
4t Total 274,747,138 2,973,052 2,494,903 280,215,093
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22. ERRHEMERIE ()
TERREEE Y B AT -

as follows:
F-RE FERE E=E @t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT T BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2021F1H1H At 1 January 2021 (1,228,412) (96,965) (1,804,583) (3,129,960)
0 Addition (805,059) - - (805,059)
2 FRER S ER (T EAEHEE) Derecognised or repaid
(excluding written off) 538,184 38,487 524,281 1,100,952
BEEHR Transfers to Stage 1 (40,180) 40,180 - -
W PR Transfers to Stage 2 14,024 (14,024) - -
BRE=RE Transfers to Stage 3 31,378 644 (32,022) -
HINE R 2 R b R Impact on period end ECLs
HERBEHBANT 2 of exposures transferred
between stages during
the period 33,784 (119,642) (1,270,175) (1,356,033)
RE2HMEE Changes to inputs used
for impairment calculations 185,574 (18,701) (519,882) (353,009)
W EE #isEERIE Recoveries - - (84,473) (84,473)
WisH 2 B0 Loans written off - - 678,059 678,059
ERET Exchange difference (42,402) 2,125 (23,246) (63,523)
R2021%F 128318 At 31 December 2021 (1,313,109) (167,896) (2,532,041) (4,013,046)
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22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Cont'd)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is,
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22. ERRHEMERIE(®) 22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (cont'd)

FTRE FRE ElE et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT BT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20201 A 1H At 1 January 2020 (1,314,079) (78,152) (1,411,506) (2,803,737)
12 Addition (715,225) - - (715,225)
R FRER S B IE (T RIEHEHE) Derecognised or repaid
(excluding written off) 694,888 37,138 360,549 1,092,575
BEFZ R Transfers to Stage 1 (24,163) 23,945 218 =
HEE &R Transfers to Stage 2 7,083 (171,363) 164,280 =
EBEE = Transfers to Stage 3 24,676 355 (25,031) =
N ERE R 2 R R R i Impact on period end ECLs
HERBRBEANYE of exposures transferred
between stages during
the period 22,438 84,080 (1,687,919) (1,581,401)
IR BB Unwind of discount
on impairment allowances - - 3,179 3,179
HERE RS Changes to model used for
impairment calculations 34,206 2,234 - 36,440
RE2HMEE Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations 76,808 10,223 (189,141) (102,110)
e [m] 2 M s AR IR Recoveries - - (64,217) (64,217)
MiHz B0 Loans written off - - 1,139,525 1,139,525
fENZERE Exchange difference (35,044) (5,425) (94,520) (134,989)
R 2020%F12 A31H At 31 December 2020 (1,228,412) (96,965) (1,804,583) (3,129,960)
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23. SRKRE 23. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
2021
R REELE
AE A2 RS
At fair value VR 13
through other RAEtE
comprehensive At amortised et
income cost Total
AT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E% Treasury bills 52,059,928 - 52,059,928
HEBES Other debt securities 82,293,940 - 82,293,940
134,353,868 - 134,353,868
FERH Certificates of deposit 3,011,642 - 3,011,642
BI5E A KT RE B Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 137,365,510 - 137,365,510
Hh Others - 592,486 592,486
B2 Impairment allowances - - -
- 592,486 592,486
&S Equity securities 49,933 - 49,933
137,415,443 592,486 138,007,929
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23. SRKREw@® 23. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)
2020
AR ES LA
AE A2 mE ke
At fair value DA% £
through other BXANERT 2
comprehensive At amortised 5t
income cost Total
BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E% Treasury bills 46,278,659 - 46,278,659
HiEBES Other debt securities 74,156,150 1,768,341 75,924,491
120,434,809 1,768,341 122,203,150
TR H Certificates of deposit 9,621,228 116,794 9,738,022
BERES TR ERE Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 130,056,037 1,885,135 131,941,172
REZERE Impairment allowances = (147) (147)
130,056,037 1,884,988 131,941,025
HAth Others - 961,397 961,397
TREZEME Impairment allowances = (67,290) (67,290)
- 894,107 894,107
& 10 FH Equity securities 54,109 = 54,109
130,110,146 2,779,095 132,889,241
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23. £ERE @

HEARRAERCF AR RE WS 2 & /IRE R

ERHEZ AT :

23. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)

financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

is, as follows:
E—-RK&R FoRR £ act
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
M20214%1 18 At 1 January 2021 (58,907) - (181,024) (239,931)
0 Addition (50,639) - - (50,639)
2R S (EE (TEAEHEE) Derecognised or repaid
(excluding written off) 19,384 - - 19,384
RE2HMEE Changes to inputs used
for impairment calculations (5,575) - (1,074) (6,649)
0 i = 5E Exchange difference (1,532) - - (1,532)
R2021%F12 A31H At 31 December 2021 (97,269) - (182,098) (279,367)
F—RBR FPRE F=PRE Feh
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20201 A1H At 1 January 2020 (43,920) - (181,868) (225,788)
Em Addition (35,876) - - (35,876)
RIS EE (TR EME) Derecognised or repaid
(excluding written off) 18,187 - - 18,187
REER &S Changes to model used for
impairment calculations 7,045 - - 7,045
RE2ENES Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations (3,638) - 844 (2,794)
FEHZH Exchange difference (705) = = (705)
R 2020%F 12 A31H At 31 December 2020 (58,907) = (181,024) (239,931)
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23. TERRE® 23. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)
FERAABE SRR ANMEGT 8 2 @ BiIR B BV RUEEE 2 #1b An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances of

DITEAT financial investments at amortised cost is, as follows:
F—TER B FRR st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT T BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
R2021F1H1H At 1 January 2021 (12,115) (55,322) - (67,437)
RIETERSEE (TR IEME) Derecognised or repaid
(excluding written off) 12,115 - - 12,115
B[ Transfers to Stage 3 - 55,322 (55,322) -
E2HNEE Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations - - 55,322 55,322
R 2021412 A318 At 31 December 2021 - - - -
Eplled= FRE F=REE st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT BT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2020F1A1H At 1 January 2020 (53,524) - - (53,524)
IR FTER S EE (TR M) Derecognised or repaid
(excluding written off) 89 - - 89
ERERE Transfers to Stage 2 13,609 (13,609) = =
HIN SRR 2 R Impact on period end ECLs
HHEIRBHBANT 2 of exposures transferred
between stages during
the period - (42,213) - (42,213)
REER ) Changes to model used for
impairment calculations 346 500 - 846
REZ2HMEE Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations 29,861 - - 29,861
[ERERE Exchange difference (2,496) = = (2,496)
R 202012 A318 At 31 December 2020 (12,115) (55,322) - (67,437)
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23. E@RIRE )
SEISAR FHY HREWMT -

23. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)

=~ 4

Financial investments are analysed by place of listing as follows:

2021
DA R EELE
AH 2 mE R
At fair value 8 323
through other RAfEtE
comprehensive At
income amortised cost
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$°000
BB ESHRERE Debt securities and certificates of deposit
— REB LT — Listed in Hong Kong 16,850,300 -
— REBUASN ETh — Listed outside Hong Kong 10,362,245 -
27,212,545 -
— 3F kT — Unlisted 110,152,965 -
137,365,510 -
HA Others
— 3FE kT — Unlisted - 592,486
&0 7% % Equity securities
— JELT — Unlisted 49,933 -
#5Et Total 137,415,443 592,486
HBEZFHB 2 ETWESME  Market value of listed securities at amortised cost -
2020
LAA R EECE
AH A2 E 5
At fair value LA 4
through other A ERT 2
comprehensive At
income amortised cost
T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT RE 75 RAF R Debt securities and certificates of deposit
— REB LT — Listed in Hong Kong 13,911,436 565,492
— RABBLASN ET — Listed outside Hong Kong 9,501,322 1,202,716
23,412,758 1,768,208
— kLT — Unlisted 106,643,279 116,780
130,056,037 1,884,988
HA Others
— 3Lk — Unlisted = 894,107
& 10 FH Equity securities
— JELT — Unlisted 54,109 -
#5Et Total 130,110,146 2,779,095
BEZEFHBE 2 FhESME  Market value of listed securities at amortised cost 1,780,157
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23. £RRE®W) 23. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)
SRREREITEB 2 ST Financial investments are analysed by type of issuer as follows:
2021
A AEEbE
AHfth 2 E RS
At fair value V8: 123
through other RAERT &
comprehensive At
income amortised cost
BET T BET T
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEhER Sovereigns 52,139,025 -
NEEAL Public sector entities 2,969,648 -
RITREM 2 RS Banks and other financial institutions 54,799,251 592,486
YNGIM=ES Corporate entities 27,507,519 -
137,415,443 592,486
2020
AEZE
)\ﬁ@i@%ﬁn
At fair value LABE 2
through other B ASERT 2
comprehensive At
income amortised cost
PRI IT T IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEhER Sovereigns 46,358,898 -
NEBAL Public sector entities 2,631,574 =
HRIT R EAth & mh A Banks and other financial institutions 53,643,974 2,779,095
YNCIM=ES Corporate entities 27,475,700 -
130,110,146 2,779,095

MR2021E12 84318 - &?EE(%E/_¥(§$)%EE'J>W As at 31 December 2021, included financial investments at fair value
DIEBRAIAE BN ARBESE AL MEER through other comprehensive income of HK$2,969,648,000 which
mHE IR E BB 2,969,648,000 7T (20204 : B are eligible to be classified as public sector entities under the Banking
#2,631,574,000) ° (Capital) Rules (2020: HK$2,631,574,000).

e
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24, REYHE 24. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2021 2020
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
®w1A1H8 At 1 January 341,080 355,230
NREEE Fair value losses - (2,950)

B BEREYE Reclassification to properties, plant and

B3 R At (P 5E 25) equipment (Note 25) (13,470) (11,200)
M12A831H At 31 December 327,610 341,080

REYF 2 REEREORIGER OO T

The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the

remaining terms of the leases as follows:

2021 2020
BT T PR IT
HK$'000 HK$'000

EBEBFA Held in Hong Kong
RHIFA A (BB 50 4F) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 153,240 177,240
FRHAFRA) (10 =50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 174,370 163,840
327,610 341,080

M2021F 124318 JIREEBBERAZKREY
¥ RBE R ETRI S R IDRIET AN T A R A R
2021 F 12 A3 BUARARBERAEEMET CHEEM
B ARBEEESEE A EEARFARHER TR
M52 HEENES —BIREYFEEISAIER -

As at 31 December 2021, investment properties were included in the
balance sheet at valuation carried out at 31 December 2021 on the
basis of their fair value by an independent firm of chartered surveyors,
Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price that
would be received to sell each investment property in an orderly

transaction with market participants at the measurement date.
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25. Y1 - BMERE 25. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
%= BT
B
Equipment, ERAEEE
BE fixtures and Right-of-use e
Premises fittings assets Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2021F1A1BZ Net book value at
BREFE 1 January 2021 7,220,090 553,131 447,517 8,220,738
HE Additions 100,786 250,396 610,924 962,106
HE 4R IEHER Disposals/Derecognition - (10,921) (627) (11,548)
EEg Revaluation 69,379 - - 69,379
FENE Depreciation for the year ~ (148,776) (151,233) (234,402) (534,411)
EFOEEBEEREYE Reclassification from
(Mf7£24) investment properties 13,470 - - 13,470
PEH =58 Exchange difference 21,505 12,218 6,309 40,032
M2021F12A318B2 Net book value at
BREFE 31 December 2021 7,276,454 653,591 829,721 8,759,766
R2021%12 A31H At 31 December 2021
R AME (B Cost or valuation 7,276,454 1,575,447 1,293,292 10,145,193
ZEIE Accumulated depreciation - (921,856) (463,571) (1,385,427)
M2021F12A318B2 Net book value at
BREFE 31 December 2021 7,276,454 653,591 829,721 8,759,766
B E 2 R ANES R E The analysis of cost or
DT : valuation of the above
assets is as follows:
M2021412 A31H At 31 December 2021
BAAE At cost - 1,575,447 1,293,292 2,868,739
ZEE At valuation 7,276,454 - - 7,276,454
7,276,454 1,575,447 1,293,292 10,145,193
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=~ 4

25. Y1 - SIMEEE @ 25. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)
Rt R B
Equipment, EREEE
BE fixtures and Right-of-use “ast
Premises fittings assets Total
BT BT T I BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MR2020FE1 A1B2 Net book value at
BREFE 1 January 2020 7,481,553 528,117 592,366 8,602,036
HE Additions 12,706 132,272 87,524 232,502
HE Disposals = (1,533) = (1,533)
Eih Revaluation (190,714) — = (190,714)
FEHE Depreciation for the year (142,280) (127,333) (249,521) (519,134)
g A Transfer in 11,200 = = 11,200
& 5 =58 Exchange difference 47,625 21,608 17,148 86,381
M2020F12 B31 B2 Net book value at
BRMEFE 31 December 2020 7,220,090 553,131 447,517 8,220,738
2020912 A31H At 31 December 2020
A AME kA E Cost or valuation 7,220,090 1,408,640 876,588 9,505,318
ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation = (855,509) (429,071) (1,284,580)
M2020F12 83182 Net book value at
BRTEFHE 31 December 2020 7,220,090 553,131 447,517 8,220,738
M EEZ KA ESMNE The analysis of cost or
DT : valuation of the above
assets is as follows:
M2020%12 A31H At 31 December 2020
BAKAE At cost = 1,408,640 876,588 2,285,228
ZiGE At valuation 7,220,090 = — 7,220,090
7,220,090 1,408,640 876,588 9,505,318
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25. W% - BMEREE®

FEZERHERBORBARSMTAOT

25. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Cont'd)

The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms
of the leases as follows:

2021 2020
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBEEEE Held in Hong Kong

REAFA L) GEBB 50 4F) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 3,897,750 4,346,583
FREAFHA) (1052 504F) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 2,512,927 2,097,590

EBEBAINFE Held outside Hong Kong
FREAFA A (10FEE= 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 769,530 738,542
MHIRAN (DR 10F) On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 96,247 37,375
7,276,454 7,220,090

M2021F12A31 8 ' IIREEERERAZEE ' )
5 B 38 37 4 ORI 2= B AR R R TR T A BR A A1 2021
F1R2ANBURAEAREEMETZEEHE - A
NEEEFEE R EEERFRRZHER FRTSZE
HENET —IBFEERIUSHERS

R Lz BHER  FEAREZEPIERNEEEH
R R RN T

As at 31 December 2021, premises were included in the balance sheet
at valuation carried out at 31 December 2021 on the basis of their fair
value by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty
Limited. The fair value represents the price that would be received to
sell each premises in an orderly transaction with market participants at
the measurement date.

As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of
the premises were recognised in the premises revaluation reserve and
the income statement as follows:

2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B/ ()R EERHEL Increase/(decrease) in valuation credited/(charged)
BHEECRE) to premises revaluation reserve 67,323 (184,028)
B/ () mlmRe Increase/(decrease) in valuation credited/(charged)
SHEECRE) to income statement 2,056 (6,686)
69,379 (190,714)

RK2021F12 A31 8 - BEREERKANEHRRFTT
EIR  AEBZEEABRANZEERDFERES
75 #1,004,855,000 7T (20204 : % ¥ 905,492,000
JT) °

e

o

As at 31 December 2021, the net book value of premises that would
have been included in the Group’s balance sheet had the premises been
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation was HK$1,004,855,000
(2020: HK$905,492,000).
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26. Hih&EE

26. OTHER ASSETS

J

2021 2020

BEET T BETIT

HK$’000 HK$'000

W ElIE E Repossessed assets 7.335 7,220
EoB Precious metals 374,263 404,718
ERERTE RTENER Accounts receivable and prepayments 1,222,854 3,650,770
1,604,452 4,062,708

RELE Impairment allowances (3,900) (4,661)
1,600,552 4,058,047

HEREEEZ BT

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances s,

as follows:
E—ERR FEoRER B st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mm2021F1A1H At 1 January 2021 (2,774) (18) (1,869) (4,661)
il Addition (380) - - (380)
RS AR Derecognised or repaid
(T EIEMEE) (excluding written off) 493 18 12 523
BRE—[RE Transfers to Stage 1 (1) - 1 -
BEEE =R Transfers to Stage 3 1 - () -
HIN & RS R 2 [ R B e Impact on period end
HHIRTEERB AR 2 ECLs of exposures
transferred between
stages during the period 1 - - 1
RE2HHEE Changes to inputs used
for impairment
calculations 5,016 - (1,249) 3,767
PE =58 Exchange difference (3,151) - 1 (3,150)
M 2021%F12 8311 At 31 December 2021 (795) - (3,105) (3,900)
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26. OTHER ASSETS (Cont'd)

26. HthEEw

FE—FEER FEFRER E=FRER #Et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
720201 A 1H At 1 January 2020 (1,280) - (1,881) (3,161)
bl Addition (1,962) - - (1,962)
X FRERSKE R Derecognised or repaid
(T EIEMEH) (excluding written off) 25 = 1,151 1,176
R REL Transfers to Stage 2 1 (1) = -
EEE R Transfers to Stage 3 1 = (1) =
HA R B BR < [ R B R R Impact on period end
HHARTEAB AN E ECLs of exposures
transferred between
stages during the period - (17) (354) (371)
RETERL R B E) Changes to model used
for impairment calculations 1 1 - 2
RELH R Changes to inputs used
for impairment calculations 939 (1) (784) 154
B ZERE Exchange difference (499) = = (499)
7 202012 A31H At 31 December 2020 (2,774) (18) (1,869) (4,661)

27. DRES{EFAEBZZEHMEE 27. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2021 2020
BT T PSR T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RPEBE Trading liabilities
—NEEREBRRESFER — Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and Notes 6,415,312 6,650,987

R2021F12 A31 BRERATANRAREELFT AR
HZEMBMEQ0204F : £) -

At 31 December 2021, there were no financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss (2020: Nil).

e
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28. BRERmRHAEE

ACCOUNTING
& a Deposits from customers
(a) EFEH (@)  Dep
2021 2020
BT T PR T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BUERTF 3R R 1 SR IF 3K Demand deposits and current accounts
— A — Corporate 34,464,942 42,636,283
— EAA — Personal 4,098,393 3,914,497
38,563,335 46,550,780
REFN Savings deposits
— AH| — Corporate 47,794,956 33,746,258
— fEA — Personal 56,760,350 54,070,216
104,555,306 87,816,474
TEAA - AEHEA KB AT Time, call and notice deposits
— A — Corporate 152,873,966 131,872,167
— @A — Personal 87,788,779 85,390,507
240,662,745 217,262,674
383,781,386 351,629,928

(b) HHEE
BINEEFREH

RK2021F12 A31 8 ZEBEREBH AREEERN
BEPIERA 2 223,346,000 7T (20204 : B
2,162,425,00070) A% H T B - ALASHREINEIE S

BE -

FRRBEXMLD 2 WA RE BN W ERARER

(20204 : ) o

29. BRITEBIRZRERE

(b) Hedge accounting

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

against the net investments in foreign operations.

income statement during the year (2020: Nil).

DEPOSIT IN ISSUE

As at 31 December 2021, a proportion of the Groups's RMB-
denominated deposits from customers of HK$2,223,346,000 (2020:
HK$2,162,425,000) were designated as a hedging instrument to hedge

There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the

29. DEBT SECURITIES AND CERTIFICATES OF

2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EISRE 5 RAFRE Debt securities and certificates of deposit,

TR SHAK AR T AR at amortised cost
— TFERE — Certificates of deposit 18,748,012 10,747,857
— EMERES — Other debt securities 13,007,215 13,266,578
31,755,227 24,014,435
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30. HMtRER%EME 30. OTHER ACCOUNTS AND PROVISIONS
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$"000 HK$'000
HEAE Lease liabilities 865,378 454,071
HAbEARIA Other accounts payable 17,812,855 18,052,064
AEAF Provisions 51,899 54,660

B0 RS ERE R Impairment allowances for loan commitments

B and financial guarantee contracts 292,367 164,014
19,022,499 18,724,809

HEREEE DT

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is,

as follows:
E—RER 24 £ et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT T BT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
n2021F1 818 At 1 January 2021 163,377 637 - 164,014
0 Addition 270,195 - - 270,195
IR IETERR Derecognised (excluding
(N EFEMEHE) written off) (128,666) (625) - (129,291)
B E—[REL Transfers to Stage 1 1 (1) - -
EEE —RE Transfers to Stage 2 (5) 5 - -
HiN & B8 B 2 [ B B i R Impact on period end
HHEIRTEEAB R 2 ECLs of exposures
transferred between
stages during the period - 12 - 12
RELH R EY Changes to inputs used
for impairment
calculations (19,720) (10) - (19,730)
MR ZER Exchange difference 7.167 - - 7.167
202112 A31H At 31 December 2021 292,349 18 - 292,367
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30. HiRBEREE @

E—FEER E[EER E=PEER HET
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ST IT BT ST IT ST T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
720201 A 1H At 1 January 2020 89,558 18 - 89,576
i Addition 152,240 - - 152,240
RIETER Derecognised (excluding
(TEEMEHE) written off) (90,681) - - (90,681)
EHE (R Transfers to Stage 1 17 (17) = =
ERE —RE Transfers to Stage 2 (4) 4 = -
HY & 8 BR 2 [ B B i R Impact on period end
HHEIRTBERB R 2 ECLs of exposures
transferred between
stages during the period (13) 637 - 624
AR itk k= Changes to model used
for impairment
calculations (11,493) (74) - (11,567)
RE2HHEE Changes to inputs used
for impairment
calculations 11,769 69 - 11,838
E =58 Exchange difference 11,984 = = 11,984
M 2020412 A31H At 31 December 2020 163,377 637 - 164,014

#15% A% 4844 » NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2021 ANNUAL REPORT £E3§  www.ncb.com.hk
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31. ELEHIA

BRI RBEE LSS EANF 1257 AEHRIFTE -
HEERBEMEEREEENBREARAERE
Z BRI ERENORE ABRE A ERE -

EERERAZEEHER(BE) /ABTE2AS - U
REEFERZEFHMT

31. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements and unused tax credits in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded in the
balance sheet, and the movements during the year are as follows:

2021
MEFTE
&hiE
Accelerated ~ ¥I¥EfE HEER
tax  Property 58  Impairment Hity @5t
depreciation revaluation Losses  allowance Other Total

BETrT  ERTx  BE®Tr  ERTx  B%Tr EETx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

202151418 At 1 January 2021

&/ (&) =k Charged/(credited) to income statement

(B)/ETEmemEsE  (Credited)/charged to other
comprehensive income

ERER Exchange difference

44,669 1,136,956

(557,900) (189,092) 434,633

1,393 1,947 - (39,395) 47,7121 11,666
- (3,306) - - 28,047 24,141
- 3,523 - (13,495) (977) (10,949)

2021512 A318 At 31 December 2021

46,062 1,139,120 (610,790) (114,301) 460,091

2020
I E
Eak
Accelerated  ¥1EE( TE%ER
tax Property BIE  Impairment Hth @t
depreciation  revaluation Losses allowance Other Total

AETT  A%TR  A%TR A%t A%t A%TR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

®2020F1 818 At 1 January 2020 40,868 1,173,512 - (389,790) (37,466) 787,124
f&/(8)mamE Charged/(credited) to income statement 3,801 2,554 = (142,834)  (116,480)  (252,959)
it emiia Credited to other comprehensive income = (46,489) - - (33,751) (80,240)
B ETE Exchange difference - 7,379 - (25,276) (1,395) (19,292)
W20206F12 A31H At 31 December 2020 44,669 1,136,956 - (557,900) (189,092) 434,633

o
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31. EERIE @)
EEETRNTERAHEEERBAHER BE
8 - THEEBIES R A — B - RIS EREA
HEERESEREEHER EEMEN - TER
EABENFIEYSE O AEEER

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity
basis when there is a legal right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxation relates to the
same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

2021 2020
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FIERIBE E Deferred tax assets (352,791) (430,257)
REFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 812,882 864,890
460,091 434,633
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRAEFRIE & B Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than
(#B:@ 1218 B & UE) twelve months (383,092) (337,687)
FERIE S F Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than
(BB 12 @A B twelve months 884,871 903,250
501,779 565,563

R2021F12A31H AEBARAEREEREE
BEZ IS E 1B A% 120,225,000 7T (2020 4F : B
2,214,0007T) » LBIRITHLG - BRARBERLEE
JEEHARR -

32. %EESE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$20,225,000 (2020:
HK$2,214,000). These tax losses do not expire under the current tax
legislation.

32. SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES

2021 2020
BEET T BT IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
JRE SR AR BR RS 2029 FFBIHA 2 US$700 million fixed rate subordinated notes
700,000,000 =JT/E B8 issued due 2029 at amortised cost
EESES 5,451,286 5,416,390
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32. #EE&EwW

It T3 AR 1T 5 20194 11 A 20 H %77 2 700,000,000
ETEBBR P LT RAECEERRE =) g7
EHEZHEARNI0FHEERE(ZK]) (BAREGR
TEER) BADZIER) - BWEZE BN 2029F 11
A20B E|H - #IBHEEHA2024%F 11 208 -
HETHEHRIEEEER  £85380%  &F
FRB—K - Bz WRIBEAREREHESBERD -
FROFE S AERSFHERREGSE RN
2182 F - ERBLERTEEMME - RRITAINEIE
S Ak AR EE B REE AR IR HATH

E B FAREEERLERE GERiD) R -

32. SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES

This represents US$700,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year
subordinated notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank issued on
20 November 2019 in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules (the
“Notes”), which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The
Notes will mature on 20 November 2029 with an optional redemption
date falling on 20 November 2024. Interest at 3.80% p.a. is payable
semi-annually from the issue date to the optional redemption date.
Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset
and the Notes will bear interest at the prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury
Rate plus 218 basis points. The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior
approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes at the option of the Bank in
whole but not in part, at par either on the optional redemption date or
for tax or regulatory reasons at any time prior to maturity of the Notes.

33. BRX 33. SHARE CAPITAL
2021 2020
BT T PEEEFIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETREE : Issued and fully paid:
7,000,000 A& A% 7,000,000 ordinary shares 3,144,517 3,144,517
34. BIEARTIH 34. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
2021 2020
BT T PSR IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
12 BETTKAFERFTRAR US$1,200 million perpetual non-cumulative
RBEIN—ERE AR FFH subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities 9,314,890 9,314,890

AIRITI2017F 6 A2 BT 7T EEE 12 83X (30
BIRRE TR ANE ZEB 93151870 Ik AFER AT
IRIRFEIN— B AT ([EINEARTA])  KAZE
SNVEART AR 202246 A2 BEERAIIER B 85T -
E=EFFRFER5.00% o EEFRETEBERE =
HEFMERE G FIRERSFHEERERESB XN
BEREN EOREITHEER -

On 2 June 2017, the Bank issued perpetual non-cumulative
subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities (“additional equity
instruments”) with a face value of US$1,200 million (equivalent to
HK$9,315 million net of related issuance costs). The additional equity
instruments are perpetual and bear a 5.00% coupon until the first
call date on 2 June 2022. The coupon will be reset every 5 years if
the additional equity instruments are not redeemed to a fixed rate
equivalent to the then-prevailing 5-year US Treasury rate plus a fixed
initial spread.
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34. EMEXRIARm
BEEHLEREN—K - NRITEEREZEINEAR
TAMERRTEOEHEEN - MIUEMA BTS2
1 o AT+ AIRITINE UL & M5 ) AR AR ST 5 TE A2,
BEE T RERASAL

RS E RBHARIT NE AR LTI EEE
g ZRIEATANAERSRESERBREER
FIERFEHIES TETHE -

R20224 6 A2 AMEMERWIKE R - NR1THA
BOEBOABERENNORINERTR  BEAXES
2 1R S AR PR I -

2021 - ANERITHLNREINEATAZS 6 TEE
T BRSO RIR2021E6 A1 BM2021E12 A1 H
RT3 FEETT o (20205 : 6 TE=TT) °

" 4

34. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

The coupon shall be payable semi-annually. The Bank has the right to
cancel coupon payment (subjected to the requirement as set out in
the terms and conditions of the additional equity instruments) and the
coupon cancelled shall not be cumulative. However, the Bank is stopped
from declaring dividend to its ordinary shareholders unless the next
scheduled coupon payment is paid.

The principal of the additional equity instruments will be written down
to the amount as directed or agreed with the HKMA if the HKMA
notifies the Bank that the Bank would become non-viable if there is no
written down of the principal.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding additional
equity instruments from 2 June 2022 or any subsequent coupon
payment date, but subject to restriction as set out in the terms and
conditions.

The Bank has distributed coupon payment for additional equity
instruments for a total amount US$60 million during the year 2021, for
each US$30 million was distributed on 1 June 2021 and 1 December
2021 separately (2020: US$60 million).
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35. R ERERME 35. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT

Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash

() REBRNERBARERESZRA (R (a)

) HER inflow/(outflow) before taxation
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
£ | Operating profit 3,749,881 4,229,255
e Depreciation 534,411 519,134
BB FRAE Net charge of impairment allowances 1,499,269 1,359,147
I8 R (B 2E o] 3 Unwind of discount on impairment allowances - (3,179)
D B (KR EEEE)  Advances written off net of recoveries (593,586) (1,075,308)
HEaENEXE Interest expense on lease liabilities 27,728 18,838
‘EAGENESZH Interest expense on subordinated liabilities 209,955 209,386
[REIEFE BB 3 @A 2FHER1T  Change in balances with banks and other financial
REA S BB ES)  institutions with original maturity over three months (208,549) 635,824
REIEIB BB 31EA 2ERTTH  Change in placements with banks and other financial
Hth & miis 2 EHFm2 institutions with original maturity over three months
=) (894,347) 7,561,189
NABEEZ T ABTRZ Change in financial assets at fair value through
TRIEE profit or loss (4,517,232) (10,757,524)
PTES R T A2 &) Change in derivative financial instruments (872,184) 853,943
B EAERTE 2 &8 Change in advances and other accounts (15,835,318) (14,998,176)
TRIRE 2 Change in financial investments (5,549,854) 9,796,568
HEtEE Change in other assets 2,461,406 287,570
IRITREMESREE 2T & Change in deposits and balances from banks and
e other financial institutions (11,410,344) 2,080,195
PAREZ T ABTRZ Change in financial liabilities at fair value through
TRIBECES) profit or loss (235,675) 1,602,428
REGFR2E Change in deposits from customers 32,151,458 5,742,146
E A BRIE I A 2 B Change in other accounts and provisions (224,774) (7,107,403)
[EREE) 2 8 Effect of changes in exchange rates (103,967) 117,314
PBRIATAREIRE ZmA Operating cash inflow before taxation 188,278 1,071,347
KEXBBHSREROIE Cash flows from operating activities included:
— BHHE — Interest received 12,017,776 12,587,648
— BAFE — Interest paid (5,474,353) (6,658,081)
— B E — Dividend received 1,905 2,165
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35. ZERERERMT @) 35. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Cont'd)
(b) BRERERBRSEELEEIN (b)  Analysis of the balances of cash and cash
equivalents
2021 2020
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

BEREEEREIHBE3MEARN  Cash and balances with banks and other financial
ZEBERTT R EMESmEIER  institutions with original maturity within three months

R 54,876,086 48,556,255
REIEAE/E3EA AT Placements with banks and other financial institutions with
RITRE M S R 2 original maturity within three months
TERAFER 1,233,815 -
REIBEE3@MARNZES Treasury bills with original maturity within three months 274,984 1,182,972
56,384,885 49,739,227
(0 MEXKEBEZEH (c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities
2021 2020
BT T R TIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEITEB IS RFRE Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue
®1A1H At 1 January 24,014,435 15,471,116
FRET Issuance during the year 7,740,792 8,543,319
®12HA31H At 31 December 31,755,227 24,014,435
BEAE Subordinated liabilities
R1HA1H At 1 January 5,416,390 5,438,386
REME Cash flows:
S EEITRER BB Cost paid for issuance of subordinated liabilities - (168)
SR EEREER Distribution payment for subordinated liabilities (206,870) (206,187)
RS REE) Non-cash changes:
MERETERZES Amortisation of discount and issuance cost 209,955 209,386
HNEE £ Foreign exchange movement 31,811 (25,027)
®12H31H At 31 December 5,451,286 5,416,390
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35. ZREHERERMFT @ 35. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Cont'd)
(0 ®REXBEBZ2E(HE) (c)  Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities (Cont'd)
2021 2020
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEAE Lease liabilities
®W1A1H At 1 January 454,071 582,911
REME Cash flows:
THHEaE Payment of lease liabilities (232,940) (267,165)
R EE Non-cash changes:
g Additions 608,176 86,947
EHAth Others 36,071 51,378
R12A31H At 31 December 865,378 454,071

36. HABBEREE

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS

FARBBRAEN2REUBATELEZ 2B R The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
KMERETMRE - HEBREZHFI 2 E0HER significant class of contingent liability and commitment and the

RiEERRIESEMAT

aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is prepared with reference
to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital adequacy

ratio.

2021 2020
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEEEERIER Direct credit substitutes 26,344,345 12,329,692
BRI ABE Transaction-related contingencies 1,671,736 1,439,767
HESHBE AR E Trade-related contingencies 20,075,844 18,734,669
BERENEELE Asset sales with recourse 3,945,292 498,543

TEERBANEEHEE 2 Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
s without prior notice 117,673,275 109,315,008

Hih#AE - REHAR Other commitments with an original maturity of

— 1FHAT — up to one year 2,438,374 2,251,261
— 18 E — over one year 14,643,713 16,002,949
186,792,579 160,571,889
= E R ISR Credit risk-weighted amount 21,882,601 16,409,407
EERBINESESRBEERITE (ER) RADTE - The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the

ILEBEIRARR ZHF 2 BRAREEE L 2 R R Banking (Capital) Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status

f o
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37. EBREIE
FEBANURRETEE Y EAAESBENT :

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not
provided for in the financial statements:

2021 2020

BT T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

EHbAE MR LB RS Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 1,147,563 59,203
BEHEBRRELD Authorised but not contracted for 4,325 2,659
1,151,888 61,862

A EBARRBERBORBBAZFE -
e L\)\&$%Z$§$§é1\4}lﬁz;¥@% 2

TSRS

38. KEMHERE
EREEA

RETAREZELERESH  TIHAREEEER
BRI BN ZARERHEZ RERYAES -

The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to
purchase premises, computer equipment and software, and to renovate
the Group's premises.

38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
As lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases:

2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000

T RiEF Land and buildings
— NEBE1F — Not later than one year 8,681 8,224
—1FAEESER — Later than one year but not later than five years 5,002 4,226
13,683 12,450

AEBASEEETLABLREYE %ﬁ‘fiﬂﬁ‘%%‘
1 FES5F o BOBK—REFBEFRIRF

u;Lw

39. =R
AEEEEHZEMBIATRENRERRRE -
HEREMRRERREENETHFEEDEMH -

HREERANEE A HHERAELE HRRIET
HERRMSRNBEIA  RE KRB HERERR
REFELEREE -

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease
arrangements, with leases typically for a period from one to five years.
The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security
deposits.

39. LITIGATION

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by
various independent parties. These claims and counterclaims are in
relation to the normal commercial activities of the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims
because the directors believe that the Group has meritorious defences
against the claimants or the amounts involved in these claims are not
expected to be material.

#1798 7% 4 45 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2021 ANNUAL REPORT 438 » www.ncb.com hk

~

225



RAFSER AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

40. DEWRE

() HREEHE

AREBEBKIKD AUEEEZSHE - SRl AEARTT
DEFIT PEEBRIEE -

EARITIEERITEH RIS REEZEARITR
% EAARTEBRERBEARTS - MEERTE
BRERBIEBEARS - ERMEXBR - KTEZ
BES RAEEEAEENER RBED - FIE
MSNER O o BB E BRI PFIEEARB R E BN
BAR - BEMEBRREHRES - WERREEARITM
ERRITEBRORRFFEBTHIENES - &
LEBRIEANESL R HTEREBNLESEZE
REHIETE - EAMEZINMEXRFBRESER B
BREAEBRZEANEZRS  BREEAEER
YTARRBREBRFNERE(BEZ - TAMIEHE
EBNEZENEEREERBEERLR) -

BB BIRAE B 5 E M SR BT A HER
HMERAEENYE  HXBRFERRETYS
ROTIGERARERBRINER - AARKENE
RA] T (hE) 2 EARMES kDN R RE
RHEBHREZER  EEERNLEBIEA -

[Hib | AEBEEMEERTEREARAEEERE
EH RO (E RS AR B IRR o

—EAEXBROBARZ L - TERRERBBRZE
BRRMIAR - ENEEER - eREBABEEEHE, -

e

73

40. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

(@) By operating segment

The Group divides its business into four major segments, Personal
Banking, Corporate Banking, Treasury and Investment.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general
banking services. Personal Banking serves individual customers while
Corporate Banking deals with non-individual customers. The Treasury
segment is responsible for managing the capital, liquidity, and the
interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition
to proprietary trades. It provides funds to other business segments and
receives funds from deposit taking activities of Personal Banking and
Corporate Banking. These inter-segment funding is charged according
to the internal funds transfer pricing mechanism of the Group. The
assets and liabilities of Treasury have not been adjusted to reflect the
effect of inter-segment borrowing and lending (i.e. the profit and loss
information in relation to Treasury is not comparable to the assets and
liabilities information about Treasury).

Investment includes bank premises and equipment used by supporting
units. Charges are paid to this segment from other business segments
based on market rates per square foot for their occupation of the
Group’s premises. The exchange difference arising from capital of our
subsidiary, NCB (China), which is recognised in its income statement, is
also included in this class.

“Others” refers to other group operations and mainly comprises of
items related to the Group as a whole and totally independent of the
other four business segments.

Revenues and expenses of any business segment mainly include items
directly attributable to the segment. For management overheads,
allocations are made on reasonable bases.
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40. DEHE @ 40. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
() REESE(E) (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
BARST  LEBF
Personal ~ Corporate ~ BTEE% k& A Nt ABHEH &8
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others  Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
BeTr  AMTn  BMTn BMTn BMTn B%Tn BETn B¥Tn
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
BZ01%E12831A Year ended 31 December 2021
FHEMA/ (%) Net interest incomel(expense)
- 5K - External 481630 4228205 1,615,580 - 1 6325416 - 6325416
- BEK - Inter-segment 240,582 196577 (437,159) - - - - -
W2 444782 1178421 - 1 6325416 - 6325416
FREBRASRA/ (TH) Net fee and commission income/{expense) 842,71 755,811 120,328 20 (3607) 1,715,544 - 715544
FR5ths/ (B8) Net trading gain/{loss) 40,143 (195859) 341584 125123 (102) 310,889 - 310889
WAREREABRL Net gain on financia instruments at fair value
SBIEFNG through profit or loss - - 61,759 - - 61,759 - 61,759
AtSRAEF (BB)/MaE  Net oss)igain on other finandial assets - (13725 167,017 - - 15329 - 15329
A2 (i) /A Other operating (expense)/income (6,005 (18781) 24,880 147,721 11,149 158874 (136,359) 22,515
REAEERA 2 FEERA Net operating income hefore impairment
allowances 159,032 4952228 1893989 273,084 741 8I5TA (136359 8589415
REEEFOR/ (BE) Net reversalicharge) of impaiment alowances 547,471 (2,080,762) 31,156 - 3166 (1,499,269) - (1,499,269)
FEERA Net operating income 2146203 2871466 1925145 273,084 10607 726505 (136,359 7,090,146
meg i Operating expenses (1141261)  (1581,151) (2225100  (426231)  (105471) (3476624) 136359  (3,340,265)
BERA/ (FR) Operating profit/(loss) 1004942 1290315 1,702,635  (153,147)  (94864) 3,749,881 - 3,749,881
HE/EfME  BMRREL  Netloss from disposalirevaluation of
FEE properties, plant and equipment - - - (7.831) - (7.831) - (7.831)
REARA/ (58) Profit/(loss) before taxation 1004942 1290315 1702635  (160978)  (94864) 3,742,050 - 3,742,050
RWNE1ANA At 31 December 2021
&E ASSETS
NHEE Segment assets 65264020 228,924,067 232454507 9,137,896 550,510 536,331,000 - 536,331,000
af LIABILITIES
ABEE Segment liabilties 150,462,636 249,924,033 66,110,363 288 3497158 469,997,076 - 469,997,076
BZ20015125318 Year ended 31 December 2021
EthER Other information
uNisn Capital expenditure - - - IR - 318 - 318
Vi Depreciation 58,189 37,59 4215 426,093 832 534,411 - 534,411
Bepr 47 Amortisation of securities - - (28381) - - (83811) - (83811)
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40. 7EHRE® 40. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
() REESE(E) (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
BAST B
Personal  Coporate  BTEEH % Afh Nt ARHES &8
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
BETr  BETn  AETr  #gTn BT AT BETr BT
HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK§000  HK$'000
HEANENANA Year ended 31 December 2020
FHEMA/ (%) Net interest income/(expense)
- 5K - External (258654) 4528931 2,098210 - - 6368487 - 6368487
- B2K - Inter-seqment 1,140,731 165,166 (1,305,897) - - - - =
882077 4694097 792313 - - 6368487 - 6368487
FREERESUA/ (%) Net fee and commission incomef(expense) 840,539 684,905 95,274 61 (1323)  1,61945 - 1619456
FRHNE/ (BR) Net trading gain/(loss) 39,499 436291 (667,019 272,085 1 80,867 - 80,867
DAREREABRL Net gain on financia instruments at fair value

SRTEFNG through profit or loss = - 435,846 - = 435,846 = 435,846
EhemAEs T
(1) /& Net (loss)/gain on other financial assets - (14529 264298 - - 49769 - 49769
H@gRA/ (Zik) Other operating income/(expense) 23,48 (67,735) 44,487 145,403 7332 152735 (134,147) 18,588
REAEERA 2FEERA Net operating income before impairment

allowances 1785363 5733029 965199 417,549 600 8907160  (134147) 8773013
REERTEE/ (Bh) Net reversalicharge) of impairment alowances 371524 (1,703,766)  (25,950) - (955 (1,359,147) - (1399,147)
FaEHA Net operating income 2156887 4029263 939249 417549 5065 7548013 (134147) 7413866
mEgi Operating expenses (1,065,254)  (1,259,203) (446,381) (407,186) (140,734  (3,318,758) 134147 (3,184,611)
meRA/ (BR) Operating profit/(loss) 1,091,633 2,770,060 492,868 10363 (135669 4,229,255 - 422955
REMFARERR L FER Net loss from fair value acjustments on

investment properties - - - (2,950) - (2,950) - (2,950)
HE/ElE  BURREZ  Netloss from disposalrevaluation of propertes,

FER plant and equipment - - - (7899 = (7,899) - (7,899)
RatanEA / (58) Profit/(loss) before taxation 1091633 2,770,060 492,868 (486) (135669  4,218406 - 4218406
R2020E128318 At 31 December 2020
BE ASSETS
APEE Seqment assets 61054867 219333199 214741486 8616662 1,951,947 505,698 161 - 505,698 161
af LIABILITIES
ek Segment liabiltes 145604471 221972695 71,631,122 305  3459,006 442,670,440 - 442670440
HZ20005128318 Year ended 31 December 2020
&R Other information
Ui Capital expenditure = - = 144978 - 144978 - 144,978
il Depreciation 54,919 3112 343 407174 20506 519,134 - 519134
FHEH Amortisation of securities = - (73,790) = - (73,790) - (73,790)
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40. DERE @
(b) ZHEEHES

UTEHRREMBARNEELEMEDLE - B
RPITZER - BIRKIBEERBRFEIHEELKRL

40. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)

(b) By geographical area

The following information is presented based on the principal places
of operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank, on the

DITPIEH D4 - locations of the branches responsible for reporting the results or
booking the assets:
2021 2020
1R BUR B ZE 1 AT REURELEER
ZRBE A BB AT ZIFHEE WA BRA AL
Net operating s Al Net operating g A
income before Profit income before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowances taxation allowances taxation
BT T BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 5,673,138 2,798,991 5,661,635 3,550,593
R A, Mainland of China 2,916,277 943,059 3,111,378 667,813
anEr Total 8,589,415 3,742,050 8,773,013 4,218,406
2021
RABBRARE
Contingent
BEE BEE FEREEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BET T BET T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Hong Kong 356,529,276 309,300,665 6,987,733 65,215,675
AR i Mainland of China 179,801,724 160,696,411 2,107,651 121,576,904
BET Total 536,331,000 469,997,076 9,095,384 186,792,579
2020
A B EREE
Contingent
BEE HEE EMENEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BT T BT BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 336,658,287 289,806,208 7,038,442 60,975,919
elE P Mainland of China 169,039,874 152,864,232 1,531,652 99,595,970
At Total 505,698,161 442,670,440 8,570,094 160,571,889
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41. BEBREE

MK2021F12A31H &K £ Z B @EBEE
8,460,152,000 7T (2020 4F : 7 ¥ 8,408,994,000 7T )
R RIRE RS AB A E 2 BE R o
AN AEEBRBEREBHENESESREER
I 2 B & A7 8,546,658,000 JT (2020 £ : B
17,562,996,0007T) ° A& B AERILE S &M &
2 EBESTAB17,271,885,000 7T (2020 £ : iEE
27,016,893,0007T) ' WEER [RHUEE] k&£
BhIRE | WAIER o

41. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY

As at 31 December 2021, the liabilities of the Group amounting to
HK$8,460,152,000 (2020: HK$8,408,994,000) were secured by
assets deposited with central depositories to facilitate settlement
operations. In addition, the liabilities of the Group amounting to
HK$8,546,658,000 (2020: HK$17,562,996,000) were secured by debt
securities and bills related to sale and repurchase arrangements. The
amount of assets pledged by the Group to secure these liabilities was
HK$17,271,885,000 (2020: HK$27,016,893,000) mainly included in
“Trading assets” and “Financial investments”.

42. ST EZIKSY 42.
TERIRAEBDIEY - BHITIFBEEAIREA
BRSO ROSRTEE o

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments
subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements.

2021
REE
BERTEY NEESER FENEERBRTEHZ
ZERISH 5T RELE
BELEE CREETE Related amounts not set off
EEREM  Grossamounts  Netamounts in the balance sheet
BEBE  of recognised of financial BKEZ
Gross amounts financial assets BeRR
of recognised  liabilities set off ~ presented in SRIA Cash
financial i the balance the balance Financial collateral B
assets sheet sheet instruments received Net amount
BETT BRI BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Assets
iTEeRTIA Derivative financial instruments 409,124 - 409,124 (275,561) (68,847) 64,716
HEE Other assets 873,975 (753,279) 120,696 - - 120,696
1,283,099 (753,279) 529,820 (275,561) (68,847) 185,412
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42. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Cont'd)
2021
REE
BERTHESE NEESER FEREEERRPESHZ
PARY F5ITRH RELE
BERE SREETE Related amounts not set off
BHREM  Grossamounts  Netamounts in the balance sheet
BEAE  of recognised of financial BEAZ
Gross amounts financial liabilities BeHR
of recognised  assetssetoff  presented in £RIR Cash
financial i the balance the balance Financial collateral ik
liabilities sheet sheet instruments pledged Net amount
BETT BETT BET T BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
af Liabilities
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 521,805 - 521,805 (275,561) (212,232) 34,012
AftaE Other liabilities 934,757 (753.279) 181,478 - - 181,478
1,456,562 (753,279) 703,283 (275,561) (212,232) 215,490
2020
BERTHEE  RNEEAER AEREERRRTHEEL
LERRER i il e
BEEE SREETE Related amounts not set off
EWZREE  Grossamounts Net amounts in the balance sheet
EE®E  of recognised of financial Bl
Gross amounts financial assets Befm
of recognised  liabilities set off presented in SRTA Cash
financial in the balance the balance Financial collateral it
assets sheet sheet instruments received Net amount
BETT BETT Voot BETT BETT EETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 514,215 - 514,215 (507,535) (5,349) 1331
AtEE Other assets 1,504,891 (1,278,696) 226,195 - - 226,195
2,019,106 (1,278,696) 740,410 (507,535) (5,349) 227,526
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42, ©RT HZIKEH @) 42. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Cont'd)
2020
BERTEE  RNEEARX RERNEERRRPEHZ
LEERLE NG
EEGE  SREETE Related amounts not set off
EERER  Gross amounts Net amounts in the balance sheet
BEMEE  of recognised of financial [REiwipd
Gross amounts financial liabilities REAR
of recognised assets set off presented in SRIA Cash
financial i the balance the balance Financial collateral et
liabilities sheet sheet instruments pledged Net amount
BT BETT BETT BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
af Liabilites
fTHESRIE Derivative financial instruments 1,710,709 - 1,710,709 (507,535) (510,362) 692,812
EthafE Other liabilities 1,348,560 (1,278,696) 69,864 - - 69,864
3,059,269 (1,278,696) 1,780,573 (507,535) (510,362) 762,676

RAEBEZEI A BSIMTETANEREER HE)F
BEERHE  WEBRLROREMELEENS
o AR —RZHF 2 HAS B AR FEEE -

43. SRIBEEER
MR2021F K% 2020F12 A31H » KEBRAEITFA
RILFERIGHEZEEBEREE

44. BEEX
BT (A RERYE 383 IR B( A 7 (BEE EH2

AR RODFEZBORE - DARTEFRGZ HR
FEBIT

For master netting agreements of OTC derivative and sale and
repurchase transactions entered into by the Group, related amounts
with the same counterparty can be offset if an event of default or other
predetermined events occur.

43. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no transferred financial
assets of the Group that do not qualify for derecognition.

44. LOANS TO DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation are as follows:

2021 2020
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
RERRAKEERZEH Aggregate amount of relevant transactions outstanding
R 4RFE at year end 37,497 498
REAREEBBERZ2 Maximum aggregate amount of relevant transactions
= AREE outstanding during the year 46,182 535

P
2.
32 ‘



RAFSER AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

45. FEEBEEALIRS
BATMEAREE

AEBEEERARREESRIZERARAR ([5E
E]) X ERARATEEEEETERNERA
A((hEEE])  MhBEEERATEARKMBELS
BER(TEA AR ) FEp EE ARKANB ([ B 1) BZE
HELREE  EROMEEEHAXSMBR AR
(IEBMR]) LS -

(a) RE|ATRFATREF2HMDTET
R

AREZEREBRARREESE  MEESEER
PEIEE (B8 ) ERERQR ([EEEE ) 2H] - &
BEZEREERBIERAR  EXERREERE
HARIIED - FBUER = P 2 AR BB 5B r0 48
FCERFT - T B A B BERMBURS MBRBERS

#18,219,567,0007T ) & /& #1,197,776,000 (2020
FEE) HE021FE12A3IBIEFEE B EH
FEMMEEEBBEREEANIE R HE5IHA
YEIB R D Bl A7 5 49,292,000 JT(20204F ¢ B
388,867,0007T) K 7##357,316,0007C (20204 : £#£) o

45. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

General information of the parent companies:

The Group’s immediate holding company is Cinda Financial Holdings
Co., Limited (“Cinda Financial Holdings"), the Group’s ultimate holding
company is China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“China Cinda")
which is a state-owned financial enterprise established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF")
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and
the other companies controlled by the parent
companies

The Group’s immediate holding company is Cinda Financial Holdings
which is in turn controlled by China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company
Limited (“Cinda Hong Kong”). China Cinda is the controlling entity of
Cinda Hong Kong and its major shareholder and de facto controller
is MOF, which is one of the ministries under the State Council of the
PRC Government, primarily responsible for state fiscal revenue and
expenditures, and taxation policies.

China Cinda has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in
the PRC.

The majority of transactions with China Cinda arises from deposits
from customers and disposal of loans and advances. As at 31
December 2021, the related aggregate amount of the Group
was HK$14,123,405,000 (2020: HK$18,219,567,000) and
HK$1,197,776,000 (2020: Nil) respectively. The aggregate amount
of expenses of the Group arising from these transactions and the net
loss arising from disposal with China Cinda for the year ended 31
December 2021 was HK$49,292,000 (2020: HK$388,867,000) and
HK$357,316,000 (2020: Nil) respectively.
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45, FEZEBREALIRS @)

(a) BRBARRIATES2HMDFET
MRS (&)

AP HREERSETHRIFEEREER R
20215 12A31MB - AEEHEBERELBR AR
4,911,717,0007C(20204F : 7%6,917,977,0007T) °
HZE2021F12A31BIEFE - BEEHBS KM
MEBBEPEEMNT LB AE20,773,000 T
(2020 % : ## 46,160,000 7T) °

ABLEFAREHZEMARTNRZRE S @ME
& o R2021F 12 A31 8 » AEBMRBEFIBLEELS
# 592,486,000 7T (2020 4F : /& #5959,214,0007T ) °
HE2021F12A31HLEFE - BFAEES 2 &
AR RS BREFEEANBKABERSE
48,092,000 7T (2020 £F : & ¥ 85,080,0007T) °

REbH BN N alEsl 2 Etb A RN ZREE /T £ B
TAR-R2021F128318 AEEHBERELE
BITESREE  B% 19,857,000 7T (2020 F : ik
72,992,0007T) RHTE SR B & : % 57,991,0007T
(20205 : ) - EE2021 12 A31BILFE - &
TR EEG 2 b A B ST B2 R E A I
ARZRBBES R AITESREE - A% 339,000t
(20204F : ##103,993,00070) RITASREE : 45
#& 59,585,000 7T (2020 4F : #&) ©

ABHEFRNRES 2 EMATHRZREFEXK
REEFER M2021E12 A31 8 » A&EE B K
TH #4858 5 Bl & 75 ¥ 149,533,000 7T (2020 4 : 8 #&
49,184,000 7T ) M 7B % 6,397,258,000 7 (2020 £F : /&
#7,656,394,0007T) ° #£2021F 12 A31HIEFE -
EIRPR ARSI 2 H A R At S SRR E AR
A R 2 H #8555 Bl A& 7 # 4,939,000 7T (2020 4F -
7% #10,000,000 7T ) K2 7% # 84,090,000 7T (2020 £ :
751 139,305,000 7T) °

45. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(@) Transactions with the parent companies and
the other companies controlled by the parent
companies (Cont'd)
The majority of transactions with Cinda Hong Kong arises from
deposits from customers. As at 31 December 2021, the related
aggregate amount of the Group was HK$4,911,717,000 (2020:
HK$6,917,977,000). The aggregate amount of expenses of the
Group arising from these transactions with Cinda Hong Kong for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was HK$20,773,000 (2020:
HK$46,160,000).

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by
the parent companies arises from financial investments. As at 31
December 2021, the related aggregate amount of the Group was
HK$ 592,486,000 (2020: HK$959,214,000). The aggregate amount
of income of the Group arising from these transactions with other
companies controlled by the parent companies for the year ended 31
December 2021 was HK$48,092,000 (2020: HK$ 85,080,000).

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the
parent companies arises from derivative financial instruments. As
at 31 December 2021, the related aggregate amount of the Group
was HK$19,857,000 (2020: HK$72,992,000) for the asset side and
HK$57,991,000 (2020: Nil) for the liability side respectively. The
aggregate amount of income/expenses of the Group arising from these
transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
for the year ended 31 December 2021 was income HK$339,000
(2020: HK$103,993,000) for derivative financial assets and expenses
HK$59,585,000 (2020: Nil) for derivative financial liabilities.

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the
parent companies arises from advances to customers and deposits from
customers. As at 31 December 2021, the related aggregate amount
of the Group was HK$149,533,000 (2020: HK$49,184,000) and HK$
6,397,258,000 (2020: HK$7,656,394,000) respectively. The aggregate
amount of income and expenses of the Group arising from these
transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
for the period ended 31 December 2021 were HK$ 4,939,000 (2020:
HK$10,000,000) and HK$ 84,090,000 (2020: HK$139,305,000)
respectively.
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45, FEZEBREALIRS @)

(a) BRBARRIATES2HMDFET
MRS (&)

RESD B QBRI Z B A RINR SRE S -« 83
MREEME BB ERERIE R EH - R20214F
12 A31 8« NEBERBERIEREE A 401,409,000
7C(2020 4 : 75 24,069,000 7T) M8 # 641,089,000
JC (20204 : 7 #34,239,0007T )@ H & # &
391,468,0007C (2020512 A 31 H : ) A HAEE
E R 529,950,000 7T (20204 : &) & B & A &
ERlzHEMAREITHERZMELNTHEERRE - &
FZ2021F12A31BIEFE - B RAFES 2 b
AR EXERRETEEN I LBEABE
9,018,000 7T, (2020 4 F UL A 48 %8 : % 15,838,000
JT) ©

EER 2021511 A 17 BRMEERBEEERAR A 7 A
#9755 883,000 T iERI P = B B M AR A 7 (Al
BB EEEBMAaRAR]) -

B i RSN - ELEA AR R & A RHES| 2 B AR
EITHRHATER o

AEBEEREBHRLEEBETRIEERS -
BREER BHFREMEETERS -

45. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(@) Transactions with the parent companies and

the other companies controlled by the parent

companies (Cont'd)
The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the
parent companies arises from property, plant and equipment, other
assets and other accounts and provisions. As at 31 December 2021, the
related aggregate amount of the Group was HK$401,409,000 (2020:
HK$24,069,000) and HK$641,089,000 (2020: HK$34,239,000), of
which HK$391,468,000 (2020: Nil) represent right-of-use assets and
HK$529,950,000 (2020: Nil) represent lease liabilities arising from lease
agreements entered into with other companies controlled by the parent
companies. The aggregate amount of net expenses of the Group arising
from these transactions with other companies controlled by the parent
companies for the year ended 31 December 2021 was HK$9,018,000
(net income of 2020: HK$15,838,000).

The group has acquired NCB Wealth Management Advisor Limited
(previously known as “Cinda International Wealth Management Advisor
Limited”) on 17 November 2021 from Cinda International Holdings
Limited with approximated amount of HK$883,000.

Save as disclosed above, transactions with other parent companies
and the other companies controlled by the parent companies are not
considered material.

The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the
normal course of business which include loans, investment securities
and money market transactions.
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45, FEZEBREALIRS @)

(b) ERBUFHE - KEHE  HERERHE

fEEAEFHERNRS
hEARKMBEM RS A EEEEZS - TFBEHR
IR - KEHE BB REGREEHER
BRRMREHAREEMER - AREIR—REEEK
HEBTHE - RIEEE  MERERECEAESE
RETERBITEBRS °

BLRXZGERETRRNTIIZA :
- BE  RURERERTEIEN

- RITRIZE TR AES

- HE  BE  SERERmEMEAZERERE
P17 2 fB5

- RAINE - ERRARRIRE R

- REETERES &

o

- BEAHKEHE BITH - BERBEERS -

X

o

45. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(b) Transactions with government authorities, agencies,
affiliates and other state controlled entities

The Group is subject to the control of the MOF of the PRC Government,
which also directly or indirectly controls a significant number of entities
through its government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state
controlled entities. The Group enters into banking transactions with
government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled
entities in the normal course of business at commercial terms.

These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:
— lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;
— inter-bank balance taking and placing;

— sales, purchases, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued
by other state controlled entities;

— rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment
related services;

— provision of fiduciary activities; and

— purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunications and postage
services.
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45, FEZEBREALIRS @)

(0 FESEAE
ITEREABRERLEERARRBEER N NEME
Hatdl FEREEREEBZIAL  BRESFRE
MREEEAR - AEEELRXBTERXEIES
BAEEREOERHERREERE - RAFRE
FAEEWRBENRITREZRARZEESE
ABHHBMEATETERRS °

FESBAEHZ12A31 BILFEZHEIT

45. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the Group, directly or indirectly, including Directors and other Senior
Management. The Group accepts deposits from and grants loans and
credit facilities to key management personnel in the ordinary course
of business. During both the current and prior years, no material
transaction was conducted with key management personnel of the
Bank and its holding companies, as well as parties related to them.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31
December is detailed as follows:

2021 2020

BT T PR IT

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR E MG A S TR Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 52,827 44,377
RIRAEF] Post-employment benefits 3,705 3,342
56,532 47,719

(d) EEMiEATIMNEER

R2021F12 A318  ARTEAEEBBREPK
— B EBRKRETRIEENER R ESHERR]
FIBAARE D Bl A7 #5 946,715,000 7T (2020 £F : B
115,000 7T ) K /& ¥ 568,252,000 7T (20204 @ 7 ¥
1,663,287,0007T) °

(d) Balances with subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate sums of amounts due from
subsidiaries and amounts due to subsidiaries of the Bank arising from
transactions entered into during the normal course of business at
commercial terms are HK$946,715,000 (2020: HK$115,000) and
HK$568,252,000 (2020: HK$1,663,287,000) respectively.
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46. FPRERE

AT 2 B E BEERT LM 2 & REEN
ISR AR - B EERRR S HFREmE A
AR SR S F 2 SRERAELME 6 -
HBMEIERE S BRI R A 2 SN (S o
EEE Y BRAFERER SHFFAEM TR - I
SIS EBEERA L P - EERBRT 8N
17 ERREeEE R ZBIT 2 AITHED -

AL ENERBERKE G ED A REREZZ(GBREER
BT 10% A E 2 EREMT :

46. INTERNATIONAL CLAIMS

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of international banking statistics.
International claims are exposures to counterparties on which the
ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties after
taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of cross-
border claims in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies.
For a claim guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from
the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the country of the
guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a bank whose head
office is located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the
country where its head office is located.

Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting
to 10% or more of the aggregate international claims of the Group are
shown as follows:

2021
FEBITIAABAE
Non-bank private sector
FRRAT
SRS kem
EL#E Non-bank FAAHERE
$R1T Official financial Non-financial wst
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
BETT BETT BT T BT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Bl A Mainland of China 40,469,331 1,911,300 7,391,997 61,445,553 111,218,181
B Hong Kong 3,220,875 9,820 16,387,471 31,385,054 51,003,220
2020
FERITILAKTE
Non-bank private sector
FEIRAT
SRS Fem
BKE Non-bank N7
|IT Official financial  Non-financial waEr
Banks sector institutions  private sector Total
BT BETT AT IT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B A Mainland of China 34,673,834 1,476,345 4,629,391 54,192,957 94,972,527
BH Hong Kong 1,443,147 16,656 12,088,085 36,578,686 50,126,574
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47. EEEBERREZEHR 47. BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
(a) EEEEX (a) Balance sheet
®12A31H As at 31 December 2021 2020
BT T EETIT
HK$°000 HK$'000

BE ASSETS
BT S RAF MR T R EAD Cash and balances with banks and other

RIS R A R financial institutions 30,636,313 26,269,510
DAEECETABREZ &R EE  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8,723,287 6,497,758
TESmTA Derivative financial instruments 455,043 427,350
B R EAARIE Advances and other accounts 208,547,028 197,243,415
ERRE Financial investments 99,812,367 95,637,506
BB A Rl Interests in subsidiaries 11,713,686 11,708,802
B Investment properties 327,610 341,080
Y% - B30 R Properties, plant and equipment 6,654,356 6,691,738
Hith &2 Other assets 1,738,683 3,549,464
BEREE Total assets 368,608,373 348,366,623
=R LIABILITIES
HRITREM S RS 2 Deposits and balances from banks and other

TR R ft ek financial institutions 13,328,393 23,459,579
AREZCET ABRzE&MAE  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 6,415,312 6,650,987
TESMT A Derivative financial instruments 474,387 1,150,340
CYSFEEN Deposits from customers 279,380,266 249,075,190
BEBITIFRE Certificates of deposit in issue 936,423 1,377,015
HEAhERTE & AR Other accounts and provisions 2,834,823 3,189,754
JERTIE B & Current tax liabilities 212,285 272,606
RIETIE A & Deferred tax liabilities 804,607 856,964
’EERE Subordinated liabilities 5,451,286 5,416,390
BfEfeH Total liabilities 309,837,782 291,448,825
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47. EEEBERREZEHR @) 47. BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont'd)

(a) EBEEBRGE) (@) Balance sheet (Cont'd)

®12A31H As at 31 December 2021 2020
BT T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000

BX EQUITY

A& A Share capital 3,144,517 3,144,517

(7] Reserves 46,311,184 44,458,391

BN ASERREEAR BT Total equity attributable to owners of the parent 49,455,701 47,602,908

BINEARTA Additional equity instruments 9,314,890 9,314,890

BB Total equity 58,770,591 56,917,798

BERERREE Total liabilities and equity 368,608,373 348,366,623

KEEEN2022F3A24BRBIZAETHUT AL Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2022 and signed on
REREF behalf of the Board by:

F5R 41 BF Chan Sai Ming 285 Liu Jun
EF Director 2 Director
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47. BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont'd)

(b) REEBHEE (b) Statement of changes in equity
Gl
Reserves
M
#lat ALt
PENREE
BINER FE  Resenefor
I EfEE  farle
W& Addtondl  Premises throughother  EERE*  HBRE  ZEEA
Share equity  revaluation comprehensive  Regulatory  Translation Retained 3t
capital  instruments reserve income reserve* reserve eannings Total
BTr  BETn BBt Alfn A%t BT BEfn EETr
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2020%F1518 At 1 January 2020 3044517 9314850 6118943 163,280 1,464,230 (12,144) 33,926,189 54,119,905
EEET Profit for the year - - - - - - 3098039 3,008,039
A2 Eke - Other comprehensive income:
FE Premises - - (151239) - - - - (151.239)
REtRRilE EEER Actuarial losses on defined benefit plan - - - - = = (18,136) (18,136)
AnBE(AL 2N Financial instruments at fair value through
JERIA other comprehensive income - - - 334,309 - - - 334,309
EHREER Currency translation difference - - - 54 - - = 54
FENREE Total comprehensive income - - (151,235) 334363 - - 3079903 3263031
SAENEATARE Distribution payment for additional
equity instruments - (465,138) - - - - - (465,138)
aRe/(2)BREF Transfer fromi{to) retained earnings - 465,138 = - (280,675) - 15,537 -
R2020E128318 At 31 December 2020 3144517 9314890  5967,708 497,643 983,555 (12,144) 37021629 56,917,798
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47. BEEEBXRNEREFHR @) 47. BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont'd)
(b) RERBER(E) (b) Statement of changes in equity
B

Reserves

M

RIEt AR

PEUERR

BHER EE  Reserve for

I8 Ef@E  fairvalue

BA&  Additional  Premises throughother  EERfG*  BERE  EEEA

Share equity revaluation comprehensive  Regulatory  Translation  Retained EH
capital ~ instruments reserve income reserve* reserve earnings Total
BYTR  BETn B¥Tn EBTn ERTx EWTn BN ENER
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000

R0NE1A1H At 1 January 2021 3144517 9314890 5,967,708 497,643 983,555 (12,144) 37,021,629 56,917,798
FREF Profit for the year - - - - - - 401 2428012
Hfh2Eks - Other comprehensive income:
RBE Premises - - 49,009 - - - - 49,009
RERRRi e EERR Actuarial gains on defined benefit plan - - - - - - 328 328
DEBIAZ2ERGEZ  Financial instruments at fair value through
$RIE other comprehensive income - - - (160,768) - - - (160,768)
g Currency translation difference - - - (5) - - - (5
FENREE Total comprehensive income - - 49009 (160,773) - - 283120 2319530
SABNERTARE Distribution payment for aditional
equity instruments - (466,737) - - - - - (466,737)
ERERFET Transfer from retained earnings - 466,737 - - 110,19 - (576933 -
R0NE1ANE At 31 December 2021 3144517 9314890 6,016,717 336,870 1,093,751 (12,144) 38875990 58,770,591
* B EIREUREEEI IR ERERBEEHEBF * In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside
B EEESHEERT—MRER B (8iERKIBLSE for general banking risks, including future losses or other unforeseeable risks,
Hib Al FaHAR ) in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised.
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48. BRAERAT

AEE R B MPEEERmPEA
RS AN B T8 ([ BA O3B |) e 28 A R £ FIE ([
BDRIMEESRYE  ERGIVEESHARS
FERAT ([EBHRFR]) FHRS -

49. HBEHmTZE
R BEHRERN2022F3 24 BREESRABRZE
B o
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48. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Group is indirectly controlled by China Cinda, which is a state-
owned financial enterprise established in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF") and its shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

49. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 24 March 2022.
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